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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Jeffrey A Meyers
Commissioner

June 7, 2016
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into a sole source amendment (Amendment #3) for a four-month extension to an existing
agreement, purchase order 1016566, with the Trustees of Dartmouth College, 11 Rope Ferry Road,
Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-1404, Vendor # 90598, to provide the services of physicians and
professional technical staff to meet the State’s needs to service patients and consumers, by increasing
the price limitaton by $2,914,271.04, from $38,137,664.68 to an amount not to exceed
$41,051,935.72, effective July 1, 2016, through October 31, 2016, upon Governor and Executive
Council approval. The Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreement on June 22,
2011, (Item #111), an amendment to the agreement (Amendment #1) on July 2, 2014 (Item #25) and
an amendment (Amendment #2) on January 13, 2016 (Item #6). 32% General Funds, 28% Federal
Funds, 40% Other Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2017, with authority to adjust
amounts between fiscal years if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-8925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICE GRANTS-SHIP

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $12,562.00 | $ 0 | $12,562.00
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,013.00 | $ 0 | $13,013.00
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,480.25 | $ 0 | $13,480.25
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,964.32 | $ 0 | $13,964.32
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $14,465.79 | $ 0 | $14,465.79
SFY 2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0[%4,822.04 | $ 4,822.04
Subtotal: | $67,485.36 | $4,822.04 | $72,307.40
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05-95-95-956010-6126 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: COMMISSIONER, OFF MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY,

MEDICAID ADMINISTRATION

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $299,097.88 | $ 0 $299,097.88
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $301,285.06 | $ 0 |.$301,285.06
Subtotal: | $600,382.94 | $ 0 | $600,382.94

05-95-47-470010-7937 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS. PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, MEDICAID
ADMINISTRATION

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $§ 451,056.52 | $ 0| $ 451,056.52
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 463,276.77 | $ 0 |$ 463276.77
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | § 475826.35 | $ 0| $ 475826.35
SFY 2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0| $158,609.01 | $ 158,609.01
Subtotal: | $1,390,159.64 | $158,609.01 | $1,548,768.65

05-95-41-4120010-5813 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: JUVENILE JUSTICE SERV, OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR, HEALTH SERVICES

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $307,74700 | $ 0 $307,747.00
SFY 2013 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $330,07425 | $ 0 $330,074.25
Subtotal: | $637,82125 | $ 0 $637,821.25

05-95-42-421510-7915 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICE CENTER, HEALTH SERVICES

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2014 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 34180862 | $ 0 | $ 341,808.62
SFY 2015 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 35396434 | § 0 | $ 353964.34
SFY 2016 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 366,556.12 | $ 0| $ 366,556.12
SFY 2017 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider | $ 0]$12218580 | $ 122,185.80
Subtotal: | $1,062,329.08 | $122,185.80 | $1,184,514.88
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05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC

SERVICES
Current Revised
Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified
Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 5690,092.83| $ 0 | $ 5690,092.83
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 6,106617.31| $ 0 | $6106617.31
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 6,900091.67| $ 0 | $6,90009167
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 7,151901.22| $ 0 |$7151901.2
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 7,61998059| $ 0 | $7619980.59
SFY 2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 $2,539,993.86 | $ 2,539,993.86
Subtotal: | $33468,683.62| $2,539,993.86 | $36,008,677.48

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL

SERVICES

Current Revised

Class / Modified Increase Modified

Fiscal Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 28,499.00 | $ 0 | $ 28,499.00
SFY 2013 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 28,499.00 | $ 0 | $ 28,499.00
SFY 2014 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,000.00 |$ 0 | $ 30,000.00
SFY 2015 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,000.00 | $ 0 | $ 30,000.00
SFY 2016 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,000.00 | $ 0 | $ 30,000.00
SFY 2017 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 0 | $10,000.00 | $ 10,000.00
Subtotal: | $146,998.00 | $10,000.00 | $156,998.00

05-95-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 82,120.80 | $ 0 |$82129.80
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 20661.20 | $ 0 |$ 2066120
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $106,394.34 | $ 0 $106,394.34
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $110,944.58 | $ 0 $110,944.58
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $115658.43 | $ 0 $115,658.43
SFY 2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 | $38,552.90 $ 38,552.90
Subtotal: | $435,788.35 | $38,552.90 $474,341.25
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05-95-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, EARLY
INTERVENTION

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 |$ 0% 0
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $17564.00 | $ 01]9%17,56400
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 |$ 0% 0
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $115968.16 | $ 0 | $115,968.16
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $120,322.28 | $ 0 | $120,322.28
SFY 2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 |$ 4010743 | $ 4010743
Subtotal: | $253,854.44 | $ 40,107.43 | $293.961.87

05-95-93-930010-7016 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, ACQUIRED BRAIN
DISORDER SERVICE

Current Revised
Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified
Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount

SFY 2012 | 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services |$  8,884.00 % $  8884.00

SFY 2013 | 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services |$ 65,278.00 ﬁ $ 6527800

0
0

Subtotal: |$ 74,162.00 $ 0$ 74162.00

Total: | $38,137,664.68 $2,914,271.04 $41,051,935.72

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source amendment to the current Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth
College in support of the requirements of Chapter Law 2013, 195:1, VII, H. The request is submitted
as sole source because this four month extension of the Agreement exceeds the contract completion
date of June 30, 2016 under the original 2010 Agreement approved by the Governor and Council on
June 22, 2011. The Department issued a Request for Proposals on February 25, 2016 to secure
comparable services for State Fiscal Years 2017 through 2019. Contract negotiations are ongoing with
a new vendor, but due to unanticipated contracting issues that arose well into the procurement
process, the process cannot be concluded prior to the June 30, 2016 expiration of the current
Agreement. In order to ensure the continuation of critical mental health services at New Hampshire
Hospital, Glencliff Home, and the Sununu Youth Services Center, as well as all other services provided
under the current Agreement, the Department seeks this four-month extension in order to conclude the
ongoing contracting process, or, if needed, to cancel the current procurement and undertake an
expedited new procurement for the provision of all services beginning on November 1, 2016.

The original Agreement was awarded to the Trustees of Dartmouth College through an August
2010 Request for Proposal. The Agreement includes distinct scopes, performance metrics and
financial terms for the following DHHS program areas: New Hampshire Hospital, Medicaid; Juvenile
Justice Services; Behavioral Health; Elderly and Adult Services; and Developmental Services.

In conjunction with the four-month extension, The Trustees of Dartmouth College have
assigned the responsibility for the provision of services during the extension period to Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital. A copy of the Assignment and Indemnification Agreement between the College and
the Hospital is enclosed for information purposes only. Only the contract extension is subject to
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approval by the Governor and Executive Council. Should the Council not approve the four-month
extension, the Assignment and Indemnification Agreement would not take effect.

The Department requests that the Governor and Executive Council approve this four-month
extension in order to ensure the continuation of all of the services made available to the State through
the current Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth College at New Hampshire Hospital and several
other facilities while the procurement process is completed.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 40% Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid & third party insurance), 28% Federal
Funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, Medical Assistance Program, Code of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.778,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NH 20144, and 32% General Fund.

Respectfully submitted,

ffrey A./ Meyerﬁ

mmissioner

Enclosure

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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ASSIGNMENT AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Assignment and Indemnification Agreement {“Agreement”) is entered into on June L
2016, by and between the Trustees of Dartmouth College {“Dartmouth College”) and Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital (MHMH), each a “Party” and together the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Dartmouth College is a party to a contract to provide physician and clinical administrative
services to the State of New Hampshire pursuant to Purchase Order #1016566 and approved by the
Governor and Council on june 22, 2011 as subsequently amended {“Contract”); and

WHEREAS, the Contract will expire on June 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the State is negotiating with MHMH to provide physician and clinical administrative services
to the State beginning on or after July 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the State and MHMH have proposed to Dartmouth College that the Contract between the
State and Dartmouth College be extended from July 1, 2016 to October 31, 2016 in order to allow for an
orderly transition to MHMH and avoid the interruption of care; and

WHEREAS, the State and MHMH have proposed to Dartmouth College that the Contract be assigned to
MHMH effective June 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, Dartmouth College and MHMH have agreed that MHMH should indemnify Dartmouth
College from any and all claims associated with Dartmouth College’s willingness to agree ta assign the
contract to MHMH.

Now, therefore, Dartmouth College and MHMH agree as follows:

1. Dartmouth College hereby assigns the Contract to MHMH, subject to the consent of the State
and in consideration of the indemnification provided by MHMH below. The assignment will be
effective on the later to occur of june 30, 2016 or the receipt of the State’s consent (the
“Effective Date”), and is made by Dartmouth College without representation or warranty of any
kind, express or implied. From and after the Effective Date, the parties agree that MHMH will
be solely and fully responsible for performing the obligations of the Vendor under the Contract.

2. MHMH hereby accepts the assignment of the Contract, and agrees to fulfill all of the obligations
of the Vendor in accordance with the Contract terms from and after the Effective Date.

3. MHMH shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless, Dartmouth Coliege and its trustees, officers,
employees and agents and each of its, his or her respective heirs, personal representatives,
successors and permitted assigns from and against any and all actions, suits proceedings,
demands, assessments, judgments, damages, liahilities, and expenses relating thereto, including
without limitation, interest, fines or penalties of any nature, reasonable attorneys’ fees and
expenses, and any amounts paid in settlement of any of the foregoing resulting or arising out of
any third party claim arising solely out of the extension or assignment of the Contract as
discussed above.
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4. Dartmouth College shall notify MHMH in writing within thirty (30) days of the assertion by a
third party of any claim that is subject to indemnification under this agreement. Failure of a
Dartmouth College to notify MHMH as required by the preceding sentence shall not result in the
waiver of indemnity rights with respect to such claim unless such failure materially prejudices
the ability of MHMH to defend such claim and only to the extent thereof. The parties shall
cooperate with each other in the defense and settlement of any such claim. In the event MHMH
does not accept the defense of any matter, Dartmouth College shall have the right to defend
such matter. No party who has assumed the defense of any matter shall settle the matter
without the consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed.

5. The parties agree to maintain the existence and terms of this Agreement in strict confidence
unless disclosure is required by law or regulation. The obligation under this Section 5 may be

specifically enforced.

6. The terms of this Agreement will survive the assignment of the Contract.

EXECUTED by the duly-authorized representatives of each party as of the date in the introductory
paragraph.

TRUSTE%AOF DARTMOUTH COLLEGE MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
i T J2 f1 b

By: By:

Print Name: __June 6, 2016 Print Name: AWgenr A J/Z!e'A/t‘, V2

Title: Director, Office of Sponsored Projects Title: EV/’( />¢,°, ,4/[,447// ram 7t




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartriouth College — Physician Clinical and Administrative Services

CONDITIONAL CONSENT TO CONTRACT ASSIGNMENT

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services {(DHHS), hereby conditionally
consents to the Trustees of Dartmouth College (Vendor #177157-B013), assignment of the following
contract listed below between the Department of Health and Human Services and the Trustees of
Dartmouth College to Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
(Vendor #177160), with a principal place of business at One Medical Center Drive, Lebanon, New
Hampshire 03756. '

Vendor Name Contract Name G&C Approval Date/ltem # Purchase Order #
Trustees of Physician Clinical and Original ~ 6/22/11, #111 1016566
Dartmouth Administrative Services Amendment #1 7/2/14, #25

College Amendment #2 1/13/16, #6

This consent to assignment is conditioned upon Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital's acknowledgement
and agreement to assume full responsibility for the performance of the entire Contract, including all
amendments in their entirety, and including but not limited to, any and all obligations and liabilities on
the Contract for the full term of the Contract beginning from the original effective date through its final
termination.

Subject to the conditions contained herein, this Consent to Contract Assignment shall be effective on

June 30, 2016, or the date it is fully executed by all parties, whichever is later.
By: ' W Date: <0 [? /w

JeXtery A. Meyers, NH DHHS Commissioner

I, Robin Kilfeather-Mackey do hereby represent that | am the Chief Financial Officer of Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital, and acknowledge and agree that the Trustees of Dartmouth College has assigned
the aforementioned Contract between the Department of Health and Human Services and the Trustees
of Dartmouth College, to Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital.

Effective June 30, 2016, Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital acknowledges and agrees that as the
assignee, Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital fully assumes responsibility for the performance of the
assigned Contract, and all amendments, in their entirety, including but not limited to, any and all
obligations and liabilities, for the full term of the Contract beginning on the original effective date of the
Contract through its final termination.

I further represent and attest that | am duly authorized and empowered to fully bind Mary Hitchcock
Memorial Hospital to the representations contained herein and to execute this Conditional Consent to
Assignment on behalf of Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital,

Contractor Initials

Date_S/31// &



CONDITIONAL CONSENT TO CONTRACT ASSIGNMENT
Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
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Documentation Requirement for Assignee:
1. Certificate of Insurance meeting the requirements of the P-37

2. Certificate of Authority/Vote
3. Certificate of Good Standing

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital

55 // 2/l P CH

Dafe Name/Titje /

STATE OF it pa

counTy oF _ & affo

On this _3 i day of M_ag{ 201 before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person
identified as Robin Kilfeather-Mackey or satisfactorily proven to be CFO, Robin Kilfeather-Mackey and

acknowledged that s/he executed the foregoing instrument in the capacity indicated above.
R “““mlc';""”’ ",
%. wsvenn,/ o /

”/,

s\\\‘?’/\:" MY /2)/1:"%

=75 COMMISSION % %

76/&4‘4 Q#///ng’\s H EXFIRESM': =3
Notary Public/Justicedfthe Peace  Z ‘.‘QCT 26,20 of §
Z §

) \9
My Commission Expires: /0/2¢6 /;?;{' ARy 2 ‘e‘\Q‘ S
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CATE OF INSURANCE

COMPANY AFFOIRDING COVERAGE

Hamden Assurance Risk Retention Group, Inc,

P.0.Box 1687
30 Main Street, Suite 330
Burlington, VT 05401

INSURED

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital
One Medical Center Drive
Lebanon, NH 03756
(603)653-6850

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only
and confers no rights upon the Certificate Holder. This
Certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by the policies below.

COVERAGES

This is to certify that the Policy listed below have been issued to the Named lnsured above for the Pohcy Peuod
indicated, notwithstanding any requirement, term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which
this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the policies described herein is subject to all the
terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies. Limits shown may have been reduced by paid claims.

This policy issued by a risk retention group may not be subject to all insurance laws and regulations in all states. State

insurance insolvency funds are not available to a risk retention group policy.

TYPE OF POLICY POLICY
INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER EFFECTIVE EXPIRATION LIMITS
DATE DATE
GENERAL 0002015-A 07/01/2015 06/30/2016 gg‘éﬁg\ - $ 2,000,000
LIABILITY -
PRODUCTS-
COMP/OP
AGGREGATE
COMMERCIAL PERSONAL
X GENERAL ADV INJURY
LIABILITY
EACH $1,000,000
OCCURRENCE
X | CLAIMS MADE FIREDAMAGE
MEDICAL
OCCURRENCE EXPENSES
PROFESSIONAL 0002015-A 07/01/2015 06/30/2016 EACH . $1,000,000
LIABILITY OCCURENCE
ANNUAL $3,000,000
AGGREGATE
OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES/ SPECIAL ITEMS (LIMITS MAY BE SUBJECT TO RETENTIONS)

Certificate of Insurance issued as evidence of insurance,

| CERTIFICATE HOLDER

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human
Services

CANCELLATION
Should any of the above described policies be cancclled before the expiration date
thereof, the issuing company will endeavor to mail 30 DAYS written notice to the
certificate holder named below, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no
obligation ar liahility of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES




Client#: 317075

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DARTMOUTHH1

4/15/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE (SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s),

PRODUCER
HUB Healthcare Solutions
HUB International New England

RANLACT Jessica Kelley

TN, £x). 978-661-6233 [FA% no), 866-381-4798

| RDHEss. Jessica kelley@hubinternational.com

100 ‘Central Street, 2nd Floor INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Holliston, MA 01746 isurer A : Safety National Casualty Corp
INSURED i INSURER 8 ;
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center
) INSURER C :
1 Medical Center Dr., #4b INSURER D -
Lebanon, NH 03756 *
INSURERE :
INSURERF ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ET_%‘ TYPE OF INSURANCE ) &%%L WV%R B POLICY NUMBER (nﬁﬁ/‘ﬂg;{vﬁrv) u:%ég)’v%s) [ LIMITS

GENERAL LIABWLITY EACH OCCURREN,-E s
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY gMIS%g {Ea cccurrence) S
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) S
. 7 ) ) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY |8

|| t GENERAL AGGREGATE s ]
g_EN L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLI ES PER PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §
s

q POLICY l—l JECT m LOC

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (E2 accideat) s
ANY AUTO BODlLY IMJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
ALTOS AUTOS BOCILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
3
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LiAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I ] RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION 1 X WC STATU- OTH-
A ABENRLOrERS LTy . AGC4053417 07/01/2015,07/01/2018 X Y550 | (88"
E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1000000

'Y PROPR1 ETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE@ NIA

OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED?
{Mandatory in NH)

if yes, describs under

OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bslow

E L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $1000000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT | 31000000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS !/ VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduie, if more space is required)

Evidence of Workers Compensation coverage.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and
Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Clana b D

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of 1
#51590740/M1412980

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mary UChc@or' ospital.
Dartmouth-Hitch :
znier

//// Dartmouth-Hitchcock | e O%

Darimouth-Hitchcock.org

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Anne-Lee Verville of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital, do hereby certify that:

1. Tam the duly elected Chair of the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock

Memorial Hospital;

2. The following is a true and accurate excerpt from the December 7", 2012 Bylaws of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic

and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:

ARTICLE I - Section A. Fiduciary Duty. Stewardship over Corporate Assets

“In exercising this [fiduciary] duty, the Board may, consistent with the Corporation’s Articles of Agreement and
these Bylaws, delegate authority to the Board of Governors, Board Committees and various officers the right to
give input with respect to issues and stiategies, incur indebtedness, make expenditures, enter into contracts and
agreements and take such other binding actions on behalf of the Corporation as may be necessary or desirable.”

3. Artticle I - Section A, as referenced above, provides authority for the chief officers, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Ofﬁccr, of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital to
sign and deliver, either individually or collectively, on behalf of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock
Memiorial Hospital.

4. Robin Kilfeather-Mackey is the Chief Financial Officer of Dartmouth-Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock

Memorial Hospital and therefore has the authority to enter into contracts and agreements on behalf of Dartmouth-

Hitchcock Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Chair of the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth-Hitchcock
of Pty 20/ b
A

’/ /1/4

T L
pille, Board Chair

Clinic and Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital this >/ d

STATE OF NH
COUNTY OF GRAFTON i
- gt Hipy
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this S day of 2’/’% 2ei &&2M%¥wille'
> ot .". &
SET oy %
g § c%n%lssmw v E
N e / s RES : £
\ éfi‘% Ddomms £ % 0CT.26,2016 ; =
Notary Public '% % s §

%,

o¢ O
.. . - | 0, \o'
My Commission Bxpires: 7/ 0/ & /zf' o 7 .?IRYP\.}?.Y'\Q{%

%, HA PS \\\\
(/ \)
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State of Nefo Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL HOSPITAL is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed August 7, 1889. I further certify that it is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by

law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13™ day of April A.D. 2016

2y ekl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




State of New Hampshire, Department of Heaith and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #3

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #3 to the Trustees of Dartmouth College Contract

This third Amendment to the Trustees of Dartmouth College contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #3") dated this 18th day of May, 2016, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department”) and the Trustees of Dartmouth College (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor™), a special corporate charter granted by the British Crown on December 13, 1769
and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place of business at 11 Rope
Ferry Road, Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-1404.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 22, 2011(Item # 111), and amendments to the agreement
(Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July 2, 2014 (Item #25),
and (Amendment #2) approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 13, 2016
(item #6), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;

and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties with the approval of the Governor and

Executive Council; and
WHEREAS the Department and the Contractor agree to amend the contract,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:
1) Form P-37, General Provisions, item 1.8 to read:
$41,051,935.72
2) Form P-37, General Provisions, item 1.7 to read:
October 31, 2016.
3) Form P-37, General Provisions, item 1.9 to read:
Commissioner, Jeffrey A. Meyers
4) Delete Exhibit B Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #3.
5) Add Exhibit B-3.

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials;
Page 1 of 3 Date



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth Coliege, Contract Amendment #3

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

[l W@”U/‘ZM—/

Date ﬂﬁey A. éﬂeyers
mmissioner

Trustees of Dartmouth College

June 6, 2016 ?ﬁﬂ%’%fz

Date Name and Title

Acknowledgement: . .
State of m&ngymCounty of i on F:z io {p, 2014 , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this

document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

M’(},‘{%m’ 0 (&ZM%‘@/

Name and Title m IS Justice of the Peace

Notary Puttic - New Hampshire
My Comimission Explres August w, 201,

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials:
Page 2 of 3 :




State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #3

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFE OF THE A'ITOR?/ GENERAL

e 701 Ll M L

Date Name: Ao~z M. Elwards
Title: O sso ete Aﬂ_a(n{i) Camaral_

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor's Initials: l” ﬂ/\/
Page 3 of 3 Date . Q
o1z|!



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #3

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, of the General
Provisions (Form P-37) for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

Payment for said services shall be made as foilows:

The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make
payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager

Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Each monthly invoice must distinctly identify and differentiate the expense components as charged to
each of the seven (7) DHHS Bureaus for which services are provided as follows:

New Hampshire Hospital

Office of Medicaid Business and Policy
Bureau of Behavioral Health

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
Bureau of Developmental Services
Division of Juvenile Justice Services
Glencliff Home

The authorized costs and expense components pursuant to this Agreement are identified in the following
Exhibits:
Exhibit B-1.1
Exhibit 8-1.1.1
Exhibit B-1.2
Exhibit B-1.3
Exhibit B-1.4
Exhibit B-1.5
Exhibit B-1.5.1
Exhibit B-2.1
Exhibit B-2.2
Exhibit B-2.3
Exhibit B-2.4
Exhibit B-2.5
Exhibit B-3

For the period July 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016, the Contractor shall submit invoices for State
Fiscal Year 2017 costs at the rates established for State Fiscal Year 2016 in Exhibits B-1.1 through B-
1.5.1., up to the budget limitations specified in Exhibit B-3.

Trustees of Dartmouth College Exhibit 8 Amendment #3 Contractor Initials 7~ LAY
Page 1 of 1 Daé [ “2]
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Dartmouth College HANOVER . NEWHAMPSHIRE - 03755

¢ ) £

S,
1769

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CERTIFICATE

I, Marcia J. Kelly, hereby certify that 1 am Assistant Clerk ot Trustees of Dartmouth College, a corporation
created by Royal Charter and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire; that as Assistant Clerk [
have custody of the records of meetings of the Board of Trustees of said corporation; and that at a meeting of
said Board duly called and held on the 9% day of April, 2011 at which a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: To approve the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy, effective July 1, 2011
or such earlier date as the Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer shall determine.
The provisions of the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy shall take precedence
over any previous inconsistent vote of the Board of Trustees.

[ further certify that said Board voted to adopt amendments to the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy
on March 3, 2012 (effective January 1, 2012), September 22, 2013, January 2, 2014, March 8, 2014, and
November 8, 2014 and that pursuant to authority granted in the policy, amendments by the Executive Vice
President and the Provost were made August 7, 2015 (effective July 1, 2015.) The document is available on
Dartmouth website at: http.//www.dartmouth.edu/~control/policies/signature-authority.htm].

[ further certify that said vote remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and is not contrary to any
provision of the Charter of said corporation.

I further certify that attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Introduction and the Sponsored Activities
Administration and Intellectual Property Transactions section (Appendix G) of the said Signature and
Requisition Authority Policy.

I further certify that the following persons were appointed to the positions opposite their respective names and
continue to serve in said positions as of the dates shown:

Jill Mortali Director, Officc of Sponsored Projects Scptember 15, 2008
Martin N. Wybourne Vice Provost for Research July 1, 2004
Nila Bhakuni Director, Technology Transfer/Office of
Entrepreneurship and Technology Transfer July 1,2015
Christine Bothe Associate Director, Office of Sponsored Projects December 1, 2011
Aarron Clough Assistant Director, Office of Sponsored Projects January 1, 2013
Heather A. Arnold Assistant Director, Office of Sponsored Projects December 1, 2011
Glennis Gofd Assistant Director, Office of Entrepreneurship and November 20, 2006
Technology Transfer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the corporation this

day of _ JUNE ,2016.
“Marea 4. Wty

* Marcia J. Welly? Assiéfant Clerk
Trustees of Dartmowth College




State of Neto Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that our records show that a special corporate charter was granted to the
TRUSTEES OF DARTMOUTH COLLEGE by the British Crown on December 13, 1769.

[ further certify that no fees are required to be paid to this office by this corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 22" day of April, A.D. 2016

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDDIYYYY)
07/08/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS‘,
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed.
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

PRODUCER CONEACT
Marsh USA Inc. PHONE T T TTTTTT o T Ty FAXi Tt o
1717 Arch Street (AIG,No.Ext): . (AC,No)_
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2797 EMAL
INSURER(SlAFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
J09254-DART-CASPR-15-16 ~ linsurera: Pinnacke Consortium of Higher E(VTRRRG 11980
INSURED Zunch American Insurance Compan 16535
THE TRUSTEES OF DARTMOUTH COLLEGE INSURERB : L S
ATTN: CATHERINE LARK INSURER € : NA _ i . L
53 5. MAIN STREET, SUITE 212 ,
HANOVER, NH 03755 INSURERD. e e — e
INSURERE : . e B
INSURER F :

COVERAGES

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN tS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP

-ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
: (Mandatory in NH})

\ If yes, describe under

| DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSR' ADDL'SUBR]
LTR | TYPE OF INSURANCE ‘INSD wvD | POLICY NUMBER | (MM/DDYYYYY)  (MM/DDIYYYY) | LIMITS
A l X - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY \ . PCHE2015-03 107/01/2015 107101/2018  EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
| | ! ;’ DAMAGE TO RENTED o Ane
- CLAIMS MADE | X OCCUR PREMISES {Ea occurrence) $ ) Z,OO0,00Q
. - | MED EXP (Any one person) I8 5,000
L ) LE’E_RSONAL&ADVINJURL s 2000 000
. GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER _ GENERAL AGGREGATE  § 5,000{090
X PRO- :
X pouey _ilect . Loc _PRODUCTS-COMPIOPAGG 8 . 2000000
i OTHER: i $
: ! Y " COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
B | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY jBAP 9267272-05 07/01/2015 07/01/2016  (Ea accident " 7L$ 7 2000000
- X ANY AUTO B iSELF-INSURED FOR _BODILY |hjﬂy$Y£Per person)  §
: ﬁbLTg\éVNED | ES%QULED PHYSICAL DAMAGE BODILY INJURY (Per accwdent) s
P ‘ NON-QWNED F’ROPERTYDAMAGE s T
. HIREDAUTOS - _ . AUTOS (Per accident o -
, ‘ s
7 T T i :
| |UMBRELLALIAB |  occur ‘ | EACHOCCURRENCE s
! EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE | . AGGREGATE s
; ‘ ‘ ; - -
| DED J | RETENTION § | 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER TOTH- |
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE | ER _—
 EL.EACHACCIDENT = 8

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §

| E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT ' $

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

The State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

Manashi Mukherjee

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY iINSURANCE

DATE (MMDDIYYYY)

7/7/2015

7/1/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
GERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

PRODUCER Lockton Companies i
8110 E. Union Avenue N Extic Ji T
Suite 700 E-MAIL
Denver CO 80237 ADDRESS: T
(303) 414-6000 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INsURER A : American Casualty Company of Reading, PA 20427
i’g;’g;‘z 3 Dartmouth College insurer B : Midwest Employers Casualty Company 23612
72 53 South Main Street, Suite 212 Insurer ¢ : Transportation Insurance Company 20494
Hanover NH 03755 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES DARCO02 CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 13565662 REVISION NUMBER: XXXXXXX

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

N ADDL[SUBR
'us;? TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | wWvD POLICY NUMBER uﬁﬁ%‘é)’ﬁ@’@ﬁ(m%m, LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY NOT APPLICABLE EACH OCCURRENCE [19,0.0.0.0.0,0.4 |
1 D DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occumence) | 8 XXXXXXX
MED EXP (Any one person) 5 XXXXXXX
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § XXX XXXX
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE { $ XXXXXXX
POUCY JECT D LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGJ $ XXXXXXX
OTHER: 3
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LABILITY T NOT APPLICABLE GOMBINED | T's XXXXXXX
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | § XXX X XXX
ALL OWNED ﬁ‘g;’gg:’v:m BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $ XX XXX XX
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTQS {Per accident) 8 XXXXXXX
- § XXXXXXX
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR NOT APPLICABLE EACH OCCURRENCE $ XXXXXXX
EXCESS LIAR CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 18 XXXXXXX
DED L —[ RETENTION § § XXXXXXX
WORKERS COMPENSATION [ PER QTH
Nt N R R T I T e
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE L T
OFFICERMENBER EXCLUDED? N/A E.L EACH ACCIDEN $ 1’880'000
andatory in E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
If yes, describe under 1, O’OOO
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLicY UMT | § 1,000,000 -
B | Excess Work Comp N N | EWC008364 7/1/2015 7/1/2016 gv%(-)osglégtory; EL Limit
1,000,
J ‘ J

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addtional Remarks Schedule, may be attached ¥ more space is requred)

ERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

13565662

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301

!

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESGRFATIVE

arles MM Du

‘CORD 25 (2014/01)

© 19882014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Dartmouth College

Office of Sponsored Frojects TELEPHONE: (603) 646-3007
11 Rope Ferry Road #6210 FAx: (603) 646-3670
Hanover, NH 03755-1404 EMAIL. sponsored projects@dartmouth.edu

Dartmouth College Mission

Dartmouth College educates the most promising students and prepares them for a lifetime
of learning and of responsible leadership, through a faculty dedicated to teaching and the
creation of knowledge, '

Since its founding in 1769 to educate Native students, English youth, and others,
Dartmouth has provided an intimate and inspirational setting where talented faculty,
students, and staff - diverse in background but united in purpose - contribute to the
strength of an exciting academic community that cuts easily across disciplines.

Dartmouth is committed to providing the best undergraduate liberal arts experience
and to providing outstanding graduate programs in the Geisel School of Medicine
(founded 1797), the Thayer School of Engineering (1867), the Tuck School of
Business (1900), and the graduate programs in the Arts and Sciences. Together they
constitute an exceptional and rich learning environment. Dartmouth faculty and student
research contributes substantially to the expansion of human understanding.

The College provides a comprehensive out-of-classroom experience, including service
opportunities, engagement in the arts, and competitive athletic, recreational, and outdoor
programs. Pioneering programs in computation and international education are hallmarks
of the College. Dartmouth graduates are marked by an understanding of the importance
of teamwork, a capacity for leadership, and their keen enjoyment of a vibrant community.
Their loyalty to Dartmouth and to each other is legendary and is a sustaining quality of
the College.
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Independent Auditor's Report
Ta the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth College:

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Dartmouth College (the
"College™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and the
related consolidated statements of activities, operating expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the refated notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presenitation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider intemal control relevant to the College's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financiaf statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimaltes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and apprapriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 125 High Street, Boston, MA 02110
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us



pwc

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the College as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net
assets, its operating expenses and its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

The summarized consolidated financial statements of the College as of June 30, 2013 and for the year
then ended were audited by other auditors whose report, dated October 21, 2013, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing'and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federa! awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20,
2014 on our consideration of the College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing and not to provide an opinion on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance. .

Prie e Welhoup Cooprrs LL P

Boston, Massachusetts
October 20, 2014



Dartmouth College

Statement of Financial Position

As of June 30, 2014, with comparative information as of June 30, 2013

(in thousands) —_——
2014 2013
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 200,750 $ 240,195
Receivables and other assets, net 151,986 153,764
Investment related receivables 14,681 25,242
Pledges receivable, net 97,258 94,711
Investments 5/547,788 4,724,245
Land, buildings, equipment, and construction in progress, net 955,531 9443277
Total assets $ 6967994 5 6182484
Liabilites
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 72532 % 67,985
Investment related payables 22,366 4911
Deferred revenues and deposits 40,741 41,147
Liability for split-interest agreements 51,876 41,504
Pension and other employment related obligations 350,390 272,450
Bonds, mortgages, and notes payable, net 1,113,333 1,126,787
Interest rate swap liabilities, at fair value 141,219 133,222
Conditional asset retirement obligations 23,144 22,456
Government advances for student loans 20,443 20,332
Total liabilities 1,876,044 1,770,794
Nei Assets
Unrestricted 1,349,963 1,258,727
Temporarily restricted 2,561,992 2,101,508
Permanently restricted 1,179,995 1,051,455
Total net assets 5,091,950 4,411,690
Total liabilities and net assets $ 6,967,994 §$ 6,182,484

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Dartmouth College

Statement of Activibes
For the year ended June 30, 2014, with summarized financial information for the year ended June 30, 2013
(in thousands)
Temporarily Permanently Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2014 2013
Endowment Activities
Gifts 5 53 7.77% 135,624 14345 S 28,047
Net investment returm 183,022 592,836 1,595 777,453 404,762
Distributed for spending {43,940) ( 144,606) - {188,546) ( 185,478)
Other changes 1,465 (1,373) 2,270 2362 2,529
Amounts transferted (10) from other funds, net 1,456 {2073) 515 (102) {2,648)
Change in net asseis from endowment activilies 142,056 452,563 140,004 734,623 247,212
Operating Activilies
Revenues
Tultion and fees 320,224 - - 320,24 304,808
Student scholarships (128,398) - - (128,398) (124223
Net tuition and fees 191,826 - - 191,826 180,585
Sponsored research grants and contracts 177539 - - 177,53 181,517
Dartmouth Colfege Fund and otber gifts 76,767 8,817 - B5,584 90,332
Distributed endowment inveshment return 180,591 6,452 - 187,043 183,816
Other operating income 152,556 - - 152,556 131,745
Auxillaries 72,195 - - 72,195 65,496
Net assets released from restrictions 20,948 ( 20,948) - * IS
Total revenues 872422 (5,679) - 866,743 833,491 .
Expenses
Academic and student programs 544,984 - - 544,984 534,885
Sponscred programs . 127,308 . - 127,308 128,000
General institutional services 97,159 - - 97,15 92,528
Auxiliaries ~ B3,659 - - 83,659 79,860
Total expenses 853,110 - - 853,110 835,273
Change in net assets from operaking achivities 197312 { 5:679) - 13,633 (1,782)
Non-operating Activities
Gifts - 27,189 544 27,733 37,444
Other nonroperating changes, net 30222 a2 - 30,524 30,430
Distributed endowment investment returmn 235 1,268 - 1,50 1,662
Increase/decrease in outstanding pledges - 11,778 (9.231) 2547 ( 48,065)
Persion and postretirernent benefit related changes
other than net periodic benefit costs {103,413) - - (103,413) 63,258
Disposals and non-capitalized expenditures (11,248) (681) - (11,929) (22,392)
Change in unrealized gain (Joss) related to
Intexest rate swap agreements (7,997 - - (2,997) 83,084
Net assets released from restrictions 9,372 (9,372) - - -
Amounts transferred (to) from endowment, net 12,697 (12.595) 102 2,648
Net change in split-interest agreementy - (4.289) (2,777) (7.066) 641
Change in net assets from non-operating activities (70,132) 13,600 (11,464) ( 67,956) 148,710
Change in net assets 91,236 460,484 128,540 680,260 394,140
Net Assets, beginning of year 1,258,727 2,101,508 1,051,455 4,411,690 4,017,550
" Net Assets, end of yeast 1 1,319,963 2,561,992 1,179,995 5091,950 § 4,411,690

Ser accompanying notes to the financial slatements
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Dartmouth College

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2014, with comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2013
(in thousands)

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Total change in net assets 5 680,260 $ 394,140
Adjustments to reconcile total change in net assets to
net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 38,557 57,984
Change in estimated value of interest rate swap agreements 7,997 (83,084)
Change in estimated pension and post-retirement benefit obligation 110,337 (49,872)
Change in split-interest liability 10,372 -
Change in pledges receivable, net (2,547) 48,065
Other non-cash transactions 12,141 8,318
Contributions, investment income, and other changes
restricted for long-term investment (152,481) (63,557)
Net realized and unrealized gains (849,311) (442,883)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables and other assets, net (5,861) 20,996
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,347 (5,647)
Deferred revenues and deposits (406) 3,026
Employment related obligations 7,603 6,342
Net cash used by operating activities (19,993 (106,172)
Cash flows from investing activities
Student loans granted (8,150) (6,861)
Student loans repaid 14,389 15,362
Purchases of land, buildings, and equipment (78,687) (82,836)
Proceeds from the sale of land, buildings, and equipment 77 473
Net change in split-interest agreements - (201)
Net change in unsettled trades (11,984) (41,968)
Purchases of investments (4,270,901) (4,583,645)
Sales and maturities of investments 4,296,669 4,678,047
Net cash used by investing activities (58,587) (21,629)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt - 4,900
Repayment of debt (13,458) (6,993)
Change in investments held by bond trustees - 151
Contributions, investment income, and other changes restricted for long-term investment in:
Facilities 7,942 23,606
Endowment, life income, and similar funds 144,539 39,951
Changes in government advances for student loans 111 140
Net cash provided by financing activities 139,134 61,755
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (39,445) (66,046)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 240,195 306,241
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year % 200,750 $ 240,195
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 52,357 $ 52,149
Accounts payable related building and equipment additions 5 1,888 $ 382
Conlributed securities received $ 29,633 5 44,900

See accompanying noles to the financial statements.



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Organization

Dartmouth College (Dartmouth) is a private, nonprofit, co-educational, nonsectarian institution of higher education with
approximately 4,300 undergraduate and 2,100 graduate students. Established in 1769, Dartmouth includes the four-year
undergraduate college, with graduate schools of business, engineering, and medicine, and several graduate programs in the

Arts and Sdences.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. Dartmouth's finandial
statements include the accounts of its wholly owned subsidiaries and certain affiliated organizations over which it has
finandial control. The wholly owned subsidiaries and financially controlled entities include real estate corporations, which
own real estate in the local area; the Dartmouth Education Loan Corporation (DELC), which provides scholarships ard low-
cost loans to Dartmouth students who are unable to finance their education through other sources; and various separately
incorporated foundations, which support activities that enrich the experience of students and the community.

In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified
into three categories: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted. Unrestricted net assets include all
resources that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and therefore may be used for any purpose in furtherance of
Dartmouth's mission. Under the authority of Dartmouth’s management and Board of Trustees, in order to support
Dartmouth’s strategic initiatives, all or a portion of unrestricted net assets may be set aside in segregated Dartmouth-
designated reserve accounts and earmarked for use in future years by specific departments, cost ceriters, or the professional
schools, to cover program costs or contingencies. These Dartmouth-designated net assets indude funds designated for
operating initiatives, facilities, and long-term quasi-endowment. The purposes for which Dartmouth-designated net assets are
earmarked may be changed under the authority of Dartmouth’s management or Board of Trustees. The use of designated net
assets is at the discretion of the responsible department. All expenses are recorded as a reduction of unrestricted net assets.

Temporarily restricted net assets carry donor-imposed restricions on the expenditure or other use of contributed funds.
Temporary restrictions may expire either because of the passage of time or because actions are taken to fulfill the restrictions,
Temporarily restricted net assets include unexpended endowment retum, unexpended restricted use gifts, term endowment
funds, loan funds, certain uncollected pledges, and life income and similar funds. Donor-restricted resources intended for
capital projects are released from their temporary restrictions and presented as unrestricted support when the related asset is
placed in service. Temporarily restricted endowment distribution and donor-restricted gifts which are received, and either
spent or deemed spent within the same fiscal year, are reported as unrestricted.

Permanently restricted net assets are those that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions which will never lapse, thus
requiring that the net assets be retained permanently. Based upon a legal interpretation of New Hampshire State Law,
Dartmouth has determined that appredation on restricted endowment funds should be classified as temporarily restricted net
assets until such time as the appredation is appropriated by the Board of Trustées. Investment retum from endowment
activities that has been appropriated by Dartmouth’s Board of Trustees is presented as an increase in operating or non-
operating activities according to the unrestricted or temporarily restricted nahure of the donor’s intended use of the funds. In
the case of quasi-endowment funds designated for long-term investment by Dartrnouth, investment return that has been
appropriated by Dartmouth’s Board of Trustees is presented as an increase in unrestricted operating or non-operating
activities, depending upon Dartmouth’s intended use of the funds. Permanently restricted net assets consist of the original
principal of endowrment gifts, life income and similar funds, and certain pledges.

Comparative Finandal Information

The 2014 financial statements are presented with certain prior-year comparative information summarized in total but not by
net asset class. Such information does not indude sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with Dartmouth’s financial statements for the year ended June

30, 2013, from which the summarized information was derived.



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Use of Estimates

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The most significant estimates in these financial statements are the fair
value of investments, interest rate swap agreements and bonds payable (for disclosure only), pension and postretirement
benefit obligations, conditional asset retirement obligations, liabilities for self-insured programs and split-interest agreements,
and allowances for uncollectible accounts and pledges receivable. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates,
particulatly during periods of inivestment and/or interest rate volatility.

Statement of Activities

Operating activities presented in the Statement of Activities consist of revenues earned, endowment net investment return
- appropriated by Dartmouth’s Board of Trustees, and expenses incurred in conducting Dartmouth's programs and :services.
Auxiliary enterprises, pfimarily the operation of residerice halls, dining services, and recreational facilities, are inchided in
operating activities. Expenses such as development, public affairs, and central services and administration are reported as
general institutional services, Depreciation and facilities operations and maintenance expenses are allocated to functional
classifications - of expenses based on the square footage of each building:. Interest expense is allocated to functional
classifications of éxpeénses based on the tise of each building that has been debt financed.

Non-operating activities presented in the Statement of Activities consist of gifts, grants, investment income, other earnings,
and endowment investment retum appropriated by Dartmmouth’s Board of Trustees for loan programs and ‘the construction,
purchase or sale of capital assets, non-capitalizable construction in progress, net change in life income and similar split-interest
agreements, the nét change in pledges receivable, the net change in the estimated value of interest rate swap agreements, and
postretirement benefit changes other than net periodic benefits costs.

Endowment activities presented in the Statement of Activities consist of gifts that are restricted by donors to invest in
perpetuity, amounts designated by Dartmouth’s management and Board of Trustees for long-term investment, the net
investment return on these invested funds, and the annual distribution of an amount appropriated by Dartmouth’s Board of
Trisstees t6 support operating and non-operating activities. Other endowment activities include increases in endowment net
assets froin ¢ertain miatured split-interest agreements.

Endowment and non-operating activities also include transfers of net assets that occur when donors change the restrictions on
certain gifts or when Dartmouth changes the designation of unrestricted funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of U.S. treasury funds, money market accounts, certificates of deposit,
commerdial paper, and liquid short-term investments with maturities of 90 days or less at the date of acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. ‘

Tuition and Fees and Student Scholarships

Tuition and fees revenue is recognized in the fiscal year in which substantially all of the academic program occurs. Tuition
and fees revenue from undergraduate enrollment represents approximately 66 percent of tuition and fees revenue. Student
scholarships provided by Dartmouth are presented in the Statement of Activities as a reduction in tuition and fees revenue. In
addition, Dartmouth acts as an agent for recipients of scholarships from other sponsors in the amounts of $5,375,000 and
$5,822,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which are not presented in the Statement of Activities.

Dartmouth admits students to its undergraduate program without regard to finandal need, The finandal aid program assists
all students with demonstrated need, defined in accordance with a uniform formula, by providing a mix of scholarships, loans
and/or employment designed to cover costs of attendance when combined with student and family contributions, based on

ability to pay.



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Staternents
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Sponsored Research Grants and Contracts

Revenues from govemnment and private sponsored research grants and contracts are recognized when the direct costs
associated with the sponsored program are incurred. Revenue from the reimbursement of fadlities and administrative costs
incuttéd by Dartnotith on U.S. government grants and contracts is based upon negotated predetermined cost rates through
June 30, 2015. Dartmouth recovered fadlities and administrative costs of approximately $42,754,000 and $44,241,000 during
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Taxes
Dartmouth is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code (the Code), except

with regard to unrelated business income, which is taxed at ¢orporate income tax rates, Dartmanith is also subject to state and
local property tax on the value of dormitories and dining and kitchen facilities ini excess of $150,000, as well as on the value of
its off-campus rental properties, commerdal properties, and other real estate holdings to the extent they are not used ot
occupied for Dartmouth’s tax exempt purposes. Certain Dartmouth real estate entities are exempt from federal income tax
under Sections 501(c){2) and 501(c)(25) of the Code. As of June 30, 2014, tax years ended June 30, 2011 through June 30, 2013
remain open and aré subject to federal and state taxing authority exathinalion. Dartmotith believes it has taken no significant

uncertain tax positions.

Affiliation with Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Dartmouth, through the Geisel School of Medicine (Geisel), is a member of the Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center
(DHMQC), a confederation of health care organizations intended to coordinate medical education and health care delivery for
the residents of New Hampshire and Vermont. DHMC is a nonprofit, tax-éxeémpt ‘corporation organized under New
Hampshire State Law. The other members of DHMC are: (i) Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital (Hitchicock Hospital), (i)
Dartrouth-Hitchcock Clinic (Clinic), and (i) Veterans Administration Medical Center of White River Junction, Vermont
(VAMC). The staff of the Clinic serves as the primary resource for Geisel clinical faculty, with the Hitchcock Hospital and the
VAMC acting as prindipal sites of clinical instruction for Geisel students. Each member of DHMC is a separately organized,
goveriied, and operated institution, with Dartmouth having no ownership interest in any othér member.

Certain costs, induding salaries, fadilities use (including construction planning and management, and facilities operation and
maintenance), and direct and indirect research, incurred by Getsel and the other members of DHMC are shared among the
members based on negotiated allocations of the costs on an annual or project specific basis. The members of DHMC,
exduding the VAMC, are also parties to a Condominium Ownership Agreement that governs the ownership and operation of
the DHMC facilities. During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, Dartmouth paid approximately $26.4 million and $27.6
million, respectively, and received approximately $30.0 million and $28.5 million, respectively, in connection with these
arrangements.

Insurance
Dartmouth maintains several insurance arrangements with the objective of providing the most cost effective and

comprehensive coverage for most insurable risks. Both conventional and altemative insurance coverage approaches,
induding utilization of appropriate deductible or self-insured retention amounts, are in place to cover trustee errors and
omissions and employment practices, crime bond, commercdial general and automobile liability, pension trust fidudary errors
and ormissions liability, and property losses. Workers' compensation losses are covered by a self-insured retention and excess
insurance prograrn. Dartmouth currently particpates in three risk retention groups that provide general liability and
professional and medical malpractice liability insurance,

Dartmouth’s annual premium payments for conventional insurance coverage are included in operating expenses. Estimated
liabilities for losses under Dartmouth's deductible and/or self-insurance retention limits are reflected in the Statement of
Finandal Position, which indudes estimates for known losses and for losses incurred but not yet reported. Insurance reserves
are based on actuarial analysis and/or estimates of historical loss experience, and while management believes that the reserves
are adequate, the ulimate liabilities may be different than the amounts provided.



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Gifts and Pledges Receivable

Total contributions to Dartmouth include gifts that are received and the net change in pledges receivable during a period.
Gifts, pledges and pledge payments are recognized as increases in the appropriate category of net assets in the period the gift
or pledge is received. The net change in total pledges is recorded as a net increase (decrease) in non-operating activities in the
Staternent of Activities. Contribitions of capitalizable assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the
date of gift. Pledges are stated at the estimated present value of future cash flows, net of an allowance for uncollectible
amounts, Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with GAAP. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on the trade
date, and realized gains and losses are determined on the basis of the average cost of securities sold. Cash and cash
equivalents designated for investmerit purposes is included in investments and may include money market funds, foreign
currency held for investment purposes, and fixed income securities with an original or remaining maturity of three months or
less when purchased. Advance contributions to commingled fund investments and redemptions receivable from commingled
fund investments at June 30, 2014 are included within Investments as presented on the Statement of Finandal Position.

For investments held directly by Dartmouth for which an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used as fair value. Fair values for shares in commingled funds are based on the quoted market value or
share prices reported as of the last business day of the fiscal year. Dartmouth’s interest in certain other commingled funds and
private partnership interests are reported at the net asset value (NAV) as determined by the external fund manager. As
permitted by GAAP, Dartmouth uses NAV as a practical expedient to estimate the fair value of Dartmouth’s ownership
interest, unless it is probable:that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV.
Dartmouth performs due diligence procedures related to these investments to support recognition at fair value at fiscal year-
end. Because many of these investments are not readily marketable, the estimates of fair value involve assumptions and
estimation methods which are uncertain, and therefore the estimates could differ from actual results,

Commending in fiscal year 2014, Dartmouth extended its accounting dlosing process related to receiving valuations from
private investment managers. This extension allowed Dartmouth to improve the accuracy of reporting private investment
values at fiscal year-end. As a result of this extension, a previously unreported unrealized gain from June 30, 2013 of
$59,432,000 was recorded within the $777,453,000 net investinent return for the year ended June 30, 2014 on the Statement of
Activities. Dartmouth assessed the impact of the $59,432,000 out-of-period unrealized gain adjustment on both the 2013 and
2014 fiscal years and has concluded that it is immaterial.

Directly held real estate is reflected at fair value in accordance with Dartmouth’s valuation policy. The valuation policy
indudes: the estimated price that would be received from the sale of the asset in an orderly transaction between market
partidpants, prices determined by independent external appraisals for at least one third of the properties in a given year, or at
cost which approximates fair value for properties held for less than a year or which are being actively developed.

Total investment return (interest, dividends, rents, royalties, and net realized and unrealized gains and losses) earned by
Dartmouth’s endowment investments is induded in endowment activities on the Statement of Activities, while the net income
eamed by the non-endownent investments is included in other operating or non-operating income on the Statement of
Activities. Dividend income is recognized net of applicable withholding taxes on the ex-dividend date. Non-cash dividends
are recorded at the fair value of the securities received. Interest income and expenses are recorded net of applicable
withholding taxes on the accrual basis of accounting. Dartmouth amortizes bond premiums and accretes borid discounts
using the effective yield method and when cash collection is expected. Fees charged by external investment managers are
generally based on contractual percentages of the fair market value of assets under management or on annual total investment
return and are, in most cases, netted against investment return. However, certain expenses paid directly by Dartmouth for
investment management and custody services, including certain internal costs, amounted to approximately $11,947,000 and
$12,970,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and have been netted against endowment return and
other operating and non-operating income in the accompanying Statement of Activities.



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

The asset allocation of Dartmouth’s investment portfolio involves exposure to a diverse set of markets. The investments
within these markets involve various tisks such as price, interest rate, market, sovereign, currency, liquidity, and cedit risks.
Additionally, the irivestinents in real assets and direct real estate expose Dartmouth to a unique set of risks such as
operational, environmental, and political risks. Dartmouth anticipates that the value and composition of its investments may,
from Hme to time, fluctuate substantially in response to any or all of the risks described herein.

Endowment

Dartmouth’s endowment and ‘similar funds consist of gifts restricted by donors and unrestncted net assets designated by
management and the Board of Trustees for long-term support of Dartmouth’s activities, and the accumulated investment
return on these gifts and designated net assets. Accumulated investment retum.consists of endowment net irivestietit retiirn
that has not been appropriated by the Board of Trustees for expenditure to support Dartmouth's operating and non-operatirig
activities. ' Generally, ‘only. a portion of accumulated net investment return is made available for spending each year in
accordance with a Board of Tristees-approved endowment utilization policy and New Hampshire State Law. ‘However,
certain donor zestncted endowmenlt funds do allow for the expenditure of principal, and Dartmouth~designated endowment
funds are unrestricted net assets that may be re-designated for authorized expenditures.

Givirig €onsideration to the New Hampshire Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), Dartmonth
classifies as permanently restricted net assets all endowmenl funds that must be retained permanently in accordance with
st:pulahons imposed by a doriot at the titne of a gift, plus the original value of assets donated to permanent enidowment, alofig
with any investment earmngs that are directed by the donor to be reinvested in perpetuity (i.e., historic book ‘value).  The
remaining portion ‘of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is nol classified in permanently restricted fiet disets is
classified as temporarily reéstricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure in a manner consxstem
with the standaid of pmdence prescnbed by UPMIFA.

Urnrestricted endowment net assets include Dartmouth funds and certain unréstricted gifts from donors, and ny accumulated
investment return thereon, which may be expended; however, by trustee or management designation, these net assets ray
_rémain invested in the endowment for the long-term support of Dartmouth activities. Investment return on unrestricted
endowimerit net assets and the annual distribution of a portion of accumulated investment return to operating and ‘non-
operating activitiés dre presented as changes in unrestricted net assets in the Statement of Activities. Temporarily restricted
endowment net assets include certain expendable endowment gifts, and any retained income and appredation thereon, which
are festricted by the donor to a spedific purpose or by law. When the lemporary restrictions on these funds have béen met, the
gifts ordinarily remain in the endowment by trustee designation to continue supporting the same activities as those specified
by the donérs, but the net assets are reclassified to unrestricted endowment net assets. Investment return on temporarily and
perimianently restricted net assets are generally presented as changes in temporarily restricted net assets in the Statement of

Activities.

. Split-Interest Agreements

Certain donors have established irrevocable split-interest agreements with Dartmouth, primarily charitable gift annuities,
pooled life income furids, and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts, whereby the donated assets are invested and
distributions are made to the donor and/or other beneficiaries in accordance with the agreement for a spedfied period. of titne,
after which time the remaining assets and future investment return are retained by Dartmouth. At the discretion of the donor,
Dartmouth may or may not serve as trustee for the split-interest agreement. '

Dartmouth has recorded the estimated fair value of the investments assodated with irrevocable split-interest agreements and
an estmated liability, using a discount rate of 2.2% for FY14 and 1.2% for FY13, for the net present value of the future cash
outflows to benefidaries of the agreements for which Dartmounth serves as trustee. When Dartmouth is not the trustee of the
assets associated with a split-interest agreement, a receivable for Dartmouth’s beneficial interest is established when
Dartmouth is notified of the trust's existence and when the third-party trustee has provided Dartmouth with sufficent reliable
information to estimate the value of the receivable, which the College considers a Level 3 measurement. Dartmouth requests
information regularly from third-party trustees for finandal reporting purposes; however, these trustees are not obligated to
provide Dartmouth with the information necessary to estimate fair value and record the asset. Dartmouth respects the privacy
of donors and trustees in these limited instances. Dartmouth reports the net change in split-interest agreements as a non-
operating change in net assets in the Statement of Aclivities.
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Land, Buildings, Equipment, and Construction in Progress

Land, buildings, equipment, and construction in progress are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or, if acquired by gift,
at the estimated fair value as of the date of the gift. Purchases, construction, and renovations of assets which exceed
Dartmouth’s specified dollar threshold and have a useful life greater than one year are capitalized, while scheduled
maintenance and minor renovations of less than that amount are charged to operations.

Land, buildings, and equipment are reflected net of accumulated depredation calculated on a straight-line basis over the
following estimated economic lives.

Buildings and building components 10 - 50 years
Depreciable land improvements 15- 20 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years

Depredation expense for fadilities that are primarily used for sponsored research is based on the estimated economic lives of
each component.

Collections

Dartmouth’s collections include works of art, literary works, historical treasures, and artifacts that are maintained in its
museum and libraries. These collections are protected and preserved for public exhibition, education, research, and the
furtherance of public service. Each of the items is cataloged, preserved, and cared for, and activities verifying their existence
and assessing their condition are performed continuously. The collections are subject to a policy that requires proceeds from
their sale to be used to acquire other items for collections.

The collections, which were acquired through purchases and contributions since Dartmouth’s inception, are not recognized as
assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Purchases of collection items are recorded in the Statement of Activities as non-
operating decreases in urvestricted net assets in the year in which the items are acquired or in temporarily restricted net assets
if the assets used to purchase the items are restricted by donors. Contributed collection items are not recorded in the finandial

statements.

Receivables and Other Assets

Receivables and other assets consisted of the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2014_ 2013
Student accounts % 3,039 3 2334
Sponsored research grants and contracts 19,667 20,162
Other accounts 46,396 44,008
Notes and student loans 68,800 75,033
Less; allowance for uncollectible accounts (4.047) (2979}
Receivables, net $ 133,855 3 138,564
Prepaid costs, inventories, and other assets 18,131 15,200
Total receivables and other assets, net b1 151,986 £ 153,764

Federally sponsored student loans with mandated interest rates and repayment terms are subject to significant restrictions as
to their transfer and disposition. Amounts received from the Federal government to fund a portion of the Perkins student
loans are ultimately refundable to the Federal government and are classified as government advances for student loans in the
Statement of Finandal Position. Due to the nature and terms of student loans funded by the Federal government, and
restricted and unrestricted Dartmouth funds, it is not practical to estimalte the fair value of such loans. All other receivables
are carried at estimated net realizable value.
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Gifts and Pledges Receivable

Gifts and pledge payments received during the years ended June 30 were as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
Gifts to support operations $ 85,584 5 90,332
Gifts for:
Faalities and student loans 8,012 23,626
Other restricted uses 12,875 2,713
Endowment 143,456 28,047
Split-interest agreemerits ] 6,846 11105
Total gifts and pledge payments £ 296773, S 155803

Unconditional pledges as of June 30 are expected to be realized in the following periods, discounted at rates ranging from
0.07% to 6.2% (in thousands):

. 2014 ; 2013
In one year or less $ 53,056 $ 60,024
Between one year and five years 50,313 47,921
Six years and after 5038 1,531
Gross pledges receivable $ 108,407  $ 109,476
Less: present value discount (3,700) (3,083)
Less: allowance for uncollectible pledges (7.449) (11,682)
Pledges receivable, net ] 97,258 ] 94711

The change in net pledges receivable is presented as a non-operating activity in the Statement of Activities.
Investments

Investments at fair value consisted of the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2014 2013
Endowment investments $ 4,535,783 $ 3,802,047
Split-interest agreement investments 125,245 111,744
Operating and ather investments 886,760 810.454
Total investments $ . 5547788 0B 4724245

The framework for measuring fair value utilizes a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value, The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date. The type of
investment in Level 1 includes actively listed equities, US Treasury securities, and exchange traded and registered
funds all held directly by Dartmouth, and excludes listed equities and other securities held indirectly through
commingled funds.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs, including broker quotes, are generally those other than exchange quoted prices in active
markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is deterrnined
through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. The type of investments in Level 2 includes fixed
income securities, derivatives, and comumingled funds that are valued using NAV and are redeemable within 90 days

as of the reporting date.

13



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Level 3 - Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include sitnations where there is litile, if any, market
activity for the investment. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant mariagement judgment
or estimation. The type of investments in Level 3 includes illiquid partnership interests, directly held real estate, and
other commingled funds that are valued using NAV and are redeemable more than 90 days frorn the reporting date.

The inputs or methodology used to value or classify investments for finandal reporting purposes is not necessarily an
indication of the risk associated with investing in those investments.

The following table summarizes Dartmouth’s assets that are reported at fair value by their fair value hierarchy classification as
of June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Leyeld __Total
Assets:
Investments;
Cash sifid cash equivalents $ 246979 $ - $ - $ 246,979
Fixed incomel 199,019 223,254 458 422,731
Global eqiiity:
US equity 587,875 243,987 374,479 1,206,341
International 18,014 231,936 + 249,950
Emerging markets T 48,548 136,360 10,735 - 195,643
Marketable altemnative strategies - 218,858 869,982 1,088,840
Private equity/venhure capital - - 1,033,804 1,033,804
Real asséts:
Real estate . , 17,108 - 571,217 588,325
Other real assets 75,536 - ! 256,412 331,948
Other investments - 116 7,683 779
Contribution in Advance 40,000 - = 40,000
Redemption Receivable . 135,428 = - X 135428
Total investments $ 1368507 §. 1054511 $ 3124770 $ . 5517788

1 Fixed income includes privately held bonds.

The following table lists specified investment terms by asset category for Dartmouth’s interest in certain commingled funds and
private partnership interests that are reported at NAV as of June, 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Redemption Days Unfunded Remaining
Terms . Notice Commibment Life -
Global equity: '
US equity! Ranges from quarterly
to bi-annually 60~90 3 - Not applicable
International Ranges from monthly
to quarterly 6-60 - Not applicable
Emerging markets Ranges from monthly
to bi-annually 30-120 - Not applicable
Marketable altemative strategies? Ranges from quartedy
to every three years 60-180 - Not applicable
Private equity/venture capital Aliquid Not applicable 310,148 1-12 years
Real assets:
Real estate Tliquid Not applicable 126,232 1-12years
Other real assets Miquid Not applicable 109,430 1-20 years
Total 8. o810

1 US equity includes funds that have restrictions on the ability to fully redeem up to five years.
1 Marketable alternative strategies includes funds that have restrictions on the ability to fully redeem up to five years, excluding illiquid securities and special
investments.
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The following table summarizes Dartmouth’s assets that are reported at fair value by their fair value hierarchy classification as
of June 30, 2013 (in thousands):

Redemption Days’
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total —orLiquidation . Notice
Assets:
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 238,098 § - $ - $ 238,098 Daily 1
Fixed income! 165,274 234,258 1 399,533  Daily-Monthly 1
Global equity:
Daily-
US equity? 459,670 260,862 219,113 939,645 Bi-annual 1-90
International 16,841 130,827 - 147,668  Daily - Monthly 1-10
Emerging markets? 42,425 131,686 18,271 192,382  Daily - Annual 1-120
Quarterly-
Marketable alternative strategies? - 193,253 825,199 1,018,452 Annual 30-180
Private equity/venture capital - - 902,367 902,367 Mliquid Not Applicable
Real assets:
1 Day - Not
Real estate 13,637 191,804 381,806 587,247  Daily - lliquid Applicable
1 Day - Not
Otherreal assets 60,917 - 229,051 290,008  Daily - Dliquid Applicable
Other investments - 1,797 7.048 8845 NotApplicable Not Applicable
Total investments gﬂ% 99 A & 1144487 X: g"m ,‘ : 6. 3 £_4724245 ‘ : ’

! Fixed income includes privately held bonds.
1S equity includes funds that may have restrictions on the ability to fully redeem up to five years, excluding spedial investments and other securities that are

non-marketable.

3Emerging markets includes a fund that has a lock-up expiring on or before April 2015.

$Marketable alternative strategies include two funds having initial lock-ups expiring on or before April 2014. Other Ainds may have restrictions on the ability to
fully redeem up to three years, excluding illiquid securities and special investments.

At June 30, 2013, Dartmouth’s outstanding commitments to limited partnerships totaled $437,444,000. The anticipated draw
down for these commitments is typically between 1 and 5 years with remaining fund lives typically between 1 and 12 years.
The structure of these investments is such that there is no ability to redeem, and therefore these investments are considered

illiquid.

The following tables present Dartmouth’s activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 for investments measured
at fair value in Level 3 (in thousands):

Marketable Private

Alternative Equity/Venture Real

Strategies Partnerships Assels Other Assets Total
Balance as of June 30, 2013 $ 825199 $ 902367 % 610,897 § 244433 5 2,582,896
Acquisitions / purchases 124,500 90,065 40,041 31,713 286,319
Distributions / sales (148,197) (248,541 ) (170,277) (13,485) (580,500 )
Transfers In 41,913 - 193,571 62,380 297,864
Transfers Out (77,925) - - (25,536 ) (103,461)
Investment income and realized
gain 57,510 140,856 69,662 4,506 272,534
Change in unrealized gain
on investments 46,982 149.057 83,735 89,344 369118
Balance as of June 30, 2014 5 869982 . § 1033804 % R27.623  § 393355, & 3124770,
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Marketable Private
Alternative Equity/Venture Real
Strategies Partnerships Assets Other Assets Total

Balance as of June 30, 2012 $ 689,325 $ 961,640 $ 650290 $ 213,201 $ 2,514,456
Acquisitions / purchases 103,000 75,721 50,990 23,101 252,812
Distributions / sales 71,755) (250,820) (140,622) (27,977) (491,174)
Investment income and realized gains 57,928 139,423 57,711 10,262 265324
Change in unrealized gain (loss)
on investments 46,701 (23,597) (7.472) 25,846 41478

Balance as of June 30, 2013 5 825193, § Q367 5 610897 5 244433 0§ 2582896

Included in Other Assets in the above tables are fixed income, global equity, and other investments.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are reported at the beginning of the reporting period in which they occur.
Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 are primarily due to changes in liquidity provisions of certain commingled funds available
within 90 days of the measurement date. Transfers from Level 2 to Level 3 are primarily due to Dartmouth’s evaluation of the
liquidity terms of certain commingled funds. Effective July 1, 2013, Dartmouth considers its directly held real estate
investments to be Level 3 investments based on the provision of additional transparency into the observability of inputs.

The following table provides quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of
directly held real estate as of June 30, 2014. Investments in real estate represent the total asset value of each of the underlying
property investments. Significant changes in any one third party appraisal input would likely not result in a significant
change in fair value measuretient to the directly held real estate portfolio, however, actual results could differ materially from
these estimates particularly during periods of investment and/or interest rate volatility.

Valuabion Technique Fair Value! Unobseryable Inputs Input Value(s)

Third party appraisal-income approach $ 183,007 Capitalization rate 6.50 ~9.00%

& comparable sales ! Discount rate 8.00 - 12.00%

Tax assessed value — adjusted annually 19,484 State/Local equalization ratios 947 - 993

Net present value 1,229 Discount rate 3.17%

Cost 593 Not applicable Not applicable
Total § 204313

1 The fair value may be determined using multiple valuation techniques.

The Fixed Income portfolio includes strategies based on capital preservation and predictable yield as well as more
opportunistic strategies focused on generating return through price appredation. These strategies generally include corporate
debt securities, government securities, mortgage backed and asset backed securities and other finandial instruments. The
structures of these investments incude directly held securities as well as investments through commingled funds and
derivatives.

The Global Equity portfolio includes managers who primarily invest in public long-only and long/short equity securities with
portfolios that are direcfonally exposed to the market The structures of these investments include directly held securities as
well as investments through commingled funds.

The Marketable Alternative Strategies portfolio includes investments in commingled funds whose managers employ discrete
and blended strategies, induding long/short equity, absolute retum, market neutral, distressed and credit strategies. Funds
with marketable alternative strategies generally hold securities or other finandial instruments for which a ready market exists,
and niay indude stocks, bonds, put or call options, swaps, futures, currency hedges, and other finandal instruments.

16



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Dartmouth also invests in venture capital, private equity, real estate, other real assets, and other debt related strategies
through private limited partnerships, which are illiquid. These investments often require the estimation of fair value by the
general partner in the absence of readily determinable market values. The private portfolio is based primarily in the United
States but includes managers who may invest globally. Real Estate investments also include real estate investment trust
securities held through publically traded mutual funds as well as directly held real estate. Other real asset investments, in
addition to natural resource limited partnerships, include an exchange traded fund with underlying exposure to commodities.

The following table sets forth the fair value of Dartmouth’s derivative instruments by conkract type as of June 30, 2014 and
gains/losses related to derivative activities for the year ended June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Notional Exposure Fair Value! ;
Long Short Asset Liability . ._NetGain/loss?
Foreign currency forward contracts 46,175 $ (27290) % 327 % (581) § (456)
Fixed income futures contracts 25,776 (67,458 ) 98 (71) (712)
Interest rate swaps - B R - 170
Credit default swaps 8,421 (8.445) 58 (980) . (4361
Total 3 T B0Am_ S (103193) § 483 5 (Q62) § {1534)

tThe net fair value of these derivative instruments is induded in the Statement of Financial Position as investments at fair value.
7The net gain/loss from these derivative instruments is presented in the operating and non-operating sections of the Statement of Activities as ather operating
income and other non-operating changes.

From time to time Dartmouth enters into foreign currency forward contracts and goverrunent bond futures and forwards to
effidently manage portfolio exposures to global currencies and interest rates. These instruments may be used to hedge the
portfolio from unwanted currency and interest rate risk, but also to efficiently implement active duration and relative value
currency strategies. Dartmouth is obligated to pledge to the appropriate broker cash or securities to be held as collateral, as
determined by exchange margin requirements for futures contracts held. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of
Dartmouth’s pledged collateral on futures contracts for investment purposes was $426,000 and $965,000 respectively and is
indluded in investments on the Statemerit of Finandal Position. At June 30, 2013, Dartmouth held forward contracts to buy
foreign currendes in the amount of $12,554,000 and to sell foreign currencies in the amount of $7,482,000. The difference
between the estimated notional value of open futures contracts to sell and purchase securities was a net long position of
$18,551,000 as of June 30, 2013.

From titne to time Dartmouth enters into swap contracts for investment purposes. Interest rate swap contracts are used to
effidently manage portfolio exposures to interest rates. These instruments may be used to hedge the portfolio from unwanted
interest rate risk, but also to effidently implement active duration strategies. The notional amount of contracts that pay based
on fixed rates and receive based on variable rates was $15,100,000 at June 30, 2013. The fair value of the contracts at June 30,
2013 was $274,000 and is included in the Statement of Finandal Position as investments at fair value. The gain on these
contracts was $274,000 and is presented in the operating and non-operating sections of the Statement of Activities for June 30,

2013.

Credit default swaps are used to simulate long or short positions or to reduce credit risk where exposure exists. The buyer of
a credit default swap is obligated to pay to the seller a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract in return for a
contingent payment upon occurrence of a contracted credit event. The seller of a credit default swap bears the obligation to
pay the buyer upon occurrence of a contracted credit event in retum for a periodic stream of fixed payments from the buyer
over the term of the contract. As of June 30, 2013, the total notional amount of credit default swap contracts for protection
purchased was $9,529,000 and the notional amount related to protecion sold was $3,247,000. The fair value of the buy
contracts at June 30, 2013 was approximately ($67,000) and the sell contracts was ($217,000) and are included in the Statement
of Finandal Position as investments at fair value. At June 30, 2013, the loss on the buy contracts was $34,000 and loss on the
sell contracts was $107,000 and are presented in the operating and non-operating sections of the Statement of Activities.
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Endowment

The changes in fair value of net assets held in endowment and similar funds for the years ended June 30 were as follows (in

thousands):
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2013 5 894,595 % 1,854,632 3 984,369 $ 3,733,596
Investment return:
Investment income 7,224 23,949 - 31,173
Net gain in fair value:
Realized 67,381 218,790 - 286,171
Unrealized 108,417 350.097 1,595 460,109
Total investment return 183,022 592,836 1,595 777,453
Gifts 53 2,779 135,624 143,456
Distribution of endowtnent return to all funds (43,940) (144,606) - (188,546)
Other changes, net 2,921 (3.446) 2,785 2,260

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2014

5 1036651 S .. 2307195,

s 1124373 . %

4.468.219

Temporarily Permanently
—Unrestricted  ___Restricted  __ Restricted = ___ Total
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2012 $ 833,511 3 1700362 $ 952511 $ 3,486,384
Investment return:
Investment income 7,432 24,078 - 31,510
Net gain in fair value:
Realized 63,875 201,499 - 265,374
Unrealized 25,848 80.972 1.058 107,878
Total investment return 97,155 306,549 1,058 404,762
Gifts 30 811 27,206 28,047
Distribubion of endowment return to all funds (43,979) (141,499) - (185,478)
Other changes, net 2878 11,591) 3,594 {119)

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2013

3 894595, § 1,854,632

5984260, ... 3733506,

Other changes include additions to the endowment from the maturity of split-interest agreements and net transfers resulting
from changes in donor restrictions or Dartmouth designations.

Included in temporarily restricted endowment net assets at the end of the year is the remaining amount of expendable
accurnulated appreciation on permanent endowment funds of $1,927,893,000 and $1,536,709,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013,

respectively.

Endowment net assets consist of the following as of June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds % “ $ 2225159 § 1,124373 % 3,349,532
Board-designated endowment funds 1,036,651 82,036 - 1.118,687
Total endowment net assets 3 1.036.651 § 2302195 3§ 1124373 % 4.468219
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Endowment net assets consist of the following as of June 30, 2013 (in thousands):

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted __Restricted Total
Donof-restricted endowment funds $ 2y s 1,783,681 § 984,369 § 2,768,038
Board-designated endowment funds 894.607 70,951 = - ..265558 .
Total endowment net assets $ 894595 § 1854632 & 984369 §_ 3.733.5%

From time to time, the fair values of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds miay fall below the
level that the donor or UPMIFA requires to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, events of this
nature are reported as reductions in unrestricted net assets and were $0 and ($12,000) as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. These events were a result of market declines since the endowment funds were established. A Board of Trustees
policy limits the distribution from these funds to current income only, except in cases where the donor directs otherwisé.

Dartmouth emiploys a total retum endowment utilization policy that establishes the amount of investirienit retirn made
available for spending eachfiscal year. The amount appropriated for expenditure each year is independent of the actual
rehirn for the year, but the appropriated amount caninot exceed the total accumulated retumn in an'individual fund at the ime
of distribution, The Board approves the formula that determines the amount appropriated from endowment each year. ‘The
resulting -FY14 endowment distributiori of $188546,000 represents a 5.0% distribution rate when measured against the
prévious year’s June 30% endowmerit market value. Investrent return eamned in excess of the amotint approptiated annually
is reinvested in the funds, but can be appropriated in future years in accordance with the utilization policy. The net
apprediation on most of the permanently and temporarily restricted endowment funds is reported together with temporarily
restricted net assets until such time as all or a portion of the appreciation is appropriated for spending in accordance with'the
utilization policy and applicable state law,

The overall investment -performance objective for the endowment is to generate real (inflation-adjusted) returns net of
investment expenses sufficient to support Dartmouth’s current operating needs while maintaining the long-term purchasing
power of the endowment. Historical averages indicate that an annual return between 8% - 10% is needed to meet this goal.
The Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees has determined that a well-diversified mix of assets offers the best
opportunity for maximum return with acceptable risk over time. Dartmouth relies on a total return strategy in which
investment retums are achieved throiigh both capital appredation (both realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest
and dividends). Investment decisions are made with a view toward maximizing long-term return opportunities while
maintaining an acceptable level of investment risk and liquidity.

Land, Buildings, Equipment, and Construction in Progress

Land, buildings, equipment, and construction in progress balances at June 30 were as follows (in thousands):

2014 . 2013
Land 3 19,158 $ 19,082
Buildings 1,147,098 1,124,809
Land improvements 109,407 109,087
Equipment and software 292,518 281,520
Land, buildings, and equipment 3 1,568,181 3 1,534,498
Less: accumnulated depreciation (708,562 ) (659,012)
Construction in progress 95912 68,841
Total net book value 8 955,531 5 944327
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Dartmouth has conditional assel refirement obligations arising from legal obligations to perform certain activities in
connection with the retirement, disposal, or abandonment of assets, including asbestos abatement, leasehold improvements,
hazardous materials, and equipment disposal and cleanup. The liability was initially recorded at fair valie, and is adjusted
for accretion expense, and changes in the amount or timing of cash flows. The corresponding asset retirement costs are
capitalized as part of the carrying values of the related long-lived assets and depredated over the useful lives of the assets.

Bonds, Mortgages, and Notes Payable

Indebtedness at June 30 consisted of the following (in thousands)

Fiscal Year
Maturity Interest Rate 2014 .. 2013
New Hampshire Health and Education
Fadiliies Authority (NHHEFA):
Tax-Exempt Fixed Rate:
Series 2009 2019 -2039 3.30%-4.77% $ 198875 % 198,875
Tax-Exempt Variable Rate:
Series 2002 2032 03% - .14% 101,000 101,000
Series 2003 2023 .03% - 11% 76,600 83,700
Series 2007A 2031 01%-.11% 89,710 89,755
Series 20078 2041 01% - .11% 75,000 75,000
Subtotal tax-exempt bonds $ 541,185 % 548,330
Taxable Bonds:
NHHEFA Variable Rate:
Series 2007C 2041 06% -.12% 30,000 30,000
Fixed Rate ;
Series 2009 2019 4.75% 250,000 250,000
Series 2012A 2042 4.00% 70,000 70,000
Series 20128 2043 376% 150000 150000
Subtotal taxable bonds 5 500,000 § 500,000
Subtotal bonds $ 1,041,185 $§ 1,048330
Mortgages on real estate Investments:
Fixed Rate 2017 - 2037 4.34% - 5.61% 49,003 50317
Taxable commerdial paper note:
Variable Rate 11% t0.13% 18,900 23,900
Subtotal bonds, mortgages and notes payable $ 1,109,088 $ 1122547
Original issue prernium, net 4,245 4,240
Total bonds, mortgages, and notes payable, net 3 1113333 5 1126787

Included in interest and amortization presented on the Statement of Operating Expenses is interest expense on debt (including
payments on interest rate swap agreements) used to finance fadlities projects of $24,462,000 and $24,324,000, and on other
operating indebtedness of $154,000 and $152,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Inaddition, interest
paid on debt used to finance fadliies projects of $199,000 and $464,000 was capilalized in connection with various
construction projects for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Interest expense on debt used to finance student loans totaled $1,406,000 and $1,406,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and is presented as a deduction from other non-operating earnings in the Statement of Activities. Interest
expense on other non-operating indebtedness totaled $23,297,000 and $23,460,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and is presented as a deduction from other non-operating earnings in the Statement of Activities. Interest
expense on mortgages and debt used to finance endowment-related real estate projects totaled $2,664,000 and $2,625,000 for
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is presented as a deduction in endowment net investment return in
the Statement of Activities. Total interest expense included in the Statement of Activities is $51,983,000 and $51,967,000 for the

years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The aggregate amounts of princpal due for each of the next five years ending June 30 and thereafter are as follows (in
thousands):

—luneso .Principal Due
2015 ' s 77
2016 9,154
2017 27,627
2018 9,909
2019 268,208
Thereafter . - 766,409
Total s . ..1.100088

Principal due after June 30, 2019, includes the following “balloon” payments due on Dartmouth’s indebtedness (in thousands):

June 30 Indebtedness Payment

2027 NHHEFA Series 2007A bonds 3 31,820
2028 NHHEFA Series 2009 bonds $ 32,190
2028 NHHEFA Series 2007A bonds 3 52,060
2029 NHHEFA Series 2009 bonds 3 20,000
2031 NHHEFA Series 2007A bonds 3 5,120
2032 NHHEFA Series 2002 bonds $ 101,000
2036 NHHEFA Series 20078 bonds $ 18,000
2039 NHHEFA Series 2009 bonds 3 138,765
2041 NHHEFA Series 20078 bonds $ 57,000
2041 NHHEFA Series 2007C bonds 3 30,000
2042 2012 Series A bonds $ 70,000
2043 2012 Series B bonds $ 150,000

The estimated fair value of the bonds was approximately $1,095,409,000 and $1,070,035,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The fair value for fixed-rate debt is based on estimates of the prevailing market yield and resulting price for each
maturity of debt. The market yield is impacted by several factors including caredit, length of maturity, coupon, and optional
redemption provisions. Variable rate debt is valued at par since the rate is reset frequently and the bonds are puttable by the
investor and callable by the borrower at any time. Dartmouth considers this to be a Level 2 measurement.

The NHHEFA bonds are a general obligation collateralized only by Dartmouth’s pledge of full faith and credit and by fands

held from time to time by the trustee for the benefit of the holders of the bonds under the respective bond resclutions.
Dartmouth has agreed to certain covenants with respect to encumbrance or disposition of its core campus.
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During fiscal year 2009, Dartmouth entered into six interest rate swap agreements. Information related to these interest rate
swap agreements as of June 30, 2014, including the fixed interest rate paid by Dartmouth and percent of LIBOR BBA (1 month)
received on the notonal principal, is presented in the table below (in thousands):

Fixed % of
Expiration Notional Interest LIBOR
zDate Amoupt Bale%  __ BBA
06/01/2032 $ 100,000 3.75 67
06/01/2041 $ 100,000 373 70
06/01/2027 $ 31,930 377 72
06/01/2028 $ 52,660 378 72
06/01/2042 $ 100,000 373 70
06/01/2043 5 165,000 3.74 70

The fair vahie of these agreements at June 30, 2014 and 2013, based on various factors contained in the interest rate swap
agreements and certain interest rate assumptions, was approximately $141,219,000 and $133,222,000, respectively, and is
considered a Level 2 measurement. The increase of $7,997,000 in the liability for the year ended June 30, 2014 is presented as
an unrealized loss and the decrease of $83,084,000 in the liability for the year ended June 30, 2013 is presented as an unrealized
gain in the non-operating section of the Statement of Activiies. Net payments or receipts under the swap agreements
associated with fadlities debt are reflected as interest expense. These finandial instruments involve counter-party credit
exposure.

Dartmouth maintains stand-by bond purchase agreements with finandal institutions totaling approximately $372,300,000 to
provide alternative liquidity to support its variable rate demand bonds in the event that the bonds cannot be remarketed.
Financing obtained through these stand-by credit agreements to fund the repurchase of such bonds would bear interest rates
different from those assodated with the original bond issues, and mature over a three or a five year period following
repurchase. The agreements have various maturity dates between August 2014 and December 2016. There were no amounts
outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013 under these agreements.

Dartmouth has a $75,000,000 line of credit with a maturity date of December 29, 2014. There have been no borrowings under
this line of credit.
Pension and Other Employment Related Obligations

Liabilities for retirement and postretirement medical benefits, salaries, wages, and other benefits under employment
agreements consisted of the following at June 30 (in thousands):

2014 2013
Retirement and postretirement benefits $ 358,284 $ 242,222
Compensated absences, severance plans, and other commitments 20,244 18,518
Self-insured benefits 11.862 1L710
Total employment related obligations ' s 390,390 s 212450

In fiscal year 1998, Dartmouth revised its pension benefit for staff and non-union service employees, giving each partidpant a
one-time option to either remain in the defined benefit plan or enroll in the defined cantribution plan effective January 1, 1998.
Staff and non-union service employees hired since that date receive retirement benefits under the defined contribution plan.
Effective January 1, 2006, all union employees are enrolled in the defined contribution plan.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Dartmouth’s postretirement medical benefits consist of medical insurance coverage for retirees. Employees hired prior to july
1, 2009 that are 55 or older and have at least ten continuous years of service in a benefils-eligible position immediately prior to
retirement are currently eligible for a subsidy toward the purchase of Retiree Medical Benefits. The subsidy amount was
based on the employee’s annual salary, age, and years of service as of June 30, 2009. For retirees under the age of 65, the
medical insurance options are the same as for active employees. At age 65, the retiree would enroll in the Dartmouth College
Medicare Supplement (DCMS) plan. New employees hired on or after July 1, 2009 are eligible to participate in a Retirement
Savings Match and are eligible to purchase the retiree group medical insurance at full cost if they qualify at retirement.

Information pertaining to the pension and postretirement benefits at June 30 indlude (in thousands):

Pension Benefits _Postretirement Benefits
2014 2013 . 2014 . . 2013
Change in benefit obligation:
Begirihing of year $ 120696 $ 120920 3 26449 $ 274,684
Service cost 2,538 2,708 5,423 7,809
Interest cost 5,558 5,059 12,174 13,435
Benefits paid (7.681) (6:261) (5.364) (4,209)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 13,105 {1,730) 97,881 (65.270)
End of year $ 134216 § 120696 $. 33563 § _ _..226449
Change in estimated fair value of plan assets;
Beginning of year $ 113931 § 112518 % < 8 =
Actual return on plan assets 18,979 3,674 - -
Employer contributions 2,000 4,000 5,364 4,209
Benefits paid (7.681) {6,261 ) (5364) (4,209
End of year $ 127229 8§ 113931 8 - 3 -
Funded status (plan assets less than benefits obligation) £ (6,987) % {6,765} % (336,563} § (226,449}
Net periodic benefit (income) cost included the following:
Service cost ) 2,538 § 2,708 % 5423 § 7.809
Interest cost 5,558 5,059 12,174 13,435
Expected return on assets (6,365) (6,358) - ~
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 240 240 (7,644) (7,644)
Recognized net actuarial loss 2364 3218 4 3127
Net periodic benefit cost 3 4335 % 4867 . 3 9933 & 16,727
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit cost 4.80% 4.40% 545% 4.95%
Expected return on plan assets 6.50% 6.80% ~ -
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% - -
Discount rate used to determine benefit obligations 4.30% 4.80% 4.70% 545%

The increase in the post-retirement benefit obligation is due to the change in discount rate presented above and the use of an
updated mortality table which is reflected in the 2014 actuarial loss of $97,881,000.

The estimated net cost for the defined benefit plan that will be amortized into net periodic cost in fiscal 2015 is $2,532,000. The
estimated net (income) for postretirement benefits that will be amortized into net periodic cost in fiscal 2015 is (51,094,000).
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The increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets resulting from the change in pension and post-retirement benefit obligations

consisted of the following (in thousands):

Pension Post-retirement Total Total
Benefits Benefits 2014 2013
Amounts recognized in non-operating activiies:
Net actuarial gain (loss) $ 491) § (97,881) $ (98,372) $ 64,317
Amortization of gain 2,364 - 2364 6,345
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 240 (7.644) {2.404) (7.404)
Total non-operating gain (loss) 2,113 (105,525) (103,412) 63,258
Amounts recogrized in operating activities:
Net periodic benefit cost {4,335) 9,953) _{14.288) (21.594)
Total gain (loss) $ 022 §. _ _(15478) & (12700) S 41664

The following table summarizes the defined benefit pension plan investments by their fair value hierarchy classification as of

June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 897 $ - $ - $ 897
Global equity . 32,345 - 32,345
Fixed income?! - 90,210 - 90,210
Limited partnerships? - - 3777 3777
Total investments $ 897, 8 12555 § . & 127.229

The following table summarizes the defined benefit pension plan investments by their fair value hierarchy dassification as of

June 30, 2013 (in thousands):

Tevell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 649 $ - $ - $ 649
Global equity . 41,434 - 41,434
Fixed income! - 67,936 - 67,936
Limited partnerships? - - 3,912 3.912
Total investments 5 649 3 109.370 b3 3912 3 113,931

1This category includes fixed income commingled funds and other financial instruments related to fixed income products.

1 This category includes investments in venture capital, private equity, and other real asset private partnerships.

The following table presents activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 for the defined benefit pension plan

investments measured at fair value in Level 3 (in thousands):

Limited

___Partnerships |
Balance as of June 30, 2013 $ 3,912
Acquisibons / purchases 150
Distributions / sales (831)
Investment return 570
Change in unrealized losses on investments 24)
Balance as of June 30, 2014 & 3777
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Limited

Partnerships
Balance as of June 30, 2012 $ 4,148
Acquisitions / purchases 173
Distribubions / sales (853)
Investment return 500
Change in unrealized losses on investments {56)
Balance as of June 30, 2013 % 3912

The overall investment strategy of the defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) is to utilize an asset mix that is designed to meet
the near and longer term benefit payment obligations of the Plan. Over time, the asset mix may include global equity and fixed
income exposures, Global equity exposure is designed to capture the equity market performance of developed markets while
fixed income exposure provides a predictable yield as well as a hedge against changing intetest rates by holding corporate
bonds and ‘other finandal instruments. Other types of investments may indude private equity, venture capital, and other
private real asset partmerships that employ different underlying strategies. Outside investment advisors are utilized to manage
the Plan assets and are selected based on their investment style, philosophy, and past performance. Dartmotith’s investment
office is responsible for managing the asset allocakion and investment risk management of the Plan,

Dartmouth makes annual conitributions to maintain funding for the defined benefit plan on an actuarially recormmmended basis.
Dartmouth currently expects to contribute between $2 million and $4 million to the defined benefit plan in fiscal year 2015.

Benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid in each of the next five years
ending June 30 and thereafter as follows (in thousands):

Pension Postretirement
. Benefits = Benefits
2015 $ 10,000 $ 7,928
2016 9,400 8,808
2017 9,300 9,837
2018 9,600 11,063
2019 9,600 13,490
Years 2020 -2023 46,900 85,217

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the estimated amounts reported for the postretirernent benefit
plan. The miedical cost trend rates for pre-age 65 and post-age 65 retirees, respectively, are assumed to be 7.1% and 7.0% in
year 2015, decrease gradually to 5% and 5% in fiscal year 2023 and 2023, respectively, and remain level thereafter,
Dartmouth’s estimate of postretirement benefit expense and obligations also reflects the impact of the Medicare Prescription
Drug Improvement and Modermnization Act, which provides for tax-free subsidies to employers that offer retiree medical
benefit plans with qualifying drug coverage.

A one percentage point increase (decrease) in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effect (in
thousands):

Increase (decrease) in total of service and interest cost components 3 5,182 $ (4,003)
Increase (decrease) in postretirement benefit obligation $ 64,734 $ (50,728)

Dartmouth also maintains defined contribution retirement plans for its employees. These benefits are individually funded
and are subject to various vesting requirements. Under these arrangements, Dartmouth makes monthly contributions to
individual self-directed retirement investment accounts for the participants. These contributions for the years ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 were $23,967,000 and $24,721,000, respectively. Dartmouth also maintains deferred compensation plans. The
liabilities for the plans are induded in pension and other employment related obligabons in the Statement of Financial
Position.

25



Dartmouth College
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

L Other Operating Income

The major components of other operating income for the years ended June 30 were as follows (in thousands):

Medical School clinical services and other support
Foreign study and continuing education programs
Student activities and other program revenues
Athletics revenues

Hopkins Center and Hood Museum revenues
Other revenues

Investment income

Total other operating inicome

}). Net Assets

2014 2013

$ 55,244 $ 51,304
13,317 13,244

11,037 11,011

4,387 4,523

1,525 1,838

17,444 16,084

, 49602, 33741
8 ' 155 556 8 131745

Additional information pertaining to Dartmouth’s net assets at June 30 is presented below (in thousands):

Detail of net assets:
Operatinig funds
Pledges
Postretirement and pension benefit obligations
Third-party charitable trusts
Fadilities and capital
Interest rate swap agreements
Student loan funds
Life income, annuity, and similar funds
Endowmernt funds
Total net assets

Detail of net assets:
Operating funds
Pledges
Postretirement and pension benefit obligations
Third-party charitable trusts ‘
Facilities and capital
Interest rate swap agreements
Student loan funds
Life income, annuity, and similar funds
Endowment funds

Total net assets

2014
Temporarily Permanently ‘

3 351,467 $ 79736 $ = s 431203

5 81,460 15798 ° 97,258

(343,550) - . (343,550)

.. 6,09 3,816 9,912

425,180 23,807 = 448,967
(141,219) - - (141,219)

21,434 21,913 - 43,347

. 41,785 36,008 77,793
1,036,651 2,307,195 1124373, 4468219
$ 1349963 § 2561992, §. 1179995 § 5001950

2013
Temporarily Penhanénuy‘
Unrestricted —Restricted Restricted . Total -

$ 348479 § 77312 § - s 425,791

- 69,681 25,080 94,711
(233,214) - - (233,214)

- 7,135 6,048 13,183

368,247 30,229 - 398,476
(133,222) - - (133,222)

13,842 28,399 - 2,241

. 34,120 36,008 70,128

894505 __ 1854632 984,369 3,733,596
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Commitments and Contingendies
Cutstanding commitments on uncompleted construction contracts total $36,762,000 at June 30, 2014.

All funds expended by Dartmouth in connection with government sponsored grants and contracts are subject to audit by
governmental agendies. The ultimate Lability, if any, from such audits, is not expected to have a material adverse effect on
Dartmouth’s finandal position.

In conducting its activities, Dartmouth from time to time is the subject of various claims and also has claims against others.
The ultimate resolution of such claims is not expected to have either a material adverse or favorable effect on Dartmouth's
finandal position.

Related Party Transactions

Members of Dartmouth’s Board of Trustees and senior management may, from time to time, be assodated, either directly or
indirectly, with companies doing business with Dartmouth. Dartmouth has a written conflict of interest policy that requires
annual reporting by each Trustee, as well as senior management. Additionally, Dartmouth has a policy on Pecuniary Benefit
Transactions and Related Party Investments. This policy supplements the Dartmouth College Conflict of Interest Policy with
regard to pecuniary benefit transactions, as defined by New Hampshire law, including but not limited to Dartrrouth’s
investment in investment vehicles in which Trustees have a finandal interest. These policies include, among other things, that
no member of the Board of Trustees can partidpate in any dedsion in which he or she (or an immediate family member) has a
material finandal interest When such relationships exist, measures are taken to mitigate any actual or perceived conflict,
including requiring that such transactions be conducted at arm's length, for good and sufficient consideration, based on terms
that are fair and reasonable to and for the benefit of Dartmouth, and in accordance with applicable conflict of interest laws.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of determining the effects of subsequent events on these finandial statements, management has evaluated events
subsequent to June 30, 2014 and through October 20, 2014, the date on which the financial statements were issued, and has
concluded that there were no subsequent events requiring adjustment or disclosure.
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Dartmouth College
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Number

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

Research and Development Cluster:
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
47.082
81.135
93.701
93.701
93.701
93.701
93.701
93.715
93.728

Natjonal Science Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation {(NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
Natonal Science Foundation {NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Sclence Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Sclence Foundation (NSF)

Virginia Polytechnic Institute & State University

Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Harvard University

Nat'l.Cancer Instilute (NCI)

Nat' Cancer Institute (NC)

Nat1 Cancer Institdte (NCI)

Nat1 Inst of Arth & Musculoskeletal Skin{NIAMS)

Agency for Healthcare Research & Quality
University of linols

American Recovery and Reinvesiment Act total

U.S. Depariment of Health and Human Services:
Direct awards (93.RD):
Natiorial Institute of Health

Award Number/Pass-through
Identification Number

ANT-0838896
ARC-0908156
ARC-0909270
AST-0908345
ATM-0921979
CFIE-0848354
CNS-0910842
DEB-0841862
DMR-0905229
EF-0842267
150905206
478219-19715
5710002882
150100.5076158.003
P30CA023108
RO1CA132750
UC2CA 148259
T32AR049710
R18HS019942
2010-03958-11

Public Health Services Center
Subtolal
Subagreements:
93.000 Advanced BioSclence Laboratories, Inc. 11-14005-001-0155-212
93.000 American College of Radiology ACRIN 6654
93.000 Feinsteln Institule for Medical Research DMS01-NON-ARRA
93.000 Yale New Haven Health System NI/A
93.103 New England Pediatric Device Consortium NEPDC-002
93.110 University of New Hampshire 13-073
93.113 Research Foundation of SUNY 1094771-2-57490
93.184 University of Massachusetts, Worcester §147128/RFS52013089
93.184 University of Massachuselts, Worcester WAD015403/RFS2014118
93.226 Union College NIH-TS 1
93.226 University of Michigan 3001694180
93.242 Allegheny-Singer Research Institute NA
93.242 Allegheny-Singer Research Institute N/A
93242 Boston University 4500000977
93.242 Butler Hospital 9064-8340
93.242 Howard University 632201-H000036
93.242 Iinois Institute of Technology SA453-1102-6157
93.242 Johns Hopkins University 20000990332
93.242 Johns Hopkins University IMPACCT PO 2001603366
93.242 Places for People, Inc. DC110607IMR-3
93.242 Rutgers the Slate University 4546
93.242 University of Vermont 22605
93.242 University of Washington 722320
83.242 Yale University M13A11533 (A09085)
93.273 National Development and Research instifutes, Inc. 622C
93.273 National Development and Research Institutes, Inc. 622D
93.279 Johns Hopkins University 2001706094
93.279 Miriam Hospital 710-9865
93.279 National Development and Research Institutes, Inc. §180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Federal
Expenditures

$ 29,407
32,440
26,364
15,871

4,670
30,111
46,038
20,470
30,548
39,240

3,630
24,853
89,766
28,599

148,258
(709)
36,533
1,301
163,211
502,368

—————‘L"T‘_—
1,272,069

84,964,821
2,126,249 .
87,093,070
193,181
127,610
65,178
26,239
20,859
35,681
32,373
19,725
12,237
5,596
35,250
51,019
74,869
66,086
6,969
(9,377)
14,305
24,759
180,430
10,769
8,307
87,307
19,305
21,035
6.217
32,741
39,154
59,514
29,649



Dartmouth College

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2014
Award Number/Pass-through Federal

CFDA Number  Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Identification Number Expenditures
93.279 National Development and Research inslitutes, Inc. 6318 32,517
93.279 National Development and Research Inslitutes, Inc. 631C 46,046
93.279 Oregon Research Institute N/A 26,952
93.279 Universlity of Vermont 22304 SUBS51350 13,006
93.279 University of Vermont 24927 166,820
93.279 University of Vermont NIA (17,941)
93.279 University of Wisconsin-Madison 416K080 56,718
93.279 Westat, Inc. 8954.02.77.03 64,892
93.279 Westat, Inc. $8954 697,560
93.279 Yale University M12A11475 (A0881B) 11,887
93.279 Yale University M12A11475 (A08819) 1,123
93.283 NH Div of Public Health Services N/A 6,333
93.361 Butler Hospital 9021-8340 19,782
93.393 Emory University T179442 2,914
93.393 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center 0000755544 106,149
93.393 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Cenler 0000773824 25,519
93.393 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center 0000788687 95,083
93.393 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center 0000788690 36,004
93.393 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center 0000798534 7.926
93.393 Group Health Research Instilute 2013169197 14,584
93.393 Group Health Research Insttute CA154292-02 234,116
93.393 Group Health Research Inslitute CA154292-02-Dart 113,694
93,393 Group Health Research Institute CA154292-03 315,372
93.393 Group Health Research institule CA154292-03-Darimouth-Onega 162,765
93,393 Harvard University 150096.003 5,923
93.393 Harvard Unlversity 150144.507561.0004 30,082
93.393 Stanford University 60373226-110835K 37,783
93,393 University of Chicago 44706-A 116,365
93,393 University of Hawali Cancer Center 210074296 6,453
93.393 Universlty of Hawall Cancer Center 210046243 22,618
93.393 University of North Carolina at Chapel Hilt 5-30888 280,525
93.393 Universlty of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 5-30987 183,548
93.393 Universlty of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 5-33528 953,601
93.393 University of Pittsburgh 0019106 (120429-3) 118,691
93.393 University of Texas, Hous(on 0009805A 16,431
93.393 University of Washington 659975 101,535
93.393 University of Washington 724576 159,663
93.393 Vanderbilt University VUMC 40616 19,568
93.393 Vanderblit University VUMC40616 (2,704)
93.394 University of California, Irvine 2014-3022 3,872
93.3%4 University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 5-44609 (1,011)
93.394 University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 5-44999 72,487
93.395 Celdara Medical, LLC. N/A 90,938
93,395 Children's Hospital of Philadelphia (CHOP) COG PCR 9,362
93.395 Fred Huichinson Cancer Research Center 0000789863-207806 801
93.395 Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center 0000799972 756
93.395 John Wayne Cancer Institute MSLT-11 1,823
93.395 Massachusetls General Hospital 213580 87,74
93.395 Massachusetts General Hospital 213589 82,537
93.395 Mayo Clinic 63044794 153,715
93.395 Mayo Clinic PO# 63434762 78,180
93,395 Radiation MonHoring Devices, Inc. N/A 40,276
93.395 University of North Carolina al Chapel Hill 27469-34 1,484
93.395 Woomera Therapeitics, Inc. N/A 152,470
93.396 Universlity of Miami N/A 11,810
93.396 Vanderbilt University N/A 5,136
93.396 Vanderbilt University VUMC 40709 44,053
93.396 Wistar Institute 24581-02-365 24,625
93.397 University of Michigan 3002191972 143,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Number

93397
93.399
93.399
93.399
93.610
93.610
93.610
93.632
93.632
93.701
93.701
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.837
93.838
93.839
93.839
93.846
93.846
93.846
93.846
93.846
93.846
93.845
93,846
93.847
93.847
93.847
93.847
93.847
93.852
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.853
93.855
93.855
93.855
93.855

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

University of Texas, M 0 Anderson Cancer Center
Black Hills Center for American indian Health
Black Hills Center for American Indian Health
Southwest Oncology Group

Feinstein Inslitute for Medical Research
Feinsiein Inslitute for Medical Research
Vinten Corporation

Unlversity of New Hampshire

University of New Hampshire

EMMES Corporation

EMMES Corporation

Celdara Medical, LLC.

Celdara Medical, LLC.

Duke University

Duke University

Emory University

Emory University

Emory University

Harvard University

Northeast Ohio Medical University
University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Center
University of Virglnia

Universtty of Virginia

Unlversity of Virginia

University of Michigan

Celdara Medical, LLC.

Yale University

Boston University

Boston University

Boston University

Drexel University

Drexel University

Regents of the University of Minnesota
University of Michigan

Washington University

Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center
Children's Hospital of Philadelphia (CHOP)
Mayo Clinic

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Vanderbilt University

University of Vermont

Brown University

Brown University

Brown University

Brown University

Clarkson University

University of Medicine & Dentistry of NJ
University of Vermont

University of Vermont

University of Vermont

University of Vemmont

University of Vermont

Yale University

Yale University

Avatar Medical, LLC

Cornell University

Harvard University

Harvard University

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Award Number/Pass-through
Identification Number

918164

BHCAIH 5P50CA148110-04
BHCAIH 3P50CA148110-0551

CA37429
500559-DAR-01
500559-DAR-02
1C1CMS330983
13-055

13-055A

3501-001

N/A
2RRHL097464-02A1
NA

177494

179452

N/A

5884537

T095805
150103.5075648.00003
34520-A
RS20130511-03
GC11875-143582
GGC11934 134513
N/A
PO#3002783226
NA

M10A10692 (AD7741)
4500001443
4500001432
4500001443
232514

Subaward # 232514
N000 18851
3001369865
WU-10-157
01024387
DK0B66174
5U01DK065713-06
5-31662

VUMC 41358
28373SUB51600
00000303
00000303/PO1NS065719
00000304

00000304 / PO 1N5065719

375-32228-1

99-705
26913SUB51363
27988SUB51549
27989SUB51543
283775UB51601

N/IA-

A09014/M10A 10508
A09394 M10A10508
under NIAID prime
64289-9879
152471.5061742.0002
152482.5064984.0106

Federal
Expenditures

26,870
37,007
2,696

39,930
97,381
92,103
5,101
13,623
12,414
17.460
8,542
119,285
7,459
106,790
10,496
83,015
25
68.388
11,230
20,308
23,085
9,072
24,369
75,854
4,558
168,517
49,063
366,130



Dartmouth College
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014 :

CFDA Number

93.855
93,855
93.855
93.856
93,856
93,859
93.859
93.859
93.865
93,865
93.865
93.865
93,865
93.865
93.865
93.865
93,865
93.865
93.865
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.868
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.866
93.867
93.867
93.857
93.867
93.879
93.UNK
93,UNK
93.UNK
93,UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK
93,UNK
93.UNK

Subtotal

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

ImmuiNext, Inc.

ImmuRx inc

Regents of the University of Minnesota
University of Alabama

University of Alabama

Marine Biological Laboratory

Parabon Computation Inc

Tuits University

Boston Medical Center

Boston Universily

Bosgtoh Unliversity

Childrens Hospltal Boston

Childrens Hospital Boston

Childrens Hospttal Boston

Childrens Hospital Boston

Simbex

The Administrators of the Tulane Educational Fund
Tufts University

University of Massachusetts, Worcester
Boston University

Harvard University

Harvard University

National Bureau of Economic Research
National Bureau of Economic Research
Thomas Jeflerson University
Univershy of California, San Diego
University of Maryland

University of Maryland

University of Wisconsin-Madison

Yale University

Johns Hopkins University

Thomas Jefferson University
University of Califomia, San Francisco
Universlty of California, San Francisco
indiana University

American College of Radiology
American College of Radiology
Boston University

Boston University

Brown University

Creare, LLC.

CytoSorbents, Inc.

Dana Farber Cancer Institute

Duke University

Fast-Track Drugs and Blologics, Inc.
Fast-Track Drugs and Biologics, Inc.
Group Health Research Institute
Indiana University

Les Centres Gheskio

Les Centres Gheskio

Lewin Group, Inc.

Massachusetts General Hospital
University of Rochester

University of Rochester

University of South Florida

University of Vermont

University of Verrmont

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services total

Award Number/Pass-through Federal
Identification Number Expenditures
N/A 197,870
N/A (350)
N003235801 15,292
000406257017 7.mM
000406231014 8,259
45397 38,202
"1112-1073-51-01 10,919
HS0356 56,524
0330001 23,917
4429-5 27,972
4500000689 45,704
0000458635 31,3712
PO#RSTFDO000537943 2,942
RSTFD0000544213 322,169
RSTFD0000582456 31,966
N/A 101,316
TUL-HSC-466-13/14 16.961
M330001-HS2815 45,430
6147954/RFS2013101 ‘8,208
4500001264 5,430
150122.5075764.0211 19,065
150122.5075764.0311 52,382
33-4135-05-Dartmouth 68,854
83-4023-20-Dartmouth 49,959
080-19000-S01001 36,744
ADC-039 24,946
SR00001553 1,677
SR00002920 10,938
520K376 5,000
C14A11799 (A09232) 45,042
2000925494 35,166
080-19000-R92704 917
5640sc 56,741
7260sc 43,071
IN4887237DC 165,764
RTOG 35,810
N/A 5111
4500001200 20,442
P30 YR2 9,859
PO #P262083 (6.250)
71438 10,153
CYTOSUB0002 69,134
UNIV OF CRICAGO 83,451
210/Z11 * (669)
N/A (10,043)
NCIG-003 (33,027)
HHSN261201100031C 66,631
Amend #3 (5,137)
N/A 12,467
YR6 10,810
N/A 919
217708 158,070
5-23280 8.439
5-23281 27,138
U01-DK061055 15,954
25992 YR2 6,994
25992-Danimouth 2 34,971
11,850,904
98,943,974

The accompanying notes are an integral par! of this schedule.
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CFDA Number

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

National Science Foundation:
Direct awards (47.RD)

Subagreements:

47.041
47.050
47.050
47.070
47.074
47.074
47.074
47.074
47.074
47.078
47.078
47.079
47.081

Sublotal

Norwich Technologies

Boston University

Stanford University

University of Massachusetts, Lowell
Purdue University

University of North Carolina at Chape! Hill
University of North Carolina at Chape! Hill
University of Wyoming

Virginia Polytechnic Instiute & State University
University of Colorado-Boulder

University of New Hampshire

Oregon State Unliversity

University of New Hampshire

National Science Foundation totat

U.S. Department of Defense:
Direct awards (12.RD)

Subagreements:

12,000
12.000
12.000
12.000
12.000
12.300
12.300
12.420
12,420
12420
12.420
12.420
12.431
12.431
12,431
12.431
12.431
12.598
12.800
12.800
12.800
12.UNK
12.UNK
12.UNK
12.UNK
12.UNK
12.UNK
12.UNK

Sublotat

University of California, San Diego
Unlverstity of Californta, San Diego
University of Californla, San Diego
Unlversity of Californta, San Diego
Wistar Institule

Creare, LLC.

Naval Postgraduate School
Mlicord, LLC

Milcord, LLC

Rutgers the State University
University of Texas, Houston

Veterans Medical Research Foundation (VMRF)

George Mason University
University of Califoria, San Diego
University of iHlinois

University of Illinois

University of Wisconsin-Madison
Arctan, Inc.

Securboration, Inc.

University of Texas, £l Paso
University of Texas, El Paso
Clinical Research Management, inc.
Clinical Research Management, Inc.
Creare, LLC.

Creare, LLC,

Creare, LLC.

Massachusetts Inslilute of Technology
Unlversity of California, San Diego

U.S. Department of Defense total

The accompanying notes are

Award Number/Pass-through
Identification Number

N/A

GC176992NGA
60398977-109515-A
$52100000014133
4101-19822
5-37375

5-54963

NSF40391
479065-19715
1548198

10315327
10316818
10317739
10320526
35441-02-365
70711
N00244-14-1-0021
N/A

SC-1109-01
00003416
00096718
07969-01-301695
E2030472
10291747
2013-00347-01
2013-00635-04 (A0342)
419K812

N/A

30004
2014054558
2014054629
Barimouth-09-01
Darimouth-13-01
62967

€6231

70438

PO 7000267034
10313358

an integral part of this schedule.
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Federal
Expenditures

9,724,532

36,939
63,731
25,810
6,700
261,928
369,053
253,658
12,673
199
74,024
6.421
22,225

— 267,307

1,400758
11,125,290
5,042,121

2,089
10,364
2,812
5,541
13,087
24,550
16,935
6,537
29,893
106,761
11,031
53,650
222,684
516,196
" 79,150
21,899
130,633
233,551
50,077
38,548
171,515
49,102
1,471,867
21,172
5,533
14,116
14,078

19,753
3,343,121
8385247



Dartmouth College

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Number  Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration:
Direct awards (43.RD)

Subagreementis:
43.000 Massachusetts Institule of Technology
43.000 University of New Hampshire
43.000 University of New Hampshire
43.001 Johns Hopkiris University
43.001 Massachuselts Institute of Technology
43.001 Smithsonian Astrophysical Observatory (SAO)
43.001 Smithsonian Astrophysical Observatory (SAO)
43.001 Smithsonian Astrophyslcal Observatory (SAO)
43001 Smithsonian Astrophysical Observatory (SAO)
43.001 University of Colorado-Bouldar
43.001 University of New Hampshire
43.001 University of Wyoming
43.UNK Johns Hopkins University
43.UNK Regents of the University of Minnesota
Subtolat

11.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration lotal
U.S. Department of Agricutture:
Direct awards (10.RD)

Subagreements:
10.652 University of Maine

Subtotal
U.S. Department of Agricuiture total
Veteran's Administration:
Direct awards (64.RD, 27.RD)

Subagreements:
27.011 Velerans Educ & Resrch Assoc of New England

Sublotal
Veteran's Administration tota)
U.S. Department of Commerce:
Direct awards (11.RD)
U.S. Department of Commerce total

U.S. Department of Energy:
Direct awards (81.RD)

Subagreements:
81.000 Battelie
81.000 University of New Hampshire
81.049 Rutgers the State University
81.113 University of South Florida
81.122 University of jtiinois
81.UNK Battelle Energy Alliance, LLC
B1.UNK Mascoma Corporation

Subtotal

U.S. Depariment of Energy total
U.S. Department of Homeland Security.
Direct awards (97.RD)

Subagreements:
87.061 University of Texas, El Paso

Subtotal
U.S. Depariment of Homeland Security lotal

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this schedule.
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Award Number/Pass-through
identHfication Number

5710002466
13-049
13-065
113901
5710003372
GO00-11135C
GO2-13150A
GO3-14150A
SP8-9001 A
1549373
10-082
1001478
107457
X5336545104

UM-5860

N/A

4000115284

08-028

4566 PO #51646988
2106-1154-00-A
2010-01251-01
00123736
MASCOMA

26-3001-82-81

Federal
Expenditures

3,318,111

100,580
50,290
322,622
40,487
91,778
1,196
9,877
16,742
2,316
51,666
119,974
39,143
14,645

120,641
. 981,968

4,300,080
286,145

17,068
17,068

303213 .

31,371

7.533
7,533
38,904

212,400
212,400

450,382

1,203,255
136,085
18,435
31,598
235,343
177,376
436,820
2,238,912
2,689,294

521,614

692
692

520,922



Dartmouth College
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cluster Tile/CFDA

Number Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:
Direct awards (66.RD)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency fotal

U.S. Department of Education:
Direct awards (84.RD)

Subagreements:
84.133 Boston University
84.133 University of Massachusetts, Worcester
84.UNK Harvard University .
Subtotal

U.S. Department of Education total
Other direct federal awards:

45.161 National Endowment for the Humanities
45.169 National Endowment for the Humanities
45.169 Natlonal Endowment for the Humanities
Subtotal
Subagreements:
15.000 Georgia Institute of Technology
15.650 Michigan State University
15.UNK Bureau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement (BSEE)
15.UNK Bufreau of Safety and Environmental Enforcement (BSEE)
20.UNK Massachusetts Institute of Technology
96.007 Unliversity of Michigan
96.007 University of Michigan
98.UNK Program for Appropriale Technology In Health (PATH)
Subtotal

Total Research and Development Clusler

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
U.S. Department of Education:

Other direct awards:
84.007 SEOGFY14
84.033 FWS FY13
84.033 FWS FY14
84,063 Pell FY14
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Highway Safety Cluster:
Subagreements:
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 ° NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency
20.600 NH Highway Safety Agency

Totat Highway Salety Cluster

Other Sponsored Programs:
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:

93.000 ICF Macro
93.702 Nat Center for Research Resources (NCRR)
93.UNK Booz Allen Hamilton, Inc.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act total

Award Number/Pass-through
Identification Number

4500001127
6147298/RF52013094
108074-5025571

RQ-50470-10
HD-51394-11
HK-50021-12

RC051-S4
#125607/RC102549 Dartmouth
E12PC00064

E12PC00033

5710003653

300251870UM 13-07
3002852924UM14-01
AID.1470-08669-CRT

P007A132503
P033A122503
P033A132503
PO63P131791

304-135-001
304-135-002
304-135-003
304-135-006
304-145-001
304-145-002
304-145-003
304-145-004
308-135-005
308-145-005

635243-105-1567
CO6RR030432
1013118B23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Federal
Expenditures

438.529

438,529
719,661

5487
1,675

123,465

130,627
850,288

42,565
17,160

{8,870)
50,854

47,625
5,064
63,587
134154
11,415
65,492
16,033

23849

. 367.220
129,499,179

799,883
(229)
1,037,571

—..2,268502
4,105,827

16,094
30,163
20,369
4,218
53,984
102,732
12,973
32,761
4,185
9,047
286,526

135,704
2,529,853
199,493

2,865,050
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Subtotal of 93.283

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Award Number/Pass-through Federal
CFDA Number  Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Identification Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direcl awards:
93.107 Health Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) U77HP03627-09-00 192,186
93.110 Health Resources & Svcs Admin (HRSA) 2 T73MC00024-17-00 832,874
93.127 Health Resources & Svecs Admin (HRSA) 2H33MC06727-08 118,483
93.127 Health Resources & Svcs Admin (HRSA) H34MC26202 130,630
Subtotal of 93.127 249,119
93.153 Healih Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) H12HA24881 454,675
93.243 Substance Abuse & Mental Health Services Admin U79SM057261 37.693
93.249 Health Rescurces & Sves Admin (HRSA) UB6HP20157 349,929
93.398 Nat'l Cancer Inslitute (NCI) 1F31CA177203 41,418
93.398 Nat1 Cancer Institute (NCI) 5F30CA168079-02 6,326
93,398 Nat} Cancer Institute (NC) F30CA168079 31,984
93.398 Nat1 Cancer Institute (NCI) F32CA144579 26_,085 ‘
Subtotal of 93,398 ) 105,813
93.610 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 1C1CMS331028-01-00 8,795,716
93.652 Adminislration for Children and Families 80C0O1098 £42,130
93.847 Nat1Inst of Diabetes & Digest & Kidney (NIDDK) F30DK094540 47,756
93.853 Nat1 Inst of Neurological Disord & Stroke (NINDS) F31NS077537 38,780
93.853 Natl Inst of Neurological Disord & Stroke (NINDS) F320NS064637 —
Subtotal of 93.853 - 3BTTY
93,855 Nat' Inst of Allergy & Infectious Diseases (NIAID) R13Al1106435 1,898
93.867 National Eye Institute (NE) F32EY023165 50,176
93.918 Health Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) H76HA00812 369,466
93.928 Health Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) HO7HA25006 54,982
93.969 Health Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) UB4HP19206 479,024
93.989 John E. Fogarty Intemational Center (FIC) D43TW006807 307,683
93.989 John E. Fogarty Intemational Center (FIC) D43TW009573 153,008
93.989 John E. Fogarty Intematlional Center (FIC) R25TW007693 210,398
Subtotal of 93.989 .. 671,089
93.UNK Health Resources & Sves Admin (HRSA) (Non LOC) HHSH250201200022C 360,574
93.UNK Nat Library of Medicine (NLM) HHSN276201300129P 9,091 .
Subtotal 13,742,971
Subagreements:
93.000 NH Div of Public Health Services 1026040 27,139
93.000 NH Div of Public Health Services SFY2013 e 1.801)
Subiotal of 93.000 25,738
93.067 Les Centres Gheskio N/A 22,393
93.067 Les Centres Gheskio N/A £1,588
Subtotal of 93.067 83,981
93.069 NH Div of Public Health Services SFY 2012-2013 3,759
93.070 NH Department of Environmental Services 03-44-44-442010-2047-102.5 44,254
93.110 Mount Sinai School of Medicine 0253-6541-4609 {386)
93.136 NH Depl of Health & Human Services 80004015 {12,882)
93.136 NH Dept of Health & Human Services 90004015-REV 17,656
Sublotal of 93.136 . 4774
93.145 University of Massachusetts Memoriat Medical Ctr 6144040-ETC-06 (1)
93.145 University of Massachusetts Memorial Medical Ctr WAQ0120885-ETC08 61,688
Subtotal of 93.145 61,687
93.283 NH Dept of Health & Human Services 711472-09 1,446
93.283 NH Div of Public Health Services 1017170 36,709
93.283 NH Div of Public Health Services Fri4 232,444
93.283 NH Div of Public Health Services N/A 633.499
804,098
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Number

93.361
93.652
93.865
93.889
93.889

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program

Women & Infants Hospital

NH Dept of Health & Human Services
Women & Infants Hospital

NH Div of Public Health Services

NH Div of Public Health Services

Subtolat of 93.889

93.989
93.994
93.UNK
93.UNK
93.UNK

Subtotal

Les Centres Gheskio

NH Div of Public Health Services

National Rural Health Associatlon

NH Dept of Heaith & Human Services
North Country Health Consortium (NCHC)

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services total

National Science Foundation:

Direct awards:
47.070
47.076
47.076
47.076
47.076

National Science Foundation (NSF)
Natlonal Science Foundation (NSF)
National Science Foundation (NSF)
National Sclence Foundation (NSF)
Nalional Science Foundation (NSF})

Subtotat of 47.076

Subtotal

Subagreements:

47.076

Community College System of New Hampshire

National Science Foundation total
U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Direct awards:
43.001
43.008

Sublotal

Subagreements:

43.000
Subtotal

NASA Goddard Space Flight Center
NASA Goddard Space Flight Center

University of New Hampshire

U.S. National Aeronautics & Space Administration total

Veleran's Administration:

Direct awards:
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27,01
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011
27.011

Department of Veterans Affalrs
Department of Veterans Affairs
Depariment of Veterans Affairs

VA Maryland Health Care Systern
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Cenler
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junclion VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center
White River Junction VA Medical Center

Subtotal of 27.011

Subagreements:

27.011
Subtotat

Veterans Educ & Resrch Assoc of New England

Veteran's Administration total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Award Number/Pass-through
Identification Number

9613

N/A

9613

SFY 2011
STNHFY14

NA
1003160
N/A
1021329
N/A

11S-1228475

DGE-0801490
DGE-0947790
DRL-1010577
DUE-0941836

NSF DUE-1104106

NNX12AK60H
NNX10AL81H

11015

VA241-12-C-0132
VA241-13-C-0196
VAT741-13-C-0011
PO#1:512D67089
405-C37383
405C37411
405-C37421
405-C47317
405CA7318
405-C47344
405037004
405-D37005
405-D47003

N/A
V0024iP-00100
VA105-C00462

N/A

Federal
ExpendRures

10,800
129.946
10
(2,448)
113,416

110,968

33,736
(1,298)
(537)

1,041,071

3,909

D ——

2,456,600

16,199,571

344
346,850
586,082
493,623

14,806
1,441,461
1441 805

50,268 ;
1,492,073

26,999
1.414

28,413

B — e

182,867

182,867
211,280

R A

23,153
82,650
480,806
(6,144)
7,278
16,436
9,821
5,269
31,943
52,633
12,829
42,961
9,773
16,487
3,963
2,725
792,582

149.103
149,103
941,685



Dartmouth College

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2014

CFDA Number Federal Grantor/Pass-through Granlor/Program

U.S. Department of Defense:
Direct awards:
12.901 National Security Agency (NSA)
Sublotat
Subagreements:
12.431 University of lifinois
Sublotal
U.S. Departmenit of Delensa tota)
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Direcl awards:
10.914 Natural Resources Conservation Service (NON-LOC)
10.UNK Natural Resources Conservation Service (NON-LOC)
Subtotal
Subagreements:
10.914 Natural Resources Canservation Service
U.S. Depariment of Agriculture total

U.S. Deparntment of Education:

Direct awards:
84.133A Department of Education
84.200 Deépariment of Education
84.200A Deparmeni of Education
84.200A Departmént of Education
84.200A Departmeri of Education
84,200A Departmant of Education

Sublotal of B4.200A
U.S. Department of Education total
National Endowment for the Arts:

Direct awards:
45169 National Endowment for the Humantles
45.024 National Erdowrnent for the Arts (NEA)
45.024 National Endowment for the Ars (NEA)
Subtotal of 45.024
45.301 institite of Museum and Library Services
Subtotal
Subagresments:
45.025 New England Foundation for the Arts
45.025 New England Foundation for the Ans
45.025 New England Foundation for the Arts
45.025 New England Foundation for the Ars

Subtotal of 45.025
National Endowment for the Arts total
Other Federal Agencles:
Direct awards:
99.000 Tennessee Valley Authority
Subtotal

Subagreements:
97.067 NH Div of Public Health Services
98.UNK Program for Appropriale Technology in Health (PATH)
19.UNK IREX
98.UNK University Research Co., LLC
98.UNK Republic of Rwanda Ministry of Health
Subtotal
Other Federat Agencies total
Tetal Other Sponsored Programs
Grand Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Award Numbers/Pass-through
Identification Number

H98230-12-1-0293

2013-00635-01 (A0342)

811428130GK
EQIP 2008 741428130C4

7214280708P

H133A120164
P200A 100031
P200A120038
P200A120041
P200A 120042
P200A120087

HK-50021-12
13-5400-7069
14-5400-7038

MA-30-13-0480-13

13-26181
13-26226
13-26228
13-26232

5462

NNEMMRS
GAT.1387-05810-CRT
FY14-YALI-Dartmouth-01
FY11-A08-7500

NIA

Federal
Expenditures

3,735

3,735

12,1071
12,101

15,836

17477
9,062
26,539
38,000
64,629

142,917
34,525
26,066

60,591
27,096

230,604

5,000
7,500
9,000
8,500
30,000
260,604

120,510
120,510

164
6,945
59,180
82,608
850,005
558,502
1,119.412
24,402,247
$ 158,293,780



Dartmouth College
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2014

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule”) summarizes the
expenditures of Dartmouth College (the “College” or “Dartmouth”) under federal government
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governmentls and Nonprofit Organizations. Negative amounts on the
Schedule represent adjustments to expenditures reported in the prior year. The Schedule includes
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) and pass-through award numbers when available.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts, and similar agreements
entered into directly between the College and agencies and departments of the federal government
and all subawards to the College by nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal grants, contracts,
and similar agreements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for Federal Award Expenditures

Expenditures for direct and indirect costs are recognized as incurred using the accrual method of
accounting and the cost accounting principles contained in the OMB Circular A-21, Cost Principles
for Educational Institutions, and the regulations of the specific programs. Under those cost
principles, certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Facilities and Administrative Costs

Dartmouth recovers facilities and administrative (F&A) costs associated with research and
development pursuant to arrangements negotiated with the Department of Health and Human
Services (DHHS). Dartmouth submitted an F&A cost proposal in the fall of 2011 for negotiated
F&A rates that became effective July 1, 2011. Dartmouth's F&A cost rate for fiscal year 2014 is
62% for on-campus research.

4, Federal Student Loan Programs

Loans made to eligible students and parents under federal student loan programs during the year
ended June 30, 2014 are not included in the Schedule, and are summarized as follows:

Title IV Program Federal Perkins Loan Program (Perkins) $ 4,103,992
Federal Direct Student Loans 27,898,475

3 32002467

Federal direct loans are issued by the U.S. Depariment of Education directly to students and their
parents. The balances and transactions relating to these loans are not included in Dartmouth’s
financial statements.

The Perkins loans are administered and serviced directly by Dartmouth. The Perkins Loan
Program principal cancelled for the year ended June 30, 2014 is $60,892. In addition, Dartmouth
continues to service Health Education Assistance Loans (HEAL) which were issued in previous
years. Balances and transactions retating to these loans are included in Dartmouth'’s financial
statements.
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The balances outstanding on these loans at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Perkins $ 23,062,692
HEAL 176,515

$ 23,239,207

For the year ended June 30, 2014, Dartmouth claimed $275,593 in administrative cost allowances
related 1o its student financial assistance programs, which are not included in the Schedule.

5. Pass-Through Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2014, Dartmouth received awards directly and from federal agencies,
which were passed through to suprecipients. The amounts passed through are as follows:

Research and development $ 18,419,466
Other 6,359,791

These amounts are included in the total expenditures shown on the Schedule.
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth College:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Dartmouth College (the “College™), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014,
and the related statement of activities, operating expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the College’s
internal control over financial reporting (“intemnal control”) to determine the audit précedures that are
dppropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Collége's intemal
control. ‘Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s intemal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in intemnal conlrol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matenial misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis,

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 125 High Street, Boston, MA 02110
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College's financial statements are free from
matenial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemat control and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal
contral or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audiling Standards in considering the College's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

P('\ cquazCJLoMC_o-(»/: e

Boston, Massachusetts
October 20, 2014
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Interpal
Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Trustees of Dartmouth College:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Dartmouth College’s (the “College”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014,

The College’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsiblility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College's major federal programs
based on 6ur audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College's compliance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 125 High Street, Boston, MA 02110
T: (617) 530 5000, F: (617) 530 5001, www.pwc.com/us



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requiremeénts
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2014.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed two instances of noncompliance, which are required to
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-001 and 2014-002. Our opinion on each major
federal program is not modified with respect to this matter.

The College’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The College’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no apinion on the

response.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of comipliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal conlrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A malerial weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deflciency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, i internal coritrol over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material

43



it

pwe

weakness in intemmal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
. with govermnance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described-in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The-purpose of this report on internat control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pei cc.uJo—ClLau.aLC.o-Pv: LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 26, 2015



Dartmouth College
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

1.

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
internal control over financial reporting:
» Materal weakness(es) identified? —_—Yes —X__no
» Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not )
considered to be material weakness(es)? —_—.YES _X__.none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements yes _X_no
noted?
Federal Awards
Intemal control over major programs:
» Material weakness(es) Identified? —_—Yes —X__no
+ Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? — . yes __X__ none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are requiredtobe __x__yes Do
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
OMB Circutar A-1337 .
ldentification of Major Programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Various Research and Development Cluster
93.610 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
93.702 Nat'l Center for Research Resources (NCRR)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between  $3,000,000

type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes __X__no

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards

None noted.
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Dartmouth College
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2014-001

Research and Development Cluster

Grantor; National Cancer Institute, Tufts University and Office of the Director

Grant Name: Effectors Myc Function, Leaders YR31 S4, NCCC Core, Invasive Behavior,
Mechanistic Analysis and Orbitrap

CFDA Number: 93.393, 93.859 and 93.351

Award Year: July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014

Criteria

Institutions of higher education, hospitals, and other non-profit organizations shall follow the
provisions of OMB Circular A-110. OMB Circular A-110 requires that equipment be used in the
program for which it was acquired or, when appropriate, other Federal programs. Equipment
records shall be maintained, a physical inventory of equipment shall be taken at least once every
two years and reconciled to the equipment records, an appropriate control system shall be used to
safeguard equipment, and equipment shall be adequately maintained.

Condition
Throughout testing of equipment inventory, we noted three departments had not completed their
physical inventory counts within the two year requirement as of June 30, 2014.

Questioned Cost
None noted.

Cause

The cause of this noncompillance Is due to the implementation of a new fixed assets system during
fiscal 2014. The College had technical issues with the new radio frequency identification tags
(RFIDY}; these tags were intended to assist in performing equipment inventories, however, the
RFIDs were not ready for use. As the College tracks equipment inventories on a departmental
basis, the inventory is not completed until all items within that department are inspected. Due to
this policy, the inventory was not completed within the two year requirement. All required
inventories have been completed to date.

Effect
Federally funded equipment could be sold, transferred or disposed of without the knowledge of the

College.

Recommendation

We recommend that the College implement the necessary policies and procedures to ensure that
all departments that have federally funded equipment perform a physical inventory within the two
year requirement.

Management's Views and Corrective Action Plan

Management's views and corrective action plan is included at the end of this report after the
summary schedule of prior audit findings.
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Dartmouth College
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Finding 2014-002

Other Sponsored Programs

Grantor: Department of Health and Human Services

Grant Name: The high value healthcare collaborative: engaging patients to meet the triple aim
CFDA Number: 93.610

Award Year: July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014

Criteria

Institutions of higher education, hospitals, and other non-profit organizations shall follow the
provisions of OMB Circular A-110. OMB Circular A-110 requires that cost transfers occur within a
reasonable time after the original charge (defined by institutional policy or federal regulation).

Condition Found and Perspective

During fiscal year 2014, there were 52 wage related cost transfers and 25 non-wage related cost
transfers for a total of 77 transfers for this award. Of the 25 non-wage related cost fransfers
performed during fiscal year 2014, we selected four for testing from this award and did not note any
exceptions. Of the 52 wage transfers for this award, none were selected for review. However,
management brought to our attention that during fiscal year 2014, six employees' labor allocations
were adjusted incorrectly and outside the time period required for compliance with Dartmouth's
wage transfer policy. This policy states that wage transfers should be completed within 90 days of
the original charge. Although the adjustments were not in compliance with Dartmouth’s policy, the
costs were determined to be allowable. The impact to fiscal year 2014 was removal of $49,000 of
salary and fringe benefit costs (from a total of $1.2 million for the award).

Questioned Costs
None noted.

Cause
The cause of this noncompliance was a misunderstanding of Dartmouth's policy by the grant

manager.

Effect
The costs associated with a grant could be over/under stated.

Recommendation
We recommend that Dartmouth reiterate the importance of its policies and procedures around cost

transfers to grant managers and principal investigators in order to ensure there is an understanding
of the impact when such policies and procedures are not followed.

Management’s Views and Corrective Action Plan

Management’s views and corrective action plan is included at the end of this report after the
summary schedule of prior audit findings and status.
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Dartmouth College
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Finding 2013-1

Research and Development Ciuster .

Grantor: National Science Foundation and Department of Defense

Award #: CNS-1205521, W911NF-12-1-0607, AST-1211384 and BCS-1222531
CFDA Number: 47.070, 12.431, 47.049 and 97.075

Award Year: July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013

Condition

During the other auditor's testing over equipment, they noted there are 43 deparimental units with
equipment purchased through federal grants. The other auditor noted that 6 of the 43 departments
had not completed and reconciled their physical inventory within the two year requirement.

Recommendation

The other auditor’s recommended that Dartmouth implement the necessary policies and
procedures to ensure that all departments that received federal funds to purchase equipment have
a physical inventory performed every two years.

Status

Dartmouth College implemented Oracle’s Fixed Assets module for tracking assets in

November 2013. A second phase of the project scheduled to be completed in fiscal year 2014 was
to implement a radio frequency identification tag (RFID) system to assist in performing the
equipment inventories. Due to technical issues, the system didn't go live until October 2014, As
part of the system implementations, Dartmouth's policies, procedures and training materials have
been updated to improve compliance with biennial inventory requirements. Although a similar
finding was identified in fiscal 2014, the College has shown improvement as a resuit of the system
implementation with all inventories being completed. The inventories were not completed,
however, within the required two year period. Refer to the current year finding for more
information.
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Dartmouth College
Procurement Services » 7 Lebanon Sireer » Suite 313 « Hanover » New Hampshire - 03753
Tel: (603) 646-281) » Fox: (603) 646-3810 « E-mail: procuremeni.servicesi@durtmonth edit

November 18, 2014

To Whom it May Concern:
Re:- A-133 Audit Findings on Equipment Inventories

Dartmouth's Management Response: Dartmouth College implemented Oracle’s Fixed Assets module
for tracking assets in November 2013. A second phase of the project scheduled to be completed in fiscal
year 2014 Was to impler;’r'lent a radio frequency identification tag (RFID} system to assist in performing
the equipment inventories. Due to technical issues, the system didn’t go live until October 2014. As ‘
part of the system implementations, our policies, procedures and training materials have been updated

to improve compliance with biennial inventory requirements.

Thanks,

-

Tammy L. Moffatt
Director of Procurement, Payables and inventory




Dartmouth College

Office of Sponsored Projects
1! Rope Ferry Rood, HB 6210
Hanover, NH  03755-1404

TELEPHONE (603) 645 - 3007
FAX (603)646-3670

EMAIL: sponsored.projects@dartmouth. edu

March 23, 2015

To Whom it May Concern:
Re: A-133 Audit Finding on Transfers

Dartmouth’s Management Response: Management notified the auditors when the policy exceptions were
discovered. Charges in question represent actual work performed on the grant but were not charged timely in
accordance with Dartmouth College policy. Dartmouth has informed the funding agency and will correct all
charges to the grant that were not processed in compliance with our wage transfer policy. The departmentin
question is receiving training from the Office of Sponsored Projects on appropriate processes related to labor
charges.

Jilt Mortali
Director, Office of Sponsored Projects
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BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH

Provide the following information for the Senior/key personnel and other significant contributors.
Follow this format for each person. DO NOT EXCEED FIVE PAGES.

NAME: Rees, Judith

POSITION TITLE: Assistant Professor

EDUCATION/TRAINING (Begin with baccalaureate or other initial professional education, such as nursing,
include postdoctoral training and residency training if applicable. Add/delete rows as necessary.)

DEGREE Completion
(if Date FIELD OF STUDY

INSTITUTION AND LOCATION applicable) | MM/YYYY

Oxford University, England BA 06/85 Physiological Sciences
Oxford University, England BM,BCh 06/88 Medicine

University of California, Berkeley MPH 05/96 Epidemiology
University of California, Berkeley PhD 05/01 Epidemiology

A. Personal Statement

| am a physician-epidemiologist in the Department of Community and Family Medicine and the Department of
Epidemiology at the Geisel School of Medicine, Dartmouth College. I graduated in medicine from Oxford
University and completed a three-year general practice residency in the United Kingdom, followed by an MPH
and PhD in Epidemiology from the University of California, Berkeley. My expertise includes cancer
epidemiology and prevention, disease surveillance methodology, and I have been the Director of the New
Hampshire State Cancer Registry since 2004.

B. Positions and Honors

Positions and Employment
1988-1989 Intern, Medicine & Gastroenterology, Northampton General Hospital, UK

1989 Intern, General Surgery and Urology, Churchill Hospital, Oxford, UK
1989-1990  Programmer, Welsh Health Services, Cardiff, UK
1990 Resident, Accident & Emergency Department, St. Helier Hospital, Surrey, UK

1991-1994 Resident, General Practice (Obstetrics/Gynecology, Pediatrics, Internal Medicine,
Rheumatology, Palliative Care, Psychiatry), Northampton General Hospital, UK

1994 George Herbert Hunt Traveling Scholarship (Oxford University)

1995-2001 Surveillance Officer, California Emerging Infections Program (CEIP), San Francisco, CA

1997-1998  Non-Resident Tuition Scholarship (University of California, Berkeley)

1997-2000  Project Director, Drinking Water Evaluation Trial, (CEIP), Berkeley, CA

1998-1999  University Fellowship for Graduate Study in Public Health (University of California, Berkeley)

2002- Research Assistant Professor, Biostatistics and Epidemiology, Dartmouth Medical School, NH

2004- Cancer Epidemiology and Chemoprevention Research Program member, Norris Cotton Cancer
Center, Lebanon, NH

2004- Director, New Hampshire State Cancer Registry

2008- Course Director, Biostatistics & Epidemiology (a core course for year 1 medical students)

2008- Member, American Cancer Society/Norris Cotton Cancer Center Local Institutional Research

Grant Committee, Lebanon, NH



-

Other Experience and Professional Memberships

-2005 NH Chronic Disease Conference Planning Committee

2005-2007  NH Advisory Panel on Cancer and Chronic Disease

2006 NH DHHS Evaluation Design of the NH Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration RFP review panel
2006 NH DHHS Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration Management RFP review panel

2005-2008  NH Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration: Steering Committee & Emerging Issues Committee
2005- NH Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration: Data Use Committee

2007- NH State Cancer Registry Advisory Panel

2009- Medical Education Committee, Dartmouth Medical School

2010- Medical Advisory Board, New Hampshire Colorectal Cancer Screening Program

2010 Prevention Translation Supplement Awards Review Committee, Canadian Cancer Society
2013- PLOS ONE Editorial Board

C. Contribution to Science

1. Skin cancer epidemiology and multiple malignancies: | have combined my roles as a co-investigator on the

study “Non-Melanoma Skin Cancer in New Hampshire” (Pl, Karagas), and director of the New Hampshire

State Cancer Registry to conduct linkage studies assessing the risk of cancer and death after keratinocyte

cancer*®, and have also examined risk of others cancers after skin cancer in two other collaborative settings®.

These studies confirm the elevated risk of cancer after keratinocyte cancer® and after melanoma®?, and the

increased mortality after keratinocyte cancer even with adjustment for the time-dependent occurrence of

intervening major cancers. They also highlight differences between basal and squamous cell carcinoma and

argue for caution when pooling these two very different cancers during epidemiologic studies.

a. JR Rees, MS Zens, J Gui, MO Celaya, BL Riddle, MR Karagas. Non melanoma skin cancer and
subsequent cancer risk. PLoS ONE. 2014 Jun 17;9(6):e99674.

b. JR Rees, MS Zens, MO Celaya, BL Riddle, MR Karagas, JL Peacock. Survival after squamous cell and
basal cell carcinoma of the skin: A retrospective cohort analysis. Int J Cancer. 2015 Aug 15;137(4):878-84.

c. A Balamurugan, JR Rees, C Kosary, SH Rim, J Li, SL Stewart. Subsequent primary cancers among men
and women with in situ and invasive melanoma of the skin. J Am Acad Dermatol. 2011 Nov;65:569-77.

d. TE Robsahm, MR Karagas, JR Rees, A Syse. New malignancies after squamous cell carcinoma and
melanomas: a population-based study from Norway. BMC Cancer. 2014 Mar;14:210.

2. Patterns of cancer care in New Hampshire: As Director of the New Hampshire State Cancer Registry, | have
used New Hampshire data to examine discrepancies in cancer treatment. We have established that use of
conservative management in low risk prostate cancer has increased appropriately in recent years following
changes in national treatment guidelines®; travel distance to mammography centers does not influence breast

- cancer stage at diagnosis®; but travel distance for radiation significantly affects treatment choices in early stage
breast cancer, especially during cold winter months®. In addition, a tri-state registry collaboration with Maine
and Vermont of patients with colorectal and breast cancer, identified differences between rural and urban
patients in age and cancer stage at diagnosis, and in patterns of care such as lymph node sampling during
surgical treatment.”,

a. JP Ingimarsson, MO Celaya, M Laviolette, JR Rees, ES Hyams. Trends in initial management of
prostate cancer in New Hampshire — Reasons for optimism? Cancer Causes Control. 2015 Jun;
26(6):923-9.

b. MO Celaya, EM Berke, TL Onega, J Gui, BL Riddle, SS Cherala, JR Rees. Breast cancer stage at
diagnosis and geographic access to mammography screening (New Hampshire, 1998-2004). Rural
Remote Health. 2010 Apr-Jun;10(2):1361. ‘

c. MO Celaya MO, JR Rees, JJ Gibson, BL Riddle, ER Greenberg. Travel distance and season of
diagnosis affect treatment choices for women with early-stage breast cancer in a predominantly rural
population (United States). Cancer Causes Control. 2006 Aug;17(6):851-6.

d. AJohnson, JR Rees, M Schwenn, BL Riddle, C Verrill, MO Celaya, et al. Oncology Care in Rural
Northern New England. J Oncol Pract. 2010 Mar;6(2): 1-9.

3. Randomized controlled trials: A primary interest stemming from my work in randomized controlled trials is
the study of unblinding and bias;*® this work led to a recent RO3 to assess participants beliefs and perceptions



about study treatments, and their effects on adherence and health outcomes. In August 2014, my RO3
proposal was featured with a researcher profile on the website of the National Cancer Institute Behavioral
Research, Cancer Control & Population Sciences; (Participant beliefs and bias in a randomized controlled trial,
Rees et al), http://staffprofiles.cancer.gov/brp/granteeProfile.do?contactld=22545693&grpld=52812 published
as an example for other grant writers. | presented the first results from this study at the third International
Clinical Trials Methodology Conference in Scotland in November 2015, and this and other papers are pending.

a. JR Rees, TJ Wade, DA Levy, JM Colford, JH Hilton. Changes in beliefs identify unblinding in
randomized controlled trials: A method to meet CONSORT guidelines. Contemp Clin Trials. 2005 Feb;
26(1):25-37.

b. JM Colford, JR Rees, TJ Wade, A Khalakdina, JF Hilton, IJ Ergas, S Burns, A Benker, C Ma, C Bowen,
DC Mills, DJ Vugia, DD Juranek, DA Levy. “Participant blinding and gastrointestinal iliness in a
randomized, controlled trial of an in-home drinking water intervention.” Emerging Infectious Diseases
2002; 8(1):29-36.

c. EL Barry, JR Rees, JL Peacock, LA Mott, Cl Amos, RM Bostick, JC Figueiredo, DJ Ahnen, RS
Bresalier, CA Burke, JA Baron. Genetic Variants in CYP2R1, CYP24A1 and VDR Modify the Efficacy of
Vitamin D3 Supplementation for Increasing Serum 25-Hydroxyvitamin D in a Randomized Trial. J Clin
Endocrinol Metab. 2014 Oct;99(10):E2133-7. doi: 10.1210/jc.2014-1389. Epub 2014 Jul 29

d. JBaron, E Barry, L Mott, J Rees, R Sandler, D Snover, et al. A Clinical Trial of Calcium and Vitamin D
for the Prevention of Colorectal Adenomas. NEJM 2015; 373(16):1519-30.

4. Infectious disease epidemiology: My career began®® in infectious disease epidemiology with studies of
the incidence and characteristics of invasive fungal infections and bacterial gastroenteritis, and 1 continue
to pursue infectious disease-related studies. During my clinical trial work, we added a secondary study
within the colorectal adenoma chemoprevention trial, showing that 1000 IU vitamin D3 daily
supplementation during the H1N1 influenza pandemic of 2009-10 did not reduce the incidence or duration
of upper respiratory tract infection or their component syndromes, colds and influenza-like iliness.? This
report was featured on December 3, 2013 in the New York Times (page D6 of the New York edition) with
the headline: “Prevention: Hold the Vitamin D and Calcium” and on-line at
http://well.blogs.nytimes.com/2013/12/02/vitamin-d-fails-to-ease-winter-coughs-and-
colds/?_php=true& type=blogs& r=1. In addition, | have participated in multiple studies ®%* of infectious
prions, the proteins that cause fatal neurodegenerative diseases such as Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease in
humans and scrapie in sheep.

a. JR Rees, K Hendricks, EL Barry, JL Peacock, LA Mott, RS Sandler, RS Bresalier, M Goodman, RM
Bostick, JA Baron (2013) Vitamin D3 Supplementation and Upper Respiratory Tract Infections in a
Randomized, Controlled Trial. Clin Infect Dis. Advance Access Sept 6, 2013

b. NR Deleault, BT Harris, JR Rees, S Supattapone. "Formation of Native Prions from Minimal
Components In Vitro” Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences 2007; 104; 23; 9741-9746.

c. JR Rees, MA Pannier, A McNees, S Shallow, FJ Angulo, DJ Vugia. “Persistent diarrhea, arthritis, and
other complications of enteric infections: a pilot survey based on California Foodnet surveillance, 1998-
1999." Clinical Infectious Diseases 2004;38 (Suppl 3): $311-317.

d. JR Rees, RW Pinner, RA Hajjeh, ME Brandt, AL Reingold. "The epidemiologic features of invasive
mycotic infections in the San Francisco Bay Area 1992-1993: results of population-based laboratory
active surveillance". Clinical Infectious Diseases 1998; 27:1138-47.

Complete List of Published Work in MyBibliography:

http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/sites/myncbi/judith.reés.1/bibliography/4401 4541/public/?sort=date&direction=asc
ending
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Registry Manager

New Hampshire State Cancer Registry

Bruce.L.Riddle@Dartmouth.Edu /603-653-6620

A Joint Program of Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth and the New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services

Education:
M.A., Economics, Syracuse University, 1985.
Ph.D., International Relations, Syracuse University, 1977.
M.A., International Relations, Syracuse University, 1975.
B.A., Political Science, The Defiance College, 1972.

Honors: Chancellor's Citation for Distinguished Service, Syracuse University, 1992

Professional Experience:

Staff Member, New Hampshire State Cancer Registry, Dartmouth Medical Schodl,
November 1999-Present

* Network and Computing Administration, November 1999-present.

* Registry manager, January 2002-present.

Director, Computing and Technology Group, Maxwell School, Syracuse University,
January 1994-May 1999.
* Supervised and managed Maxwell Schooi's Computing and Technology
Group, 6 professionals providing services to 130 faculty, 90 support staff,
600 graduate students, and 6,000 undergraduates.

Principal staff assistant for the building of Eggers Hall, Syracuse University, 1989-93.
* Created a vision for a new social science building, a $20 million, 5-year
project.

Designated computer staff person for the Maxwell School, Syracuse University, 1991-94
* Designed, implemented and administered a School-based local area
network.

Senior Research Associate, Academic Computing Specialist. Metropolitan Studies
Program, Maxwell School, Syracuse University, 1984-1992
* Conducted data analysis on public finance and health care in developed
and developing countries in support of sponsored research. These
projects included.

o James Alm and Roy Bahl, "Evaluations of the Structure of the Jamaica
Individual Income Tax," Jamaica Tax Structure Examination Project, Staff
Paper No. 15, Metropolitan Studies Program, Syracuse University,
December 1984, Revised March 1985,

o Richard M. Bird and Barbara D. Miller, "The Incidence of Indirect Taxes on
Low-Income Households in Jamaica," Jamaica Tax Structure Examination
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Project, Staff Paper No. 26, Metropolitan Studies Program, Syracuse
University, April 1986.

Jorge Martinez, "Sensitivity Analysis and Evaluation of the Ecuadorian
Personal Income Tax," Ecuador Fiscal Administrative Studies, Staff Paper
No. 1, Local Revenue Administration Project, Maxwell School, Syracuse
University, May 1986.

Barbara D. Miller and Carl Stone, "Household Expenditures Effects of The
Jamaica Food Stamp Programme," Jamaica Tax Structure Examination.
Project, Staff Paper No. 36, Metropolitan Studies Program, Maxwell School,
Syracuse University, August 1987.

Harvard Medical Practice Study, Patients, Doctors, and Lawyers: Medical
Injury, Malpractice Litigation, and Patient Compensation in New York. The
Report and the Harvard Medical Practice Study to the State of New York,
1990.

Research and Data Analyst, Department of Surgery, State University of New York
Upstate Medical Center, 1976-1980.

* Provided computing and data analysis support for a study of burn
mortality at the regional burn unit. Results of the work were published in:

o William R. Clark, M.D., and Barbara S. Fromm, "Burn Mortality:
Experience of a Regional Burn Unit and Literature Review," ACTA
Chirurgica Scandinavica Supplementum 537, Stockholm, 1987.

Professional Consulting, data analysis and statistical programming, 1978-1991

* On a contractual basis performed data analysis for researchers from
accounting, finance, human development, political science, law,
sociology, and physical, special, and higher education.

Representative Projects Included:

o "The Effects of Repatriation an Chronic Psychiatric Patients," Hutching
Psychiatric Center, Syracuse, New York.

o ‘“Determinants of Lay and Lawyer Judicial Behavior,” a NSF Grant to D.
Marie Provine, Department of Political Science, Maxwell School,
Syracuse University.

o “Disproportionality and Disparity in the Charging and Sentencing of
Criminal Defendants for Homicide in Georgia,” Center for
Interdisciplinary Legal Studies, College of Law, Syracuse University.

o “Campus Wide Hazardous Material Inventory,” Environmental Health
Office, Syracuse University.

o "Study of Adjustments of New York State School Aid Formula to Take
Account of Municipal Overburden (Final Report),” a sponsored project to
Jerry Miner and Seymour Sacks, Metropolitan Studies Program, Maxwell
School, Syracuse University, May 1980.

o “Econometric Analysis of Education Expenditures in Each State and
Their Projections to 1990," for the School Finance Project, National
Institute of Education, Jerry Miner and Seymour Sacks, Metropolitan
Studies Program, Maxwell School, Syracuse University, March 1983.

Computing Consultant and Help Desk Supervisor, 1976-1979.
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*  Supervised approximately 10 undergraduates and graduate computing
consultants, including recruitment and training.

Graduate Assistant and Teaching Assistant, International Relations Program, 1972-1975.
* Development of course materials and teaching of international relations
and economics courses.
* Quantitative political and social research including the politics of oil and
uses of the sea.

Publications and Papers:

“A Report on 3 State/3 Province Combined Cancer incidence Rate Study: A Descriptive
Epidemiology Study.” December 2011.

“Reliability of rapid reporting of cancers in New Hampshire.” Celaya MO, Riddle BL,
Cherala S, Armenti K, Rees JR J Registry Management. 2010 Fall;37(3):107-111.

“Improving the quality of industry and occupation data at a central cancer registry.”
Armenti KR, Celaya MO, Cherala S, Riddle BL, Schumacher PK, Rees JR. Am J of ind
Med. 2010 Oct;5(10):995-1001.

“ Breast cancer stage at diagnosis and geographic access to mammography screening
(New Hampshire, 1998-2004).” Celaya MO, Berke EM, Onega TL, Gui J, Riddle BL,
Cherala SS, Rees JR Rural Remote Health. 2010 Apr-Jun;10(2):1361. Epub 2010 Apr
23.

“Oncology care in rural northern New England.” Johnson A, Rees JR, Schwenn M, Riddle
B, Verrill C, Celaya MO, Nicolaides DA, Cherala S, Feinberg M, Gray A, Rutstein L, Katz
MS, Nunnink JC. J Oncol Pract. 2010 Mar;6(2):81-89.

“Travel Distance and Season of Diagnosis Affect Treatment Choices for Women with
Early-stage Breast Cancer in a Predominantly Rural Population.” Celaya MO, Rees JR,
Gibson JJ, Riddle BL, Greenberg ER. Cancer Causes Control, 17(6): 851-6.

“Event Drive Data Set for Cancer Surveillance.” B. Riddle and DK Boeshaar. Journal of
Registry Management, Vol. 33(2) Summer 2006; 57-63.

“On the Coding and Reporting of Race and Ethnicity in New Hampshire for
Purposes of Cancer Reporting,” B Riddle. Ethnicity and Disease. 2005;15: 324-
331.

‘A Review of Death Clearance in Central Cancer Registries and Proposal for a
New Regime.” B. Riddle. Journal of Registry Management, Vol. 31 (2). Summer
2004: 67-73.

“The Fiscal Condition of School Districts in Nebraska: Is Small Beautiful?" K Ratcliffe, B
Riddle, J Yinger. Economics of Education Review, Vol. 9, No. 1 (1990). 81-99.

"Passwords in Use in a University Timesharing Environment." B Riddle, M Miron, J
Semo. Computers & Security, Vol. 8 (1989). 569-579.

"Who Pays the Nebraska State Personal Income Tax Before and After State Reform?"
Nebraska Comprehensive Tax Study Staff Paper No. 4, B Riddle and S Wallace-Moore.
Metropolitan Studies Program, Maxwell School, Syracuse University, November 1987.
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"Payroll Tax Reform in Jamaica,” Jamaica Tax Structure Examination Project, Staff
Paper No. 35, B Riddle and M Wasylenko. Metropolitan Studies Program, Maxwell
School, Syracuse University, July 1987.

"Final Report: Fire Department Participation in the Identification and Transportation of
Victims of Thermal Injury," A Report to the United States Fire Administration, Federal
Emergency Management Agency, B Riddie and D Learner, 1981.

Presentations:

“Cancer Surveillance in the Era of Molecular Markers.” North American Association of
Central Cancer Registries 2013 Annual Meeting, Austin Texas with A Andrew, M Zens, J
Rees.

“Security Issues: A Problem Statement.” National Program of Cancer Registries
Program Directors Conference. May 2008. Atlanta, Georgia. Invited Presentation.

“Electronic Medical information and lts Impact on Registries.” Cancer Registrars
Assaciation of New England Annual Meeting, November 2005, Westboro,
Massachusetts.

“An Events Driven Data Set for Cancer Surveillance.” Rocky Mountain Cancer Data
Systems Annual Meeting, September 2005, Arlington, Virginia.

“Cancer Incidence Rates for New Hampshire."” NHSCR Spring Education Meeting, April
2005, Concord, New Hampshire.

“Patterns of Morphology Reporting,” North American Association of Central Cancer
Registries 2004 Annual Meeting, Salt Lake City Utah, June 2004.

“On the Coding and Reporting of Race and Ethnicity in New Hampshire,”
Presented to North American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2003
Annual Meeting, Honolulu, Hawaii, June 2003.

“Using Out of the Box Software to Protect and Secure Registry Data.” Presented
at the North American Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual Meeting,
June 3-9, 2001, Miami Beach, Florida.

“Supporting the Campus Technology Explosion: Bricks without Straw.” Presented to the
Eastern Sociology Society, Boston, Massachusetts, March 4, 1999.

Poster Presentations:

“A New Model for Annual Cancer Incidence Reporting.” B. Riddle, A. D. Fuld,
MD, MS., M. S. Ernstoff, MD, A. Andrew, PhD., M. O. Celaya, MPH., CTR., GM
M. Hosain, MB., BS, PhD., J. R. Rees, BM, BCh, PhD. North American

" Association of Central Cancer Registries 2014 Annual Meeting, Ottawa, Canada.

“Findings From the 2011-2012 NAACCR Death Clearance Evaluation Workgroup
Issues Survey.” M. Williams, B. Riddle R. Otto, C. Sherman, L. Dickie.
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North American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2013 Annual Meeting,
Austin Texas.

“Estimating the Costs of a Data Breach: An Exercise at the New Hampshire State
Cancer Registry.” B. Riddle, S. Nyman, J. Rees. North American Association of
Central Cancer Registries 2012 Annual Meeting, Portland, Oregon.

“The Impact of Veterans Affairs Cancer Reporting in New Hampshire." B.
Riddle, J. Rees, M. Celaya, S. Cherala. North American Association of Central
Cancer Registries 2012 Annual Meeting, Portland, Oregon.

"Cancer and Place of Death: A micro-study about death in New Hampshire." B.
Riddle. North American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2010 Annual
Meeting, Quebec City, Quebec, Canada, June 2010. Poster won a 3rd Place
award. :

“Death Certificates and Estimates of Cancer Mortality.” B. Riddle and M Celaya.
North American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2008 Annual Meeting,
Denver, Colorado, June 2008. Poster won a 1% Prize award.

"Event Level Architecture for an Event Driven Data Set for Electronic Cancer
Surveillance” B. Riddle. North American Association of Central Cancer Registries
2005 Annual Meeting, Detroit, Michigan, June 2007. '

“Event Driven Data Set for Cancer Surveillance.” B. Riddle and D.K. Boeshaar,
North American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2005 Annual Meeting,
Cambridge, Massachusetts, June 2005.

“Questions about Sensitivity and Specificity of NAACCR Hispanic ldentification
Algorithm in a State with Small Non-White Population.” B Riddle, JR Rees. North
American Association of Central Cancer Registries 2004 Annual Meeting, Salt
Lake City Utah, June 2004.

“Using Windows XP to Secure Laptop Computers to Hold Confidential
Information,” B. Riddle. North American Association of Central Cancer Registries
2002 Annual Meeting, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, June 2002.

“Looking at Central Sequence Number to Access the Reliability of a Central
Registry Data Set,” B Riddle. North American Association of Central Cancer
Registries 2002 Annual Meeting, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, June 2002.

Professional Courses:

Principles and Practice of Cancer Registration, Surveillance, and Control, Rollins School
of Public Health, Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia (March 2001)

Advanced Cancer Registry Training Program, Rollins School of Public Health at Emory
University, Atlanta, Georgia (February 2001)

Special Projects:

Consultant to Washington and Lee University, Lexington, Virginia, under a National
Science Foundation CAUSE Grant. Conducted a six week workshop for the faculty on
social science computing and SPSS. Prepared an introductory manual on job control
language for students. Summer 1978.



EDUCATION

Date
2004

12002

1695

Maria O. Celaya, MPH, CTR

Degree Institution Field of Study
MPH University of New Hampshire Public Health Policy & Mgt.

Dept of Health Management & Policy
Manchester, NH

BS University System of New Hampshire Management/Info. Technology
Granite State College
Lebanon, NH

AAS Phoenix College Health Information Technology -
Phoenix, AZ

ADDITIONAL COURSEWORK

2010-2011

Spring 2010

1997

1996-1999

Professional Development Management Essentials
Human Resources, Dartmouth College  at Dartmouth

Hanover, NH

Dartmouth Medical School DMS Biostatistics &

Epidemiology (audit)

State of Arizona Leadership Foundations
Dept. of Administration

Phoenix, AZ

Glendale Community College Business/Accounting

Glendale, AZ

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2000-present

2013-present

1999-2000
1997-1999
1995-1997

Assistant Director, Field Operations - Research Scientist

New Hampshire State Cancer Registry

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

Community and Family Medicine, Section of Biostatistics & Epidemiology
Hanover, NH

QA Technical Specialist (part-time, remote)
Westat
Rockville, MD

Data Collections/Editing Section Manager

Administrative Support Supervisor

Cancer Registrar

Arizona Cancer Registry - AZ Dept. of Health and Human Services,
Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of Public Health Statistics,
Office of Health Registries

Phoenix, AZ



CANCER REGISTRATION CONSULTING SERVICES

2010
1999-2000
1999
1998
1997
1997
1996
1994-1996

ICF Macro — Bethesda, MD

Valley Lutheran Hospital — Mesa, AZ

Columbia Northwest Medical Center — Tucson, AZ
Tempe St. Luke’s Hospital — Tempe, AZ

Flagstaff Medical Center — Flagstaff, AZ

Boswell Medical Center — Sun City, AZ

Flagstaff Medical Center — Flagstaff, AZ

Columbia Medical Center Phoenix — Phoenix, AZ

PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIALS

1997-present

Certified Tumor Registrar (CTR) — National Cancer Registry Association

1995-2010 Registered Health Information Technician (RHIT) — American Health Information
Management Association

AFFILIATIONS

2014-2015 Member, Nominating Committee — Cancer Registrars Association of New England

2012-2013 Vice-President — Cancer Registrars Association of New England

2012-2013 Member, Nominating Committee — North American Association of Central Cancer Registries

2005-present
2002-present

1997-present

Member, Emerging Issues Committee — New Hampshire Comprehensive Cancer Control Initiative
Member, Registry Operations Committee — North American Association of Central

Cancer Registries

NCRA Member — National Cancer Registry Association

2008-2010 Member, Board of Directors — NH Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration
2007-2009 Chair, By-Laws Committee — Cancer Registrars Association of New England
2007-2008 Member, By-Laws Committee — Cancer Registrars Association of New England
2006-2008 Chair, Nominating Committee — Cancer Registrars Association of New England
2001-2004 Treasurer — North Eastern States Cancer Registry Association

RESEARCH SUPPORT

10/01/2013 — Present

CDC-ICF Macro (#13EDSK0109)

Expanding Data Collection Infrastructure of National Program of Cancer Registries for Patient Centered
Outcomes Research (PCOR)

12/01/2010 - 09/30/2013

CDC-ORC Macro (#200-2002-00574)

Prevention Research Centers Comparative Effectiveness Research Program U48
Enhancing cancer Registry Data for Comparative Effectiveness Research (CER)

11/10/2003 - 09/30/2004
CDC-ORC Macro (#200-2002-00574)
Assessment of Completeness of Reporting of Melanoma to Central Cancer Registries

PROFESSIONAL AWARDS

2014
2010

NAACCR Achievement Award
NAACCR Merit Award



PEER-REVIEWED PUBLICATIONS
Ingimarsson JP, Celaya MO, Laviolette M, Rees JR, Hyams ES. Trends in initial management of
prostate cancer in New Hampshire. Cancer Causes Control. 2015 Apr 4. [Epub ahead of print]

Rees JR, Zens MS, Celaya MO, Riddle BL, Karagas MR, Peacock JL. Survival after squamous
cell and basal cell carcinoma of the skin: A retrospective cohort analysis. Int J Cancer. 2015 Jan
16. doi: 10.1002/ijc.29436. [Epub ahead of print].

Chen VW, Eheman CR, Johnson CJ, Hernandez MN, Rousseau D, Styles TS, West DW, Hsieh
M, Hakenewerth AM, Celaya MO, Rycroft RK, Wike JM, Pearson M, Brockhouse J, Mulvihill
LG, Zhang KB. Enhancing Cancer Registry Data for Comparative Effectiveness Research (CER)
Project: Overview and Methodology. J Registry Manag. 2014 Fall;41(3):103-12.

JR Rees, MS Zens, J Gui, MO Celaya, BL Riddle, MR Karagas. Non melanoma skin cancer and
subsequent cancer risk. PLoS One. 2014 Jun 17;9(6):€99674.

Wyszynski A, Tanyos SA, Rees JR, Marsit CJ, Kelsey KT, Schned AR, Pendleton EM, Celaya
MO, Zens MS, Karagas M, Andrew AS. Body mass and smoking are modifiable risk factors for
recurrent bladder cancer. Cancer. 2014 Feb 1;120(3):408-14.

Celaya MO, Riddle BL, Cherala S, Armenti K, Rees JR. Reliability of rapid reporting of cancers
in New Hampshire. J Registry Manag. 2010 Fall;37(3):107-111.

Armenti KR, Celaya MO, Cherala S, Riddle BL, Schumacher PK, Rees JR. Improving the quality of
industry and occupation data at a central cancer registry. Am J of Ind Med. 2010 Oct;5(10):995-1001.

Celaya MO, Berke EM, Onega TL, Gui J, Riddle BL, Cherala SS, Rees JR. Breast cancer stage
at diagnosis and geographic access to mammography screening (New Hampshire, 1998-2004).
Rural Remote Health. 2010 Apr-Jun;10(2)1361. Epub 2010 Apr 23.

Johnson A, Rees JR, Schwenn M, Riddle B, Verrill C, Celaya MO, Nicolaides DA, Cherala S,
Feinberg M, Gray A, Rutstein L, Katz MS, Nunnink JC. Oncology care in rural northern New
England. J Oncol Pract. 2010 Mar;6(2):81-89. ’

Celaya MO, Rees JR, Gibson JJ, Riddle BL, Greenberg ER. Travel distance and season of diagnosis
affect treatment choices for women with early-stage breast cancer in a predominantly rural population.
Cancer Causes Control. 2006 Aug; 17(6): 851-6.

PRESENTATIONS
Celaya MO. NHSCR Update. Cancer Registrars’ Association of New England Annual Conference.
Framingham, MA; Oct 2015.

Celaya MO. NHSCR Update. Cancer Registrars’ Association of New England Annual Conference.
Warwick, Rhode Island; Oct 2014.

Celaya MO. Enhancing cancer registry data for Comparative Effectiveness Research. Massachusetts
Cancer Registry Annual Meeting. Boston, Massachusetts; December 2011.



Celaya Mo. NHSCR Update. Cancer Registrars’ Association of New England Annual Conference.
Springfield, Massachusetts; Oct 2011.

Celaya MO. Enhancing cancer registry data for Comparative Effectiveness Research. Cancer Registrars
Association of New England 36" Annual Meeting. Springfield, Massachusetts; October 2011.

Rees JR (presenter), Syse A, Riddle BL, Celaya MO, Cherala SS. Cancer trends in the oldest old: a
comparative study in New Hampshire and Norway. North American Association of Central Cancer
Registries Annual Conference. Louisville, Kentucky; June 2011.

Celaya MO. NHSCR Update. Cancer Registrars’ Association of New England Annual Conference.
Nashua, New Hampshire; Oct 2010.

Celaya MO, Johnson A, Schwenn M, Rees JR (authors); and Riddle BL, Kachajian J, Schwenn M
(presenters). Access to care inrural northern New England. North American Association of Central
Cancer Registries Annual Conference. Quebec City, Quebec, Canada; June 2010

POSTERS

Ingimarsson JP, Laviolette M, Celaya MO, Rees JR, Hyams ES. Does distance from a radiation facility
impact patient decision-making regarding treatment for prostate cancer? A study of the New Hampshire
State Cancer Registry (NHSCR). North American Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual
Conference. Charlotte, NC; June 2015.

Ayres CM, Celaya MO, Rees JR. Increasing Non-Hospital Cancer Reporting: The NH Experience. North
American Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual Conference. Charlotte, NC; June 2015.

Ingimarsson JP, Laviolette M, Celaya MO, Rees JR, Hyams JR. Trends in initial management of prostate
cancer in New Hampshire - Reasons for optimism? North American Association of Central Cancer
Registries Annual Conference. Ottawa, Canada; June 2014,

Celaya MO, Gershman ST, Andrew AS, Riddle B, Cherala S, Davis CE, Rees JR. Expanding cancer
registry data collection for Comparative Effectiveness Research: Logistical issues. North American
Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual Conference. Portland, Oregon; June 2012.

Riddle BL, Celaya MO. Death certificates and estimates of cancer mortality. (1* Place Award) North
American Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual Conference. Denver, Colorado; June 2008.

Celaya MO, Rees J, Riddle BL, Armenti K, Cherala S. Evaluation of occupation and industry in the NH
State Cancer Registry. (2™ Place Award) North American Association of Central Cancer Registries. 2007
Annual Meeting. Detroit, Michigan; June 2007.

Celaya MO, Colby JP. Radon exposure potential and lung cancer in New Hampshire. North American
Association of Central Cancer Registries 2006 Annual Meeting. Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada; June
2006.

Celaya MO, Rees J, Riddle BL. Assessing the reliability of rapid case reporting in a central cancer
registry. North American Association of Central Cancer Registries Annual 2004 Meeting. Salt Lake City,
Utah; June 2004.



CLAIRE E. DAVIS, BA, CTR
Curriculum Vitae

EDUCATION
Date Degree Institution Field of Study
2001 AS Northeastern University Health Science
Boston, Massachusetts
1977 BA Keene State College Textile Design
Keene, NH
PROFESSIONAL COURSES
2001 Certificate Northeastern University Cancer Registry Management

Boston, Massachusetts

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006 — Present Senior Registrar
New Hampshire State Cancer Registry — Dartmouth Medical School,
Community & Family Medicine, (Biostatistics & Epidemiology)
Hanover, New Hampshire

Process electronic data transfers from multiple facilities; audit data for accuracy & completeness, merge
& consolidate cases; develop & perform death clearance reports; identify & abstract cases from non-
hospital sources (path labs, MD office, cancer treatment centers, nursing homes); perform extensive field
work at hospital level to identify causes of deficiencies; prepare data for NAACCR call-for-data to ensure
compliance with national standards; maintain manuals and forms used for reporting and training
purposes; peiform recoding audits to determine accuracy rate; review diagnostic indies, path reports, and
death certificates to identify potentially missed cases; maintain a network of professional contacts and
membership in professional organizations to facilitate and promote quality control activities; edit semi-
annual Registry newsletter; provide administrative support.

2001 - 2006 Cancer Registry Coordinator
Cheshire Medical Center
Keene, New Hampshire

Responsible for identification, abstraction and follow-up of cancer cases at 169-bed acute care
regional hospital and comprehensive oncology/radiation treatment center; oversight of 100%
follow-up for all cancer cases; maintain quality assurance standards for all registry processes;
preparation of annual report for medical center cancer program; coordinate and follow-up of
institutional Cancer Committee Meetings;

2006 Attained the highest accreditation form the American College of Surgeons Cancer Program
Standards survey.
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1987-2001 Correspondence and Billing Clerk
Cheshire Medical Center
Keene, New Hampshire

Oversight of all external correspondence; submission and reconciliation of bills to all insurance
companies; assist with risk management and other legal matters; assist with hospital and clinic
audits.

CREDENTIALS
2001 Certified Tumor Registrar (CTR)
National Cancer Registrars Association

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Association of Community Cancer Centers (ACCC)

National Certified Cancer Registrars Association (NCRA)

Cancer Registrars Association of New England (CRANE)

North American Association of Central Cancer Registries (NAACCR)



Experience

Pauline M. McGinn

2014-present New Hampshire State Cancer Registry Dartmouth College, NH
Senior Cancer Registrar
' Abstracted cancer data for the Patient Centered Qutcomes Project including outcomes data

*  Central registry data processing, case finding

2007-2013 Exeter Hospital Exeter, NH
Cancer Registrar
' Abstracted, analyzed and interpreted cancer data in an ACoS approved cancer program

' Managed Cancer Committee operations: preparation of agenda, communications with
committee members, recording and distribution of minutes

' Attended cancer conferences and recorded presentation and staging information
according to ACoS standards
' Prepared cancer program annual report data for publication and physician presentation

*  Prepared reports of cancer data as requested by other hospital departments.

2001-2007 Seacoast Mental Health Center Portsmouth, NH
Medical Record Coordinator

* Managed medical record departments in two facilities that provide outpatient community

mental health services

*  Supervised and trained staff members and clients who participate in facility’s work
adjustment program

*  Oversaw daily operation of departments
* Performed release of information activities
+  Served as center’s Privacy Officer

' Participated in Quality Improvement and Compliance Committees

1988-2001 Hospital of St. Raphael New Haven, CT
Cancer Registrar

Abstracted, analyzed and interpreted cancer data in an ACoS approved cancer program

Participated in Cancer Committee and multi-specialty Tumor Board proceedings and
prepared reports of same

* Coded data according to SEER and state reporting requirements
' Managed workflow for Registry

Served on operations improvement team for streamlining medical record

1980-2000 Connecticut Long Term Care Facilities
Medical Record Consultant

Reviewed medical records quarterly for compliance with state and federal regulations for
medical record services

' Provided in-service sessions for long term care staff

Served on subcommittee for revision of Medical Record Section of the Connecticut Public
Health Code for Long Term Care



1978-1988 Hospital of St. Raphael New Haven, CT
Medical Transcriptionist

v Performed part-time and home transcription of dictated hospital reports

1975-1978 Hospital of St. Raphael New Haven, CT
Transcription Supervisor

' Supervised 12 employees, overseeing transcription and distribution of dictated reports
* Increased staff production, eliminating need for outsourcing
*  Prepared section production reports and budgetary recommendations

* Designed medical record forms and maintained forms control inventory

Education Southemn CT State University New Haven, CT

' B.A, Liberal Arts
AHIMA Independent Study program

Accreditations 1978 — Accredited Record Technician ; 1998 - Certified Tumor Registrar

Professional American Health Information Management Association, 1976-present.

memberships
New Hampshire Health Information Management Association, 2001-present; Secretary 2004-
2006.

National Cancer Registrars Association, 1998-present.
Cancer Registrars Association of New England, 2002-present.

Connecticut Health Information Management Association, 1976-2000; Past Chairperson, Bylaw
Committee and Long Term Care Comimittee

Connecticut Tumor Registrars Association, 1988-2000; Secretary 1997-1999; Chairperson,
Bylaws Committee, 1994-2000.



Valeria Celaya, BA

EDUCATION

Date Institution Degree Field of Study

May 2015 University of New Hampshire BA Anthropology

Durham, NH Dual Minor Women’s Studies; Race and

Ethnic Studies

ADDITIONAL COURSEWORK :

Aug 2015- NCRA-AHIMA Cancer Certificate Anatomy, Physiology and

Oct 2015 Registry Management Program Human Disease

Nov 2015- NCRA-AHIMA Cancer Certificate Pathophysiology and

Feb 2016 Registry Management Program Pharmacology

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Sept 2015 — Present Cancer Registrar

New Hampshire State Cancer Registry

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Hanover, NH
Review New Hampshire cancer reports to determine their completeness and accuracy in accordance with
national and state reporting standards via RMCDS software. Carry out established central registry
policies, procedures and quality assurance efforts. Perform extensive field work at local facilities to
identify and address causes of deficiencies. Visit New Hampshire hospitals to check reliability of
information abstracted from charts; review pathology and patient charts for accuracy and completeness of
case finding. Visit pathology laboratories and free-standing radiotherapy and medical oncology centers to
review reports in order to monitor case-finding. Collaborate with local hospitals to ensure that patterns of
accurate and complete reporting are maintained; address problems of non-reporting and/or untimely
reporting of data and poor quality data submission. Assist registrars, manager, director and other
researchers in cancer related studies and research projects. Identify, register, and maintain records of all
New Hampshire cancer patients though the central tumor registry data system. Participates in local,
regional, or national cancer organizations and meetings.

March 2015 — Sept 2015 Project Assistant

New Hampshire State Cancer Registry

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Hanover, NH
Abstract cancer cases received from physicians reporting, including cancer diagnosis, staging, and
treatment, utilizing RMCDS software. Verify accuracy of data entered and correct errors. Perform
casefinding audits by reviewing pathology reports and medical record disease indices. Identify reportable
cancers in eMaRC Plus. Review cancer cases to ensure complete and accurate reporting from hospital
and non-hospital sources. Assist the staff of NHSCR with projects related to central cancer registry
operations, including Death Clearance, physician follow-ups, hospital follow-back efforts, and monthly
case processing. Assist in the editing and design of cancer registry related poster and oral presentations.
Continue training to further my experience in cancer registry data collection, processing, and editing, and
increase my knowledge of national standards and registry operations through NCRA coursework and
SEER*Educate and Training Modules.

Sept 2014 — Dec 2014 New Hampshire Program Associate

Let’s Get Ready, Boston, MA
Ensure high quality of LGR programs, including managing relationships with senior administrators at
high school, college, and community partners. Train and supervise college student staff (Coaches).
Perform administrative and logistical support functions and oversee collection of evaluation data for

programs. Play an active role as part of LGR's overall program team in developing best practices, new
curriculum, etc.



Sept 2011 — Dec 2014 Program Coordinator

Office of Multicultural Student Affairs

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Greet and welcome visitors and perform clerical duties as well as specific tasks. Collaborate with
University staff, departments, and organizations to plan and promote events. Contact sponsors, vendors,
student organizations, and university departments that are involved with specific events: organize a
volunteer schedule and recruit students for volunteering; oversee event planning and technicalities; help
with on-site set-up and break-down; provide on-site assistance to volunteers and visiting performers and
speakers; distribute and collect evaluations; conduct post-event follow up with vendors and sponsors.

Nov 2012 — May 2014 Diversity Ambassador

Admissions Office

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Assist Admissions’ staff with the fulfillment of admissions programming, including both on and off-
campus programs. Represent the university to prospective student populations, teachers, guidance
counselors, and parents and contact prospective students of Color in person, and over the phone, email, or
letter. Coordinate the involvement of UNH student volunteers in the admissions process to communicate
with prospective students of Color. Represent the University at college fairs and events. Devise an
outreach plan for the 2014-15 academic year, to be executed by future Diversity Ambassadors.

May 2012 — Aug 2014 Administrative Assistant

Office for Diversity and Inclusion

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Hanover, NH
Help organize major recurring department activities including those with related departments, external
participants, etc. Coordinate department publicity activity including work in multiple media, such as
website content and drafting brochures and newsletters. Administer and track expenditures to ensure
accurate records of approved department budgets. Establish and maintain department files and databases
to ensure accuracy and accessibility of information. '

OTHER EXPERIENCE
Sept 2014 UNH Safe Zones

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Engaged in an educational program that enlightens its members about Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender, Queer, Ally (LGBTQA) issues within and beyond the UNH community. This program also
prepares members on how to be an active Ally and how to approach different issues, aiming to reduce and
prevent harassment and discrimination that targets individuals based on sexual orientation, gender
identity, and gender expression.

Feb 2011 Martin Luther King Jr. Leadership Summit

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Participated in a 3-day intensive retreat in which participants explored different aspects of diversity —
including issues related to social inequality — and expanded on multicultural competency needed for
exemplary leadership

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

Proficient with Rocky Mountain Cancer Data System
Proficient in Spanish, written and oral

Familiar with Microsoft Office Suite

Proficient in Photoshop



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Trustees of Dartmouth College

Name of Program: NH State Cancer Registry Operations

Rees, Judith Director 129,014 o
Riddle, Bruce Registry Manager 88,006 100.00% |5
Celaya, Maria Assistant Director 78,519 100.00% | (o
Davis, Claire Senior Registrar 60,235 100.00%[

McGinn, Pauline Senior Registrar 58,956 100.00%|
Valeria Celaya Registrar 36,067 100.00% | 1

[TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Iltem 1 of Budget request) [ OH "éaj;_z
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

December 15, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Lo Axoachve
Cyone SN

EQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into a retroactive sole source amendment (Amendment #2) to an existing agreement, purchase order
1016566, with the Trustees of Dartmouth College, 11 Rope Ferry Road, Hanover, New Hampshire
03755-1404, Vendor # 90598, to provide the services of physicians and professional technical staff to
meet the State’s needs to service patients and consumers, by increasing the price limitation by
$207,307, from $37,930,357.68 to an amount not to exceed $38,137,664.68, effective retroactive to
July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, upon Governor and Executive Council approval. There is no
change to the original end date of June 30, 2016. The Governor and Executive Council approved the
original agreement on June 22, 2011, (item #111), and an amendment to the agreement (Amendment

#1) on July 2, 2014 (em #25). 359, Sgneat |35 5. Fedead [HOBe OYhar Fimds

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2016, with authority to adjust
amounts between fiscal years if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-8925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: ELDERLY — ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICE GRANTS-SHIP

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $12,562.00 | $ 0 $12,562.00
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,013.00 | $ 0 $13,013.00
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,480.25 | $ 0 $13,480.25
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $13,964.32 | § 0 $13,964.32
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $14,465.79 | § 0 $14,465.79
Subtotal: | $67,485.36 | $ 0 $67,485.36

05-95-95-956010-6126 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, OFF MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY, MEDICAID ADMINISTRATION

~ Current Revised

Fiscal Class / -~ Maedified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $299,097.88 | $ 0 | $299,097.88
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $301,28506 | $ 0 $301,285.06
Subtotal: | $600,382.94 | $ 0 | $600,382.94




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
December 15, 2015

Page 2 of 4

05-95-47-470010-7937 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS. PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, MEDICAID
ADMINISTRATION

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Madified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 451,056.52 | $ 0 | $ 45105652
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 463276.77 | $ 0 | $ 46327677
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $§ 475826.35 | $ 0 | $ 475826.35
Subtotal: | $1,390,159.64 | $ 0 | $1,390,159.64

05-95-41-4120010-5813 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: JUVENILE JUSTICE SERV, OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR, HEALTH SERVICES

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Ciass Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $307,747.00 | $ 0 $307,747.00
SFY 2013 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $330,07425 | $ 0 [3$330074.25
Subtotal: | $637,821.25 | $ 0 | $637,821.25

05-95-42-421510-7915 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICE CENTE

R, HEALTH SERVICES

Current Revised

Fiscal Class/ Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2014 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 34180862 | $ 0 | $ 34180862
SFY 2015 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 35396434 | % 0 |'$ 35396434
SFY 2016 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $ 366556.12 | $ 0 | $ 366556.12
Subtotal: | $1,062,329.08 | $ 0 | $1,062,329.08

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC

SERVICES

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Madified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 569009283 | $ 0 | $ 569009283
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 610661731 | $ 0 | $6106617.31
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 690009167 | $ 0 | $ 690009167
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 7,151901.2 | $ 0 |$7151901.22
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 741267359 | $ 207,307 | $ 761998059
Subtotal: | $33,261,376.62 | $ 207,307 | $33,468,683.62




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
December 15, 2015

Page 3 of 4

05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL

SERVICES
Current Revised
Class/ Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 2849900 |$ 0 |$ 28499.00
SFY 2013 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 2849900 | § 0 |$ 28,499.00
SFY 2014 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,000.00 | $ 0 |$ 30,000.00
SFY 2015 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,00000 | $ 0 | $ 30,00000
SFY 2016 | 561-500911 | Specialty Clinics $ 30,000.00 | $ 0 | $ 30,000.00
Subtotal: | $146,998.00 | $ 0 | $146,998.00

05-95-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 82,129.80 | $ 0 |$ 8212080
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 2066120 | $ 0 |$ 2066120
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $106394.34 | $ 0 | $106,394.34
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $110,944.58 | $ 0 | $11094458
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $11565843 | $ 0 |$11565843
Subtotal: | $435,788.35 | $ 0 | $435,788.35

05-95-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, EARLY

INTERVENTION

Current Revised

Fiscal Class / Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount

SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 |$ 0 |$ 0

SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $17,564.00 | $ 0 | $17,564.00

SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 0 |% 0 |%S 0
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $115968.16 | $ 0 | $115968.16
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $120,322.28 | $ 0 | $120,322.28
Subtotal: | $25385444 | § 0 | $253,854.44

05-95-93-930010-7016 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, ACQUIRED BRAIN

DISORDER SERVICE

Current Revised

Fiscal Class/ Modified Increase Modified

Year Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services |$ 888400 $ 0% 888400
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $ 6527800 $ 0% 6527800
Subtotal: |$ 74,162.00 0$ 7416200
Total: | $37,930,357.68 $207,307.00 $538,137,664.68




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

December 15, 2015

Page 4 of 4

EXPLANATION

This is a retroactive, sole source request to amend an Agreement with the Trustees of
Dartmouth College in support of the requirements of Chapter Law 2013, 195:1, VII, H. This request is
submitted as retroactive because funding was initially delayed to support the requested changes to
the Agreement. Additionally, the contract scope is amended retroactive to July 1, 2015 to reflect the
inclusion of two additional professional staff. The Contractor provided the additional staff to New
Hampshire Hospital to assist in the preparation and planning for the January 1, 2016 opening of a new
Inpatient Stabilization Unit. The Request for Proposal, that resulted in the initial contract award to the
Trustees of Dartmouth College, included services for all units within New Hampshire Hospital, and thus
requires this sole source amendment to accommodate the new unit.

The amendment provides the clinical support of a psychiatrist and advanced registered nurse
practitioner for the Inpatient Stabilization Unit (ISU). The Legislature established the Inpatient
Stabilization Unit to alleviate some of the waitlist for New Hampshire Hospital admissions being
experienced by local emergency services departments. Funding for this unit was incorporated into the
Department’'s requested operating budget, with a target opening date of July 1, 2015. Because
recruitment of professionals to staff the Hospital's units is lengthy and challenging, the Department
authorized the Contractor to proceed with recruitment for these two positions, several months in
advance of the Inpatient Stabilization Unit’s anticipated opening. The Contractor was successful in this
effort, and rather than risk loss of these essential resources, the Department negotiated an
amendment that best supports full operation of the unit, as intended and eventually authorized by the
Legislature.

The original Agreement was awarded to the Trustees of Dartmouth College through an August
2010 Request for Proposal. In addition to the scope referenced herein for New Hampshire Hospital,
the Agreement also includes distinct scopes, performance metrics and financial terms for the following
DHHS agencies: the Office of Medicaid Business and Policy, the Division for Juvenile Justice
Services, the Bureau of Behavioral Heaith, the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services, and the Bureau of
Developmental Services. The Trustees of Dartmouth College well fulfill the duties of the Agreement;
the Department remains satisfied with the services delivered.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, the State
would not have a sufficient complement of professional clinical staff to treat patients in New Hampshire
Hospital, including those soon to be admitted into the Inpatient Stabilization Unit.

Area served. Statewide.

Source of funds: 40% Other Funds (Medicare, Medicaid & third party insurance), 28% Federal
Funds from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, Medical Assistance Program, Code of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.778,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NH 20144, and 32% General Fund.

Respectfully submitted,

N

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #2

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Trustees of Dartmouth College Contract

This second Amendment to the Trustees of Dartmouth College contract (hereinafter referred to
as “Amendment #2") dated this 3rd" day of December, 2015, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and the Trustees of Dartmouth College (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a special corporate charter granted by the British Crown on December 13, 1769
and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a piace of business at 11 Rope
Ferry Road, Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-1404.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and
Executive Council on June 22, 2011(tem # 111), and an amendment to the agreement
(Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July 2, 2014 (Item #25),
the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may
amend the Contract by written agreement of the parties with the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS the Department and the Contractor agree to amend the contract,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:
1) Form P-37, General Provisions, item 1.8 to read:
$38,137,664.68.

2) Amend Exhibit A, Section 5.1, New Hampshire Hospital, subsection 5.1.1, Personnel
Requirements, as follows:

a. Delete the subheading, General Psychiatrists: 10.0 FTEs and Proposed
Additional 1.0 FTE General Psychiatrists, and replace with:

General Psychiatrists: 11.0 FTEs.

b. Add subheading and new paragraph to the end of the General Psychiatrists
subsection:

Inpatient Stabilization Unit (1.0 FTE Psychiatrist and 1.0 FTE
Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner)

Dartmouth will provide NHH with one (1.0 FTE) General Psychiatrist and
one (1.0 FTE) Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner. This staffing model
assumes a care-model of rapid stabilization and return to the community,
as appropriate.

N il

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials: ” l ‘
Page 1 0f 4 Date: |
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State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #2

c. Delete subheading Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners: 1.0
FTEs and replace with:

Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners: 5.0 FTEs.

d. Delete the two paragraphs under subheading Psychiatric Advanced Registered
Nurse Practitioners: 1.0 FTEs and replace with:

The ARNPs will provide clinical services, as outlined above, in extended
care and admissions areas providing care for patients with severe mental
illness and/or medical co-morbidity in accordance with the scope of practice
described in Section 326-B:11. These individuals will be expected to
independently prescribe, dispense, and distribute medications within the
formulary and act as treatment team leader on “G” Unit, “H” Unit, “J" Unit,
and “ISU” Unit, in accordance with the scope of practice and NHH by-laws.
The fifth will cover leave time of others and help in the admission unit or as
assigned by the Chief Medical Officer.

) Delete Exhibit B Amendment #1 and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #2
) Delete Exhibit B-1;
) Add Exhibit B-1.1.1.
6) Delete Exhibit B-2.
) Add Exhibit B-2.1.1.
) Rename Exhibit B-1.51 to Exhibit B-1.5.1.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials: Y C
Page 2 of 4 Date: \ __'_0 [ \\*5




State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #2

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

osl& w i A&

Date Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Trustees of Dartmouth College

Pl s Q%’/@\/(/é

Date °~ /7 tName and Title: Jill Mortali, Director, OSP

Acknowledgeme
State of X ﬂanl[]SFMiCounty of )BMM()’L/ on /3-/ /O/ IS , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the*person identified above, or satlsfactorlly proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
‘document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Neother G. brsed

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

HEATHER A. ARNOLD

Public - New Hampshi
My Expiroe augm le, Wit
CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials:
Page 3 of 4 Date:



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #2

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/1_.//5?/.2,0/& %@ /W%

Date Name: ’r 7
Title:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemnor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor's Initials:\ n\\
Page 4 of 4 Date:
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State of Now Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, of the General
Provisions (Form P-37) for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make
payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager

Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Each monthly invoice must distinctly identify and differentiate the expense components as charged to
each of the seven (7) DHHS Bureaus for which services are provided as follows:

New Hampshire Hospital

Office of Medicaid Business and Policy
Bureau of Behavioral Health

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
Bureau of Developmental Services
Division of Juvenile Justice Services
Glencliff Home

The authorized costs and expense components pursuant to this Agreement are identified in the following
Exhibits:
Exhibit B-1.1
Exhibit B-1.1.1
Exhibit B-1.2
Exhibit B-1.3
Exhibit B-1.4
Exhibit B-1.5
Exhibit B-1.5.1
Exhibit B-2.1
Exhibit B-2.1.1
Exhibit B-2.2
Exhibit B-2.3
Exhibit B-2.4
Exhibit B-2.5

Trustees of Dartmouth College Exhibit B Amendment #2 Contractor Initi

Page 1 of 1 Date

I



EXHIBIT B-1.1.1
NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH COMPONENT
Bidder/Program Name: Trustees of Dartmouth College
Budget Request for: New Hampshire Hospital, ISU

Budget Period
SFY 16
Program Funds
Line Kem Requested
Direct Expense Staffing:
Salary $ 137,063
Fringe Benefits $ 51,398
Total Direct Expense Staffing $ 188,461
Direct Expense Other:
Research
Professional Development
Travel
Equipment
Subcontracts
Other
Total Direct Expense Other
Total Indirect Expense
Indirect Expense Rate (10%) $ 18,846
TOTALS: $ 207,307

Exhibit B-1.1.1
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
Date:

W\./




Exhibit B-2.1.1
PERSONNEL COMPONENTS - NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ISU

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE PERSONNEL FORM FOR EACH COMPONENT
Bidder/Program Name: Trustees of Dartmouth College
Budget Request for: New Hampshire Hospital, ISU

Budgﬁt Period
SFY 16
Personnel Cost
Position Title Location FTE Salary Fringe

General Psychiatrist ISU 1.000 $92,224 $34,584
ARNP ISU 1.000 $44,839 $16,814
Indirect Cost Recovery Rate = 10% XXX $13,706 $5,140

TOTALS: 2.00 $150,769 $56,538
Exhibit B-2.1. Contractor Initials: f W ‘-
Page 1 of 1 Date: U"\'} :‘U D




SBtate of Netow Hampshire
Bepartment of Btate

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that our records show that a special corporate charter was granted to the
TRUSTEES OF DARTMOUTH COLLEGE by the British Crown on December 13, 1769.

1 further certify that no fees are required to be pald to this office by this corporation.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 20" day of April, A.D. 2015

%Zwﬁ-‘/

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




Dartmouth College HANOVER . NEWHAMPSHIRE - 03755

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CERTIFICATE

I, Marcia J. Kelly, hereby certify that I am Assistant Clerk of Trustees of Dartmouth College, a corporation
created by Royal Charter and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire; that as Assistant Clerk I
have custody of the records of meetings of the Board of Trustees of said corporation; and that at a meeting of
said Board duly called and held on the 9™ day of April, 2011 at which a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: To approve the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy, effective July 1, 2011
or such earlier date as the Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer shall determine.
The provisions of the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy shall take precedence
over any previous inconsistent vote of the Board of Trustees.

I further certify that said Board voted to adopt amendments to the Signature and Requisition Authority Policy
on March 3, 2012 (effective January 1, 2012), September 22, 2013, January 2, 2014, March 8, 2014, and
November 8, 2014. The document is available on Dartmouth website at:
http://www.dartmouth.edu/~control/policies/signature-authority.html.

[ further certify that said vote remains in full force and effect as of the date hereof and is not contrary to any
provision of the Charter of said corporation.

[ further certify that attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Introduction and the Sponsored Activities
Administration and Intellectual Property Transactions section (Appendix G) of the said Signature and
Requisition Authority Policy.

[ further certify that the following persons were appointed to the positions opposite their respective names and
continue to serve in said positions as of the dates shown:

Jill Mortali Director, Office of Sponsored Projects September 15, 2008
Martin N. Wybourne Vice Provost for Research July 1, 2004
Christine Bothe Associate Director, Office of Sponsored Projects December 1, 2011
Aarron Clough Assistant Director, Office of Sponsored Projects January 1, 2013
Heather A. Arnold Assistant Director, Office of Sponsored Projects December 1, 2011

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the corporation this

_lo#e dayof_Deocomber .20(S.
Nares G Kbl ~

L Marcia JU(elfy, AdSistant Clerk
Trustees of Dartmdath College




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE C;Lg (L'{W

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-862-3345 Ext. 9200
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

June 17,2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House SV :
Conf:ord, New Hampshire 03301 —{Lz SWZ
Requested Action \ [LZ (7}7 2 m_)\ QJL j
A i

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter into a
sole source amendment to an existing agreement , purchase order 1016566, with the Trustees of Dartmouth
College, 11 Rope Ferry Road, Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-1404, vendor number 90598, to provide a
developmental services interdisciplinary clinic teams by increasing the price limitation by $236,290.44, from
$37,694,067.24 to an amount not to exceed $37,930,357.68 effective date of the Governor and Executive Council
approval through June 30, 2016. There is no change to the original end date of June 30, 2016. This agreement
was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 22, 2011, item number 111.

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year 2015 and anticipated to be available in
State Fiscal Year 2016 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets,
with authority to adjust amounts between fiscal years if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-8925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICE GRANTS-SHIP

Current Revised

Modified Increase Modified

Fiscal Year  Class/ Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $12,562.00 $0 $12,562.00
SFY 2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 13,013.00 0 13,013.00
SFY 2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 13,480.25 0 13,480.25
SFY 2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 13,964.32 0 13,964.32
SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 14,465.79 0 14.465.79
Subtotal: $67,485.36 $0 $67,485.36

05-95-95-956010-6126 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, OFF MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY, MEDICAID ADMINISTRATION

Current Revised

Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year  Class / Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
SFY 2012 102-50073 ( Contracts for Program Services $299,097.88 $0 $299,097.88
SFY 2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 301,285.06 0 301,285.06

Subtotal: $600,382.94 $0 $600,382.94



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
ahd the Honorable Council

June 17,2014
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05-95-47-470010-7937 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS. PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, MEDICAID

ADMINISTRATION
Fiscal Year  Class / Object
SFY 2014 102-500731
SFY 2015 102-500731
SFY 2016 102-500731

Class Title
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Subtotal:

Current
Modified Increase
Amount Amount
$451,056.52 0
463,276.77 0
475,826.35 0
$1,390,159.64 $0

Revised

Modified

Amount
$451,056.52
463,276.77
475,826.35
$1,390,159.64

05-95-41-4120010-5813 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: JUVENILE JUSTICE SERV, OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR, HEALTH SERVICES

Fiscal Year
SFY 2012
SFY 2013

Class / Object

101-500730
101-500730

Class Title
Medical Payments to Provider
Medical Payments to Provider
Subtotal:

Current
Modified Increase
Amount Amount
$307,747.00 $0
330.074.25 0
$637,821.25 $0

Revised
Modified
Amount
$307,747.00

330,074.25
$637,821.25

05-95-42-421510-7915 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICE CENTER, HEALTH SERVICES

Fiscal Year  Class / Object
SFY 2014 101-500730
SFY 2015 101-500730
SFY 2016 101-500730

Class Title
Medical Payments to Provider
Medical Payments to Provider
Medical Payments to Provider
Subtotal:

Current
Modified Increase
Amount Amount
$341,808.62 0
353,964.34 0
366,556.12 0
$1,062,329.08 $0

Revised

Modified

Amount
$341,808.62
353,964.34
366,556.12
$1,062,329.08

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC

SERVICES

Fiscal Year
SFY 2012
SFY 2013
SFY 2014
SFY 2015
SFY 2016

Class / Object

102-500731
102-500731
102-500731
102-500731
102-500731

Class Title
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Subtotal:

Current

Modified

Amount
$5,690,092.83
6,106,617.31
6,900,091.67
7,151,901.22
7.412,673.59
$33,261,376.62

Increase
Amount
$0

8|
[N (= = I )

Revised

Modified

Amount
$5,690,092.83
6,106,617.31
6,900,091.67
7,151,901.22
7.412,673.59
$33,261,376.62
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05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERYV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL

SERVICES
Fiscal Year  Class / Object
SFY 2012 561-500911
SFY 2013 561-500911
SFY 2014 561-500911
SFY 2015 561-500911
SFY 2016 561-500911

Class Title
Specialty Clinics
Specialty Clinics
Specialty Clinics
Specialty Clinics
Specialty Clinics
Subtotal:

Current
Modified Increase
Amount Amount
$28,499.00 $0
28,499.00 0
30,000.00 0
30,000.00 0
30,000.00 0
$146,998.00 $0

Revised
Modified
Amount

$28,499.00
28,499.00
30,000.00
30,000.00
30.000.00
$146,998.00

05-95-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERYV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

Fiscal Year  Class / Object
SFY 2012 102-500731
SFY 2013 102-500731
SFY 2014 102-500731
SFY 2015 102-500731
SFY 2016 102-500731

Class Title
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Subtotal:

Current
Modified
Amount

Increase
Amount

$82,129.80
20,661.20
106,394.34
110,944.58
115.658.43
$435,788.35

$0
0
0
0
0

$0

Revised

Modified

Amount
$82,129.80
20,661.20
106,394.34
110,944.58
115,658.43
$435,788.35

05-95-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, EARLY

INTERVENTION
Fiscal Year  Class / Object
SFY 2012 102-500731
SFY 2013 102-500731
SFY 2014 102-500731
SFY 2015 102-500731
SFY 2016 102-500731

Class Title
Contracts for Program Services

Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Contracts for Program Services
Subtotal:

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Amount Amount Amount
$0 $0 $0
17,564.00 0 17,564.00
0 0 0
0 115968.16 115968.16
0 12032228 120,322.28
$17,564.00  $236,290.44 $253,854.44

05-95-93-930010-7016 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, ACQUIRED BRAIN

DISORDER SERVICE
Fiscal Year  Class / Object Class Title
SFY 2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services
SFY 2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services
SFY 2014  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services
SFY 2015 102-50073) Contracts for Program Services
SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services

Subtotal:
Total:

Current
Modified
Amount
$8,884.00
65,278.00
0
0
0
$74,162.00

Increase
Amount

$0

(= IR

$0

694.067.24 290.44

Revised
Madified
Amount
$8,884.00
65,278.00
0
0
0
$74,162.00

$37,930,357.68
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Explanation

This is a sole source request to amend the current Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth College to
provide an interdisciplinary clinic team that will perform critical evaluations for adults and children with
developmental disabilities or acquired brain injuries. The Trustees of Dartmouth College is the only in-state
facility with the required specialty clinical resources to support this project.

A number of individuals served through the New Hampshire’s Area Agency system have unique and very
complex psychiatric and behavioral needs. Addressing those needs typically requires comprehensive and in-
depth evaluations in order to develop and implement appropriate and effective treatment strategies. In the past,
such assessments were done at the Neuropsychological Unit of the New Hampshire Hospital. However, with the
closing of that unit in 2009 individuals have been referred to out-of-state clinics for assessments. This request is
intended to create the much-needed clinical resources within the State of New Hampshire.

The interdisciplinary clinic team will provide a comprehensive understanding of the individual’s
psychiatric and behavioral needs and will focus on biological/environmental factors and their interaction that
contribute to the person’s challenges and strengths. The clinics will generate in-depth report with
recommendations that can be utilized by the Systemic - Therapeutic - Assessment - Respite - and Treatment
coordinators, area agency and medical providers to provide the best quality of care for each person. The clinics
will serve as one point of access to a team of expert providers to reduce the number of medical and multiple
appointments and eliminate the need to travel to out-of-state appointments.

The interdisciplinary clinic team will convene two times per month, separately, with one adult and one
child for a total of 12 adults and 12 children per year.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, the State would need
to continue with its current practice of referring individuals to out-of-state clinics for comprehensive psychiatric
and behavioral evaluations at a generally higher cost than the proposed in-state clinics.

Area served: statewide.
Source of funds: 100% general funds.

Respectfylly submitted,

-

RN

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Darimouth College, Contract Amendment #1

State of New Hampshire
Depariment of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Trustees of Dartmouth College Contract

This first Amendment to the Trustees of Dartmouth College contract (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment #1") dated this 17" day of June 2014, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and
the Trustees of Dartmouth College (hereinatter referred to as "the Contractor”), a special corporate
charter granted by the British Crown on December 13, 1769 and existing under the laws of the State of
New Hampshire, with a place of business at 11 Rope Ferry Road, Hanover, New Hampshire 03755-1404.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Coungil
on June 22, 2011(item # 111), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties with the approval of the Governor and Executive Council;
and

WHEREAS the Department and the Contractor agree to amend the contract.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:
1) Form P-37, General Provisions, item 1.8 to read:
$37,930,357.68;
2) Add paragraphs 5.6 and 5.7 to Exhibit A;
3) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1; and
4) Add Exhibit B-1.5.

Remainder of Page Left intentionally Blank

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor’s Initials: L/ L

Page 1 of 3 Date: ¢ / '8‘ ‘. L



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Dartmouth College, Contract Amendment #1

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hum

(/r5 /s .\ﬂ

Date Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Trustees of Dartmouth College

6 /18/14 (hafne Bobbe
Date | Name and Title Christine Bothe

Associate Director
Office of Sponsored Projects

Acknowledgement: .
State of Vew> Hampshuns County of haldor on l-v/ 18/ ¢ , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

HEATHER A. ARNOLL

Neatha, (. Qandtd  pdimiseioriommn

tName and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor's Initials: CJV o

Page 2 of 3 Date: _6_/__‘_‘+“_{,



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Trustees of Darimouth College, Contract Amendment #1

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

(}5!:! 14 2oy A/f'l("%w
Date Name, Fq1elaial (C - (S vpuae
Tite:G. Mgy AL

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213 Contractor's Initials: c
Page 30f 3 . Date: _6 ¢ fﬂ 4!



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

Scope of Services

5.6. Bureau of Development Services (BDS): Adult Developmental Services Interdisciplinary Clinic
Team.
5.6.1.The Contractor will provide an Interdisciplinary Clinic Team for Adults as follows:
5.6.1.1. The Contractor shall accept adults being referred from the Area Agencies needing
this service. Should the number of referrals exceed the number of clients able to be
seen, then the Contractor shall prioritize clients based on the most immediate need
and critical situation.

5.6.1.2. The Contractor shall support the goal of this interdisciplinary clinic team by providing
high quality interdisciplinary evaluations to adults with developmental disabilities and
acquired brain injuries. The Contactor shal! provide a comprehensive
understanding of the client and will focus on biological / environmental factors and
their interaction that contribute to the person’s challenges and strengths. The
Contractor shall generate one comprehensive report with recommendations that can
be utilized by the Systemic - Therapeutic - Assessment - Respite - and Treatment
(START) coordinators, area agency and medical providers to provide the best
quality of care for each person. The Contractor will serve as one point of access to
ateam of expert providers to reduce each client’s number of medical appointments
and reduce each client’s need to travel to multiple appointments.

5.6.1.3. The contractor shail convene the interdisciplinary clinic team one time per month
and shall conduct a face-to-face appointment with one client per month, for a total of
12 clients per year. The interdisciplinary clinic team meetings and face-to-face
client appointments shall take place at the Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center
The Contractor shall review all previous records of each client prior to each face-to-
face appointment. The Contractor’s interdisciplinary clinic team of providers shall
meet with the clignt and the client’s team of caregivers as part of the evaluation to
obtain history / concerns and examine the cliant. Atter meeting and examining the
client, the interdiscipiinary clinic team shall meet to discuss recommendations. The
interdisciplinary team shall generate a comprehensive report regarding the visit and
recommendations. The report shall be made available within 15 business days from
the date of the last meeting of the interdisciplinary clinic team.

5.6.1.4. The Contractor shall have the client or the client’s authorized representative sign a
release form identifying the parties to whom the contractor may distribute the
comprehensive reports.

5.6.2.The Contractor shall ensure the clinic team members include, but are not limited to:
56.2.1. Psychiatrist {0.10 FTE): The psychiatrist will serve as the clinic director,
coordinating the team / providers involved in this clinic. The psychiatrist will conduct
a comprehensive psychiatric examination; including reviewing the client's entire past
psychiatric treatment and medical history. The psychiatrist will make
recommendations as part of the comprehensive report regarding evidence based
treatment for optimal care for each client.

5.6.2.2. Neuropsychologist (0.05 FTE): The neuropsychologist will review all past
psychiatric, medical records, neuropsychological testing and behavioral incidents.
The neuropsychologist will document their recommendations as part of the
comprehensive report. The neuropsychologist will supervise the neuropsychology

CA/DHHS/1€0213 ‘ZZ_L
Exnitit A Contractar Inifials:
Page t of 3 Date: 67/‘8/ "'f



State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

fellow and will oversee the documentation of historical information regarding the
client.

5.6.2.3. Neuropsychology fellow (0.05 FTE): The neuropsychology fellow review all past
medical, past psychiatric records, neuropsychological testing, behavioral incidents
and document pertinent historical information regarding each person as part of the
comprehensive repor.

5.6.2.4. Neurologist (0.025 FTE): The neurologist will review past medical records, conduct
a physical examination, and document their findings and recommendations as par
of the comprehensive report. ’

5.6.2.5. Primary care physician (0.025 FTE): The primary care physician will review past
medical records, conduct a physical examination, and document their findings and
recommendations as part of the comprehensive report.

5.6.2.6. Occupational Therapist (0.025 FTE): The occupational therapist will review past
medical records, conduct an occupational therapy evaluation, document their
findings and recommendations as part of the comprehensive report.

5.6.2.7. Administrative Support (0.025 FTE): The administrative support will schedule the
appointment, review received documents and checklist of requested documents,
copy records for providers and fax completed reports.

5.7.Bureau of Developmental Services (BDS) Child Developmental Services Interdisciplinary Clinic
Team
5.7.1.The Contractor shall provide an Interdisciplinary Clinic Team for Children as follows:
5.7.1.1. The Contractor shall accept children being referred from the Area Agencies needing
this service. Should the number of referrals exceed the number of clients able to be
seen, then the Contractor shall prioritize clients based on the most immediate need
and critical situation.

5.7.1.2. The Contractor shall support the goal of an interdisciplinary clinic team by providing
high quality interdisciplinary evaluations to children and adolescents with
developmental disabilities. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive
understanding of the child with a focus on biological / environmental factors and
their interaction that contribute to a child's challenges and strengths. The
Contractor shall generate one comprehensive report with recommendations that can
be utilized by the Systemic - Therapeutic - Assessment - Respite - and Treatment
(START) coordinators, area agency and medical providers in order to provide the
best quality care for each child. The Contractor will serve as the singie point of
access to a team of expert providers in order to reduce each client's number of
medical appointments and reduce each client's need to travel to multipie
appointments.

5.7.1.3. The Contractor will convene the interdisciplinary clinic team one time per month and
shall conduct a face-to-face appointment with one client per month, for a total of 12
client appointments per year. ) The interdisciplinary clinic team meetings and face-
to-face client appointments shall take place at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.
The Contractor shall review all previous records prior to each client’s appointment.
The interdisciplinary clinic team of providers will meet with the client and the client's
team of caregivers as part of the evaluation to obtain history / concerns and
examine the client. After meeting and examining the client, the interdisciplinary
clinic team will meet to discuss recommendations. The interdisciplinary clinic team

CA/DHHS/100213 &
Exhitit A Contracior inibals.
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State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit A

shall generate a comprehensive report regarding the client’s appointment and
resulting team recommendations. The report shall be made available within 15
business days from the date of the last meeting of the interdisciplinary clinic team.

5.7.1.4. The Contractor shall have the client or the client’s authorized representative sign a
release form identifying the parties to whom the contractor may distribute the
comprehensive reports.

5.7.2.The Contractor shall ensure the clinic team members include, but are not limited to:
5.7.2.1. Child Psychiatrist (0.10 FTE): The psychiatrist will serve as the clinic director,
coordinating the team / providers involved in this clinic. The psychiatrist will conduct
a comprehensive psychiatric examination, including reviewing the client’s entire past
psychiatric treatment history. The psychiatrist will make recommendations as part of
the comprehensive report regarding evidence based treatment for optimal care for
each patient.

5.7.2.2. Neuropsychologist (0.05 FTE): The neuropsychologist will review all past medical
records, neuropsychological testing, behavioral incidents; document their
recommendations as part of the comprehensive report. The neuropsychologist wit!
supervise the neuropsychology fellow and will oversee writing the historical
information regarding the child.

5.7.2.3. Neuropsychology fellow (0.05 FTE): The neuropsychology fellow will review all past
medical records, neuropsychological testing, behavioral incidents and document
pertinent historical information regarding each person as part of the comprehensive
repont.

5.7.2.4. Neurologist (0.025 FTE): The neurologist will review past medical records, conduct
a physical examination, and document their findings and recommendations as parn
of the comprehensive report.

5.7.2.5. Primary care physician (0.025 FTE): The primary care physician will review past
medical records, conduct a physical examination, and document their findings and
recommendations as part of the comprehensive repon.

5.7.2.6. Occupational Therapist (0.025 FTE): The occupational therapist will review past
medical records, conduct an occupational therapy evaluation, document their
findings and recommendations as par of the comprehensive report.

5.7.2.7. Administrative Support (0.025 FTE): The administrative support will schedule the
appointment, review received documents and checklist of requested documents,
copy records for providers and fax completed reports.

CA/OHHS/ 100213 : !
Exhubit A Contractor initials;
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State of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B Amendment #1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8, of the General
Provisions (Form P-37) for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identities and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make
payment to the Contractor within thirty {30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager

Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Each monthly invoice must distinctly identify and differentiate the expense components as charged to
each of the seven (7) DHHS Bureaus for which services are provided as follows:

New Hampshire Hospital

Otfice of Medicaid Business and Policy
Bureau of Behavioral Health

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services
Bureau of Developmental Services
Division of Juvenile Justice Services
Glencliff Home

The authorized costs and expense components pursuant to this Agreement are identified in the following
Exhibits:
Exhibit B-1
Exhibit B-1.1
Exhibit B-1.2
Exhibit B-1.3
Exhibit B-1.4
Exhibit B-1.5
Exhibit B-1.51
Exhibit B-2
Exhibit B-2.1
Exhibit B-2.2
Exhibit B-2.3
Exhibit B-2.4
Exhibit B-2.5

Exhibit B Contractor Initials QL
Page 1 of 1 Date 6!‘8//%
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State of Nefr Hampshire

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

128 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301 -3867
603-271-4688 FAX: 603-271-4912 TDD ACCESS: 1-800-735-2964

NICHOLAS A.TOUMPAS

COMMISSIONER

101 Stete

May 18, 2011

. : APPROVED BY :
His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch :
and the Honorable Executive Council DATE _____‘é,&w____‘ .
State House 72 .
Concord, N.H. 03301 T PAGE
[

ITEM #

s YUESTED ACTION
ol
the Depanmcnt of Health ‘and Human Services (DHHS), Offi ice of the Commnssloncr, to
enter into an ent with the Trustees of Dartmouth College, 11 Rope Ferry Road, Hanover, NH 03755-1404
(Vendor # 98598), to provide the services of physicians and professiona! technical staff to meet the State's needs

to service patients and consumers in the total -amount of $36,975,891.27, cﬁectwe July 1, 2011 or date of
Govemor and Council approval, whichever is lawr through June 30, 2016. : _ .

1) Authogi

Funds are anticipated to be available in following accounts for SFY 2012, SFY2013 SFY 2014,
SFY 2015, and SFY 2016 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operatmg

budgcts with authority to adjust amounts between fiscal years if needed and Jusnﬁed

05-95-48-481010-8925 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: ELDERLY '~ ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, MEDICAID SERVICE GRANTS

Current . Revised
Class/Object Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budget [Decrease Budgét
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 { Contracts for Program Services 30 $12,562.00 _ $12,562.00
SFY 2013 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 30 $13,013.00 | $13,0 l;i.OQ :
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $13,480.25 $13,480.25
SFY 2015 | 102-50073) | Contracts for Program Services $0 $13,964.32 | $13,964.32
SFY 2016 | 102-50073] | Contracts for Program Services $0 $14,465.79 | $14,465.79
~ ' Subtotal: $0 $67,485.36 | $67,485.36
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"05-95-95-956010-6l26 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, OFF MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY, MEDICAID ADMINISTRATION

) Current - Revised
. Class/Object Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title . Budget /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | = $0 $299,097.88 | $299,097.88
SFY 2013_ | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $301,285.05 | $301,285.05.
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $451,056.52 | $451,056.52
SFY 2015 102-500731 | Conitracts for Program Services $0 $463,276.77 | $463,276.77
SFY 2016 -| 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $0 $475,826.35 | $475,826.35
Subtotal: ' 50 $1,990,542.58]$1,990,542.58

03-95-41-4120010-5813 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
vHHS: JUVENILE JUSTICE SERV, OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR, HEALTH SERVICES

. Current .- Revised
Class/Object : Modified | Increase | Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budpet- | /Decrease Budpet
SFY 2012 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider '$0 | $307,747.00 | $307,747.00
SFY 2013 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $0 $330,074.25 | $330,074.25 °
SFY 2014 J 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider 50 $341,808.62 | $341,808.62 |
SFY 2015 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider . $0 '$353,964.34 | $353,964.34
SFY 2016 | 101-500730 | Medical Payments to Provider $0 $366,556.12 | $366,556.12
Subtotal: $0 $1,700,150.3351,700,150.33

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NHH - ACUTE PSYCHIATRIC

SERVICES
Current Revised
Class/Object . Modified Increase Modified
[ Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budpet - /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 - | $5,551,545.83 | §5,551,545.83
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $5,968,070.31 | $5,968,070.31
SFY 2014 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services so $6,757,388.26 | $6,757,388.26
_SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $7,004,916.71 | $7,004,916.71
SFY 2016 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $7,261,279.54 | $7,261,279.54
Subtotal: $0 {$32,543,200.65 | $32,543,200.65
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05-95-93-930010-5191 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:DEVELOPMENTAL SERV DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, SPECIAL MEDICAL

SERVICES
B Current Revised
. Class/Object Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budget /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 | 561-500911 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $28,499.00 | $28,499.00
SFY 2013 | 561-500911 | Contracts for Program Services |  $0 $28,499.00 | $28,499.00
SFY 2014 ] .561-500911 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $30,000.00 | $30,000.00
SFY 2015 | 561-500911 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $30,000.00 | $30,000.00
SFY 2016 | 561-500911 | Contracts for. Program Services $0 $30,000.00 | $30,000.00-
' Subtotal: $0 $146,998.00 | $146,998.00

05-95-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:DEVELOPMENTAL SERV-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, PROGRAM

SUPPORT
{_ : Current ) Rgvued
Class/Object Modified Increase | Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budget /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $82,129.80 |. $82,129.80
SFY 2013 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Sorvices $0 - $20,661.20 | '$20,661.20
- SFY 2014 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services S0 "$106,394.34 | $106,394.34
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 30 $110,944.58 | $110,9444.58
SFY 2016° | 102-50073! -] Contracts for Program Services $0 $115,658.43 | $11 ,§,_658.43
' Subtotal: S0 - $435,788.35 | -$435,788.35

05-95-93-930010-7014 HEALTH AND SCCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:DEVELOPMENTAL SERV-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, EARLY

INTERVENTION
. Current Revued
Class/Object Modified Increase Modified
Riscal Year Code Class Title Budget /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prograin Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
SFY 2013 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $17,564.00 | $17,564.00
SPY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
SFY 2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal: 30 $17,564.00 | $17,564.00
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05-95-93-930010-7016 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:DEVELOPMENTAL SERV-DIV OF, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, ACQUIRED BRAIN

DISORDER SERVICE

Current Revised
: Class/Object | Modified | Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budget /Decrease Budget
SFY 2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $8,884.00 3$8,884.00 .
SFY 2013 | 102-50073) | Contracts for Program Services $0 $65,278.00 | $65,278.00
SFY 2014 - | 102-500731 { Contracts for Program Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
SFY 2015 102-500731 | Contrects for Program Services - $0 $0.00 $0.00
SFY 2016 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal: $0 S74Jl62.00 374,162.00

2) Authorize the Depanmcnt of Hcalth and Human Services, Glencliff Home, fo enter into an Agreement
~ with the Trustees of Dartmouth College, |1 Rope Forry Road, Hanover, NH 03755-1404 (Vendor # 90598), to
provide psychiatric services i the total amount of §718,175.97, effective July 1, 2011 or date of Governor and

Council approval whxchevcr is later, through June 30, 2016.

‘ Funds are anncxpatcd to be available in foIlowmg accounts for SFY 2012, SFY 2013, SFY 2014,
SFY 2015, and SFY 2016 upon the availability and continued appropriation of finds in future bpcrntmg

budgets, with authority to adjust amounts between fiscal years if needed and justified.

05-95-94-940010-8750 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NHH - ACUTE

PSYCHIATRIC SERVICES

. r Current . Revised
. | Class/Object Modified Increase Modified
| Fiscal Year Code Class Title Budget /Decrease Budget

_SFY2012 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services 50 $138,547.00 | $138,547.00
SFY 2013 | -102-50073! | Contracts for Program Services $0 $138,547.00 | $138,547.00
SFY 2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $0 $142,703.41 | $142,703.41
SFY 2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for ngmm Services $0 $146,984.51 | $146,984.51
SFY 2016 | 102.50073( | Contracts for Program Services $0 '] $151,394.05 | $151,394.05 [

Subtotal: $0 $718,175.97 | $718,175.97.

v
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EXPLANATION

Requested Action 1. The Department of Heslth and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner,
requires clinical services that include the provision of psychiatric care at the State's-only public psychiatric
hospital, clinical and administrative leadership to the State’s Medicaid Program, physician consultation services
overseen by the Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH), physician consultation in the area of elderly scrvices within
the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS), services for juveniles cared for by the Division for Juvenile
Justice Services (DJJS), services of a Medicaid medical director for the Office of Medicaid Business and Policy

(OMBP), and, services for children and adults cared for by the Bureau of Developmental Services (BDS).

This Agreement was awarded to the Trustees of Dartmouth College through a competitive bid process.
The Request for Proposals (RFP) was posted on the DHHS® website August 2, 2010 and notification of its release
was sent to potential bidders known to the Department and to those who expressed an interest in providing these
services, one bid was received. The proposal covers State Fiscal Years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016. The
proposal was reviewed and scored by cight (8) reviewers as follows: Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services -
Acting Director, New Hampshire Hospital — Chief Executive. Officer, New Hampshire Hospital — Financial
Manager, Office of Medicaid Business and Policy — Director, Office of Medicaid Business and Policy ~ Director
of Medicaid Finance, Bureau of Behavioral Health — Administrator of CMHS, Bureau of Developmental Services
_— Administrator -of Brain Injury Services, and, Division of Juvenile Justice Services — Manager of Clinical
Services. Each of the reviewers have multiple years of experience in managing grants and agreements with
vendors for various public health/services/education programs. See attached RFP Scoring Detail.

_ The scrvices requested per the Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth College will involve separate
scopes of services, performance metrics and finencial terms established by New Hampshire Hospital (NHH); the
Office of Medicaid Business & Policy (OMBP), the Division for Juvenile Justice Services (DJIS), the Bureau of
Behavioral Health (BBH), the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS), and the Bureau of Developmental
Services (BDS). : S ) .

Dartmouth has had a long and successful collaboration with the State. Dartmouth has partnered with the

State of New Hampshire for nearly 24 years to provide medical leadership and clinical service at New Hampshire
Hospital. Over the years, Dartmouth has responded to State requests to. provide an increasing number of services
and has succeeded in consistently supplying highly skilled and effoctive faculty members to provide these
services, The State and Dartmouth, working together, have essentially created the State system of care for people
with severe menta) illness, one that provides high-quality care to the citizens of New Hampshire who neo:d such
services. Moreover, Dartmouth employs highly trained and experienced faculty members who are committed to

continuing to provide the services required by the State,

The accompanying Exhibit A (Scope of Work) details the services that Dartmouth will provide u'ndcr this
Agreement for the five-year period of July I, 2011 through June 30, 2016. The Agreement service costs
identified for years one and two correspond with the budget appropriations that have been identified here-to-date
within the Governor's Budget and the House Budget. Special language is contained within the contract, Section

C-1, Special Provisions, which states the following: :

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is amended as

Jollows:

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including
without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are conlmg.enf upon
continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
 arid the Honorable Executive Council
"~ May 18,2011

Page 6

availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services
provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of appropriated or avallable funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services wnder this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not
be reguired to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the Account identified in block 1.6, or any

other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

New Hampshire Hospital, the Office of Medicaid Business and Policy, the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services, the Bureau of Behavioral Health, the Bureau of Developmental Services and the Division of Juvenile
Justice Services are dependent on these Agreement services for the ongoing medical and clinical operations of the
respective Bureaus. The following information describes the essential services provided for each Bureau and the

consequences if the contract is not renewed:

New Hampshire Hospital :. The Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth College provides for a
Hospital Chicf Medical Officer and a staff of psychiatrists who are responsible for psychiatric ovaluations, mental
status oxaminations, clinical and laboratory testing, treatment orders, including psychopharmacqlogy, emergency
. and special treatment procedures, discharge orders and necessary legal activitios. The psychiatrist directs the
treatment intervention of the other clinical personnel as.required by the US Department of Health and Human
Services Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services. There are special staffing requirements as a condition of
Medicaid and Medicare program participation for psychiatric hospitals. “The hospital must have adequate
sumbers of qualified and supportive staff to evaluate patients, formulate written, individualized comprehensive
treatment plans, provideé active treatment measures and engage in discharge planning”. WIF.h'()Ut'a SUfﬁClen.(
number of qualified psychiatrists, the hospital would have to reduce or close services until psychiatrists could be
recruited from a highly competitive market. Given the demand for ¢redentialed psychiatrists, effective, efficient
and adequate service capability is coordinated through this single agreement. _
id Busi ' ic BP): The Agreement provides a medical director for the State’s

Medicaid.program. Dr. Lotz has 10 years of valuable experience serving in this capacity and is responsible for
‘providing the overall medical and clinical leadership to the Office and for -assuring th?»quallty and cost-
effectiveness of medical care provided to Medicaid beneficiaries. Without these needed services, the department
will not have the necessary clinical leadership to properly implement the upcoming managed -care _lmtmt:ye.
Current cost containment programs, such as the pharmacy benefit management program, and the. prior
authorization program, will be unmanaged, resulting in reducod cost containment in Medicaid expenditures.
Development of Medicaid quality reporting and the Medicaid Report Card will not occur, resulting in an inability
to identify policy changes necessary to properly menage Medicaid health outcomes and Medicaid expenditures.

u I dule- i The BEAS Medical Director, employed b¥ the Trustees of
Dartmouth College, will assist in the planning and direction of the organization’s medical pQ"(EIcS and programs,
and working with the BEAS administrator will be responsible for strategically deve.lopmg pubhc/pnvn;ne
partnerships with community providers, academic institutions and state/federal agencies with a focus on quality
improvement. The BEAS Medical Director will serve as a resource for chronic disease self-managgmcnt and
other wellness/prevention initiatives to improve the lives of individuals served by BEAS. He or'shc will pcrfonn
a variety of complex tasks that include the provision of medical consultation, clinical oversight, e'ducahonal
instruction, benefits management and quality assurance within the BEAS. The Medical Direc.tor will be well
versed in the regulations governing the federal Title XIX Medicaid program, including requirements for the
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operetion of waiver and State Plan services, and Title XX, the Social Service Block Program and services
providqd under the Older American’s Act.

Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH): The Agreement with the Trustees of Dartmouth College will employ a
Medical Consultant who will be responsible for the clinical oversight of the community mental health system. As
the chief psychiatrist overseeing clinical services, the. medical consultant provides consultation and clinical
decisions on complex cases and complaint investigations, oversees the review of untimely deaths and suicides in
the community, provides consultation and input on policy decisions within BBH and the Department of Health

and HumanServices, including the dcvclopment and implementation of administrative rule changes, oversees a
number of integrated health care initiatives in the community that specifically reduce the mortality of individuals
with severe mental illness and reduce expenditures for polypharmacy, and works directly with each of the
community mental health medical directors to improve care and outcomes for consumers of the community

mental health centers.
B.EMLQLI&QIMEMMD_S): This Agreement continues the provision of psychiatric care for
assessment, consultation, second opinions and time-limited medication management to adults and children with
developmental dxsabxlmw and acquired brain disorders supported by the Bureau of Developmental Services and

. medical oversight/consultation to the Bureau of Developmental Services. Should Governor and Executive
Council determine not to approve this request, approximately 35 children with special health care needs and/or
devolopmcntal delays and 35 adults with intellectual disabilities or acquired brain disorders served- by area
agencies, Special Medical Services and Child Development Clinics will have: limited or no access to timely
specialty medical care necessary to maintain their health, safety, and welfare. Without thesc needed services, the
individuals may experience significant crises and as a result will require the intervention of other elcrpents of the
services system including hospitals, law enforcement, or adult and child protective services. 'Additionally, as
Chair of the Bureau of Developmental Services Medication Committee, the psychiatrist’s absence will violate the
He-M1201 regulation requirements for having a medical director and result in the commiltteée no longer having the
guthority'and medical expertise to request pertinent information rega.rding medication practices.

Division of Juvenile Justice Services: This Agreement provxdcs for one full-time psychiatrist who provides direct
clinical evalustion and psychiatric care to over 100 children committed to the Sununu Youth Services Center per
year and for emergency support to approximetely 184 youth detained at the Center per year. ‘This psychiatrist
provides psychiatric evaluation and medication management for all committed youth, which is required to provide
appropriate medical and clinical services to youth. This position provides for clinical supervision to nursing and
treatment staff at the facility and consultation to juvenile probation and parole officers throughout the State. This
has allowed for medical oversight of treatment plans, consultation statewide for complex cases with NH Hospital
and community mental health centers, minimizing the use of acute psychiatric hosplml beds. This psychiatrist,
provided by Dartmouth is the primary consultant to the Stabilization Unit at SYSC in which the most seriously
challenged youth reside. in order to prevent long term hospitalization at NHH, provides on-call psychiatric
services after hours and review of medical processes and cost containment efforts regarding psychopharmacology
formulary. This contract brings the affiliation with the Dartmouth Trauma Interventions Research Center to the
youth center and this psychiatrist serves as the primary leader to implement trauma-informed services throughout
the state Juvenile Justice System. It is requested by the Division for Juvenile Justice Services that the Agreement
with Dartmouth be continued to avoid dire consequences to youth and families served in Juvenile Justice and the
Sununu Youth Services Center. The immediate impact of not renewing this contract would be the elimination of
all above services and place in jeopardy the health and welfare of children in the juvenile justice system fmd‘ youth
committed to the Sununu Youth Services Center who have severe mental health issues requiring psyc_:hmmc care

and medical follow up with a child psychiatrist.
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Requested Action 2, Glencliff Home is a state owned and operated nursing home facility that cares for
geriatric-psychiatric residents, usually after transferring from New Hampshire Hospital. Dartmouth College-
Department of Psychiatry has provided Glencliff Home's psychiatric needs for the past seventeen years and has
established an amicable and therapeutic relationship with Glencliff Homc s residents as their primary care

. prowder

. Glencliff Home is considered an atypical facility specxahzmg in providing services to individuals with
Mental Tliness-and/or Developmental Disabilities, and as such must provide Psychiatric services as needed by our
residents. Physicians from this Agreement provide two (2) days per week of psychiatric services, 24-hour on call
emergency service, and serve as the facility Medical Director for all medical services, aiding Glencliff Home in
complying with federal regulations for the Medicaid and Medicare reimbursement programs. Obtaining

professional services to provide part time psychiatric services for Glencliff Home residents is very difficult due in.
part to our northern New Hampshire location and is not in thc scope of our-current staff qunliﬁcations.

" A Request For Proposals was advertised in the New Hampshire Union Leader for three consecutive days
from February 8, 2011 through February 10, 2011 and on the DHHS web site, with this contractor as the only
response. .

This Agreement for Glencliff Home represents an increase over the prior agreement. The previous

agreement was negotiated four years ago utililizing a semi-retired doctor who was willing to work below industry
standard compensation dut to personal investment in this facility. The doctor is no longer available to Glencliff

Home for this Agreement.

Area served; statewide.

The source of funds average 71% General Funds and 29% Fédera] Funds for this agreement. Specific
di\(ision funding amounts are detailed as follows:

The source of funds for all appropriations is as follows: 8925 (Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services) is
50% General Funds’S0% Federal Funds; 6126 (Office of Medicaid & Business Policy) is 50% General
Funds/50% Federal Funds; 5813 (Division of Juvenile Justice Services) is 100% General Funds; 8750 (New
Hampshire Hospital) is 70% General Funds/30% Federal Funds; 5191 (Bureau of Developmental
Semccs/Speclal Medical Services) is 70% General Funds/30% Federal Funds; 5947 (Bureau of Developmental
Services) is 88% General Funds/12% Federal Funds; 7014 (Bureau of Developmental Services) is 100% General
Funds; and, 7016 (Bureau of Developmental Services) is 100% General Funds.

~ In the event that Foderal Funds become no Ionger available, General Funds will not be. requested to
support these programs.

cholas A. Toumpas
Commxssxoncr

The Depariment of Health and Human Services* Mission 12 to join communities emd families
in providing opportunities for cltisens 1o achieve healih and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject:
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
Office of the Commissioner .
1.3 Contractor Name : 1.4  Contractor Address
Office of Sponsored Projects
Trustees of Dartmouth College 11 Rope Ferry Road
Hanover, NH 03755-1404
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number ’
603-646-3007 June 30, 2016 $37,694,067.24
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Commissioner Nicholas A. Toumpas 603-271-8560
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jill Mortali, Executive Director

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

sy Heather ﬁ . nod_

1.13.2 MName and Title of Notar
o) Iay

My Commission Expies August 23, 2011
™

1.14 te Ag ‘ Signature/// 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
' "\I’ A / o _ ’ Nicholas A. Toumpas, Commissioner }
X _—

1.16  Approval by the N.H. Departmegift of Adminijtration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: b : Director, On.:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“‘State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the -
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any ]
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to'the !
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in

no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

ia
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 fajlure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; _

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the _
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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SCOPE OF SERVICES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: Jill Mortali
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Scope of Work and Work Plan - Exhibit A
50 General

Dartmouth College employees working under the contract will avoid conflicts and potential
conflicts of interest relative to meeting the identified needs of patients: delivering the same
standard of care to patients with comparable needs; protecting the integrity of clinical decision
making, regardless of any financial considerations. The Chairman of the Dartmouth Department
of Psychiatry will review and respond to potential ethical and conflict of interest issues
(including those regarding involvément with pharmaceutical and device manufacturing
companies) in accordance with Dartmouth College and Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center
policy, and will report any activities that present ethical and conflict of interest issues to DHHS.
In addition, medical personnel working under the contract will report sentinel events to DHHS
pursuant to the DHHS Sentinel Event Review Policy and participate in the process, as required.

l 5.1 New Hampshire Hospital

5.1.1 Personnel Requirements

Personnel currently employed by Dartmouth and deployed to New Hampshire Hospital (NHH)
will continue to accept assignment to the hospital. Dartmouth will recruit for new or unfilled
positions noted in this RFP.

NHH Chief Medical Officer: 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will continue to providle NHH with a Chief Medical Officer with the leadership
experience and ability called for in the RPF. Dartmouth’s current Chief Medical Officer clearly
meets and exceeds the standard and is committed to continuing in the role through Dartmouth.

David G. Folks, MD is proposed to continue to serve as Chief Medical Officer. Dr. Folks has 25
years of experience in a position of clinical leadership, including experience with a major public
sector program, psychiatric hospital, governmental authority, state and national
medical/psychiatric society and has been involved in the delivery of public sector psychiatric
services. He completed an ACGME approved residency program with Board Certification in
psychiatry by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology. He has additional subspecialty
certification in geriatric and addiction psychiatry. Lastly, he was Chairman of the Department of
Psychiatry at the University of Nebraska for a period of 11 years.

Dr. Folks has a record of: (1) exemplary success in the fields of clinical psychiatry and
psychiatric education at the graduate and undergraduate level; (2) experience in the development
of innovative clinical programs specific to the needs of the severely and persistently mentally ill
(SPMI) population; (3) successful collaboration with state government leadership in the areas of
program planning, budget, personnel policies, staffing levels, and the legislative process; (4)
cooperation with consumer organizations; and (5) competence in program evaluation and
evidence based outcomes related clinical practice. In addition, Dr. Folks has years of research
experience, particularly in public sector relevant research as a principal investigator and co-
investigator.

Contractor Initia
Date:
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Dr. Folks will be expected to address the responsibilities and requirements as outlined Section
5.1.3 of the RFP.

General Psychiatrists: 10.0 FTEs and Proposed Additional 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will provide NHH with ten (10) General Psychiatrists that meet the requirements of
the RFP and proposes to provide, as well, one additional general psychiatrist: At least seven (7)
of the general psychiatrists will have a minimum of 5 years post-residency experierice in public
sector psychiatry in a state hospital, community mental health or similar facility serving the SMI
population; all of whom have completed an ACGME approved residency program in psychiatry;
no fewer than nine (9) of whom are Board Certified by the American Board of Psychiatry and
Neurology in Psychiatry or Board Eligible and within 5 years of post-residency; and at least
three (3) of whom hold additional specialty qualifications in addiction, forensic and/or geriatric
psychiatry. These general psychiatrists will be Dartmouth faculty members.

o Associate Medical Director (1.0 FTE): Dartmouth proposes that one of the general
psychiatrists, Alexander deNesnera, MD, continues to serve in the capacity of Associate
Medical Director. This individual will provide coverage at approximately 60% of full
time effort, as appropriate, for vacation and leave;, work in concert with the Chief
Medical Officer, including on-call responsibilities; and serve as a liaison to the
legislature, court, law enforcement and community mental health centers. Additionally,
the Associate Medical Director will be charged with the responsibility of oversight for
graduate and undergraduate education, provide oversight of Continuing Medical
Education programs, and will coordinate teaching activities with other teaching
disciplines at NHH. This position, as noted, will be staffed by Alexander deNesnera, MD,
who is well qualified to serve in this capacity and is doing so now. Dr. deNesnera has
been on the staff on New Hampshire Hospital since 1989; he is highly respected locally
and is nationally recognized for his skills in public sector and forensic psychiatry.

e Acute Care Units (7.0 FTE Psychiatrists and 1.0 FTE Advanced Registered Nurse
Practitioner [ARNP]): The acute care units of NHH will be staffed as follows: C Unit-
Rebecca Andrew, MD, and John “Jack” Hinck, MD; D Unit -TBA (recruitment pending),
and Thomas Meehan, MD; E Unit- Rebecca Neal, MD, and Wendy Martin, MD; Float
and Admissions unit — TBA and one ARNP TBA. Deployment of these individuals will
be determined by the needs of the clinical population.

Note: Dartmouth’s proposed acute care staffing proposes an additional 1.0 FTE
general psychiatrist beyond what is called for in the RFP to meet service needs:
Approximately 2,000 admissions annually to the three acute units are anticipated (out of
2,500 to the entire hospital), with initial evaluation to be provided in the admitting area of
NHH. This staffing model assumes a care-model of rapid stabilization and return to the
community, as appropriate, with equal concern for rehabilitation and community
integration using a recovery model for those with severe and persistent mental illness. In
view of the anticipated volume of patients, the additional psychiatrist will serve to
provide coverage for attending/staff psychiatrists who are on vacation, sick or on leave of
any kind including matemity or family leave. When coverage is not needed, this

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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individual will provide coverage on the extended care units (G and H), or serve as the
admitting physician, or provide additional services, as assigned by the Chief Medical
Officer. '

o Extended Care Units (2.0 FTE Psychiatrists): The extended care units will be staffed
by two psychiatrists, in accordance with NHH By-Laws.

These units will be staffed as follows: G Unit- Elizabeth Meadow, MD; H Unit Robert C.
Vidaver, MD. This staffing model assumes a care-model of extended care with the goal
of transition into the community following a period of extended care. The patient
population on these units have complicated and complex conditions that include severe
and persistent mental iliness together with trauma history, legal issues and treatment
refractoriness. :

e Transitional Housing: 1.0 FTE for six months — July - December 2011

~ Transitional Housing serves as a supported housing program for approximately 60
individuals whose severe mental illness and other psychosocial factors prevent them from
being placed directly in the community. Most cases are referred from NHH or the Secure
Psychiatric Unit in the Department of Corrections. Often, individuals served within
transitional housing have complicated legal issues, history of non-adherence to
medications, or multiple failures to manage in the community. In essence, transitional
housing provides an assertive community treatment-like program with intensive
psychiatric management, psychosocial rehabilitation and intensive case management
(supervision and coordination of services),

The Transitional Housing Program will be outsourced in January, 2012. A temporary
physician will be hired to staff this program through December 31, 201 1.

Child/Adolescent Psychiatrists: 3.0 FTEs

Anna Philbrook Center (3.0 FTE): Dartmouth will meet the RFP requirements for
child/adolescent psychiatrists: Three (3) Child/Adolescent Psychiatrists are proposed with at
least two (2) who have a minimum of § years post-fellowship experience in public sector
psychiatry in a state hospital, community mental health or similar facility. All have completed
both an ACGME approved residency program in general psychiatry and a 2-year ACGME
approved fellowship (residency program) in child/adolescent psychiatry.

Dartmouth proposes the following: R. Joffree Barrnett, MD, Steven Cauble, MD, and Deborah
McQuade, MD to continue to serve in this capacity. Dr. Barrnett has extensive experience in
forensic child psychiatry and Drs. Cauble and Barrnett both have extensive experience with the
Department of Youth Services and Juvenile Justice. Dr. McQuade is recognized for her skill and
expertise in the area of pervasive developmental disorder and autism, especially in the context of
psychiatric co-morbidity. Assuming a care model of comprehensive assessment, acute care,
stabilization and return to the community with regard to a model of remission or recovery, these
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individuals are well qualified to continue to serve the approximately 200 children and
adolescents who present to NHH each year.

These individuals will also be charged with the responsibility to provide teaching and research
activity at the Anna Philbrook Center, including Fellowship Training in Child and Adolescent
Psychiatry sponsored by Dartmouth. This activity serves the State by developing qualified child
psychiatrists who are predisposed to meet an acute and projected chronic need for child
psychiatrists in New Hampshire and are well-trained for future positions at NHH, when these
positions become available.

Geropsychiatrist: 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will meet the RFP requirements for geropsychiatry as required in the RFP: One (1)
Geropsychiatrist having a minimum of 5 years of experience in public sector psychiatry in a state
hospital, community mental health or similar facility serving the SMI population, who has
completed an ACGME approved residency program in psychiatry, and is Board-Certified by the
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology in Psychiatry, a minimum of 5 years of post-
residency clinical practice with the elderly, in a public sector milieu, with additional clinical
experience in geriatric psychiatry (substituted for fellowship training).

J Unit- will be staffed by this individual. Dartmouth proposes David Bonacci, MD who is well
qualified to provide geriatric psychiatric services for older adults, as well as individuals with co-
morbid psychiatric and general medical conditions, or functional disability. This patient
population is prevalent at NHH and best served on a unit designed to serve the older and/or
medically compromised patient. '

Dr. Bonacci will provide acute and extended care, as appropriate for those individuals who need
24 hour monitoring and the structure of an inpatient psychiatric setting. Both Drs. David Folks
and Alexander deNesnera are well qualified and available to provide coverage on this unit.

Dr. Bonacci will also provide teaching and participate in research, as appropriate, including
serving as the primary attending for the Geriatric Psychiatry Fellowship Training Program
sponsored by Dartmouth.

Experience and Specialty Board Certification of Current NHH Psychiatrists

Years post Child Addiction Geriatric Forensic Adult
training Psychiatry | Psychiatry | Psychiatry | Psychiatry | Psychiatry
Board Cert. | Board Cert. | Board Cert. | Board Cert. | Bd. Cert.
Andrew 23 X
Barrnett 24 X X X
Bonacci 33 X X
Cauble 18 X X
deNesnera 21 X X X X
Folks 28 X X X
Hinck 16 X X

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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Martin 4

McQuade 8 X
Meadow 31 X
Meehan 34 X
Neal 22 X X
Vidaver 3 :

Total (Avg.)  (20.4) 2 2 5 2 11

Director of Neuropsychology Laboratory: 0. 5§ FTE

Dartmouth will provide a senior neuropsychologist who meets the requirements of the RFP: A
minimum of 5 years of post-fellowship experience in the design and implementation of
neurocognitive screening and comprehensive neuropsychological assessment protocols
appropriate to public sector severely mentally ill and behaviorally challenged populations.

Laura Flashman, PhD, ABPP is proposed to serve/continue in this position. She is a Board
Certified clinical neuropsychologist, and has experience including leadership responsibilities in
MRI operations and the ability to integrate cognitive test results with data from structural and
functional brain imaging. She is well qualified to serve and is currently an Associate Professor of
Psychiatry, with a background in the education of postdoctoral neuropsychology fellows. She
possesses evidence of scientific productivity in relation to the SMI population, as desired by the
RFP. ’

Neuropsychologist: 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will provide 1.0 FTE of neuropsychologist effort as requested in the RFP: The
neuropsychologist effort will be filled by two individuals (0.5 FTE each), both of whom have a
minimum of 2 years of post-fellowship experience in neurocognitive screening and
comprehensive neuropsychological assessment protocols appropriate to public sector and
severely mentally ill and behaviorally challenged populations. The candidates both possess a
PhD (or PsyD), as required, in clinical psychology or neuropsychology and both have completed
a neuropsychology postdoctoral fellowship (Houston guidelines). These candidates, Susan
McGurk, PhD (Associate Professor) and Arthur Maerlender, PhD (Assistant Professor), currently
provide services at NHH and have experience in the integration of cognitive test results with data
from structural and functional brain imaging.

Neuropsychology trainees (3.0 FTE)

Although not requested in the RFP, Dartmouth proposes to continue to deploy
Neuropsychological = Postdoctoral  Fellows (1.0 FTE total), as well as
psychology/neuropsychology interns (2.0 FTE). At present, the two Fellows are: Rayna
Ericson, PhD, a Postdoctoral Fellow in Adult Neuropsychology, and Gretchen Berrios-Siervo,
PsyD, a Postdoctoral Fellow in Pediatric Neuropsychology. The interns provide direct care and
are trained and overseen by the Neuropsychology faculty. This training program builds skill and
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capacity in neuropsychology in the care of adults and children with severe mental illnesses. The
training also contributes to research in this important area.

Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners: 1.0 FTEs

Dartmouth will recruit 1 (one) Master's prepared Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse
Practitioners (ARNPs) to meet the RFP requirements in Year 1 and Year 2 of the contract. This
will increase to 4.0 FTEs in Years 3-5 of the contract.

The ARNPs will provide clinical services, as outlined above, in extended care and admissions
areas providing care for patients with severe mental illness and/or medical co-morbidity in
accordance with the scope of practice described in Section 326-B:11. These individuals will be
expected to independently prescribe, dispense, and distribute medications within the formulary
and act as treatment team leader on “G” Unit, “H” Unit and “J” Unit in accordance with the
scope of practice and NHH by-laws. The fourth will cover leave time of others and help in the
admission unit or as assigned by the Chief Medical Officer.

Psychiatric Residents and Fellows: 4.0 FTEs
General Psychiatric Residents: PGY II: 1.5 FTEs and PGY IV: 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will rotate 1.5 FTE PGY Il and .5 FTE PGY 1V, as available, through NHH as part of
its ACGME approved psychiatric residency program. The faculty outlined above shall provide,
in addition, faculty oversight, clinical supervision, didactic education and appropriate research
opportunities in the field of public psychiatry. The training experience at NHH has been
exceedingly beneficial to resident education and has led to several important recruitments and
hires at NHH over time.

Child/Adolescent Fellows: 1.0 FTE

Dartmouth will continue to rotate 1 child/adolescent fellow apportioned through the PGY IV &
PGY V years [1x and 2. year fellows] through NHH. The fellows shall be integral to
Dartmouth’s AGCME-approved child/adolescent training program; the experience will
incorporate a full spectrum of child/adolescent coursework and clinical experience to facilitate
the NHH rotation, emphasizing areas of child welfare, family intervention, wrap around services
and the juvenile justice system.

Geropsychiatry Fellow: 0.5 FTE

Dartmouth will rotate a 0.5 FTE geropsychiatry fellow [PGY V], as available, through NHH.
Fellows will be integral to the Dartmouth’s AGCME - approved fellowship program in geriatric
psychiatry. Dartmouth will provide, in addition, faculty oversight, clinical supervision, didactic
education and appropriate research opportunities in the care of the elderly and medically
compromised individuals.

Contractor Initials:
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On-Call Medical Physicians

Dartmouth will provide on-call medical coverage to NHH and the Division for Juvenile Justice
Services on nights and weekends through licensed physicians specializing in primary medical
care. This service will be provided by NHH staff after hours, weekends and holidays, as
necessary, to address general medical needs and arrange for referrals for medically necessary
urgent care or emergent care.

Psychiatrist, Glencliff Home: 0.4 FTE

Dartmouth will provide 0.4 FTE psychiatrist to Glencliff Home. At a minimum, first year
coverage will be at the 0.25 FTE level which will cover 46 on-site days at Glencliff (seven hours
on site and one hour of the two hour travel time), two hours/week of scheduled phone time. It
may be possible to provide the other 0.15 FTE on-site care as well. Care will be provided by a
board certified or eligible psychiatrist.

Upon awarding of this contract, the Department will begin recruiting for a Geriatric Psychiatrist
to fill the role next year.

Glencliff Home coverageA includes providing direct psychiatric service to residents, delivering
expert testimony at times, serving as the Medical Director, providing an evaluation on each
patient annually, and serving as liaison with other organizations such as DHMC and NHH.

Dartmouth agrees to provide psychiatric services as detailed in the RFP:

1. The Contractor shall provide 24 hours per day, 7 days a week routine or emergency telephone
consultation at no additional cost, 52 weeks per year, to clinical staff and administration staff,

2. The Contractor shall provide expert testimony in probate court as needed, such as the need for
guardianship, ECT, or DNR orders. Preparation for such testimony may include consultation with
lawyers, review of records and travel. This work will be scheduled during an on-site day
whenever and as much as possible and at no additional cost.

3. The Contractor shall serve as Glencliff Homes’ Medical Director. This involves helping to review
and set policy, oversight of the primary physicians and to attend mandatory (per OBRA and other
regulations) committee meetings including, but not limited to, continuous quality improvement,
infection control and admissions.

4. The Contractor shall provide direct psychiatric services, treatment and associated follow-up to
approximately 120 residents at Glencliff Home.

5. The Contractor shall be available in person or by telephone during on-site visits to discuss
treatment with family members or guardians at no additional cost.

6. The Contractor shall conduct an annual evaluation on every resident.
7. The Contractor shall review use of psychotropic medications for compliance with OBRA

regulations and provide other assistance in meeting standards for annual State inspections and
Federal regulations.

Contractg
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The Contractor shall provide liaison contact between Glencliff Home and New Hampshire Hospital and
between Glencliff Home and Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center when Glencliff Home residents are
seen at the receiving psychiatric institution,

Medical Consultant for NH Bureau of Behavioral Health: 0.4 FTE

Dartmouth shall provide a Medical Consultant for the Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH) (0.4
FTE) who will be available on site for at least ten hours per week and available over the phone,
by email, and in person by appointment during the remaining hours of the week. This Medical
Consultant will be a Board-Certified psychiatrist with experience in public mental health and
services for people with severe mental illnesses. This Medical Consultant will work to fully
maximize the potential of the Academic-Public Mental Health partnership between Dartmouth
Medical School and the (BBH) within the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) of
New Hampshire (NH).

The Medical Consultant for BBH will meet with the BBH administration and program group
leaders weekly and also as needed. She will work with BBH to address the clinical, policy and
planning needs of the Bureau. She will provide leadership arid expertise in relation to clinical
services, including implementation and sustaining of evidence-based psychosocial and
medication treatments, coordination between New Hampshire Hospital and community mental
health care, and implementation of In Shape; (a newly developed practice for NH residents).
S/he will provide expertise and consultation to BBH to address policy issues, including:
enhancing capacity for integration of physical health and mental health services, housing
support, designated receiving facilities, and telemedicine; improving the quality of data and data
monitoring; maintaining or improving funding and reimbursement strategies; and updating state
rules to support policy changes as needed .The Medical Consultant will communicate regularly
with, and provide clinical consultation to, BBH leaders regarding current clinical challenges,
including challenging cases, conditional discharges, suicide monitoring. If needed, the Medical
Consultant will participate in site visits. -

5.1.2 Psychiatric Services
Dartmouth agrees to provide psychiatric services as detailed in the RFP:

L Dartmouth will work with DHHS to jointly develop and improve an integrated
mental health care system applying principles of managed care for clinical
treatment, educational and training programs, and related research;

IL. Dartmouth will work jointly with DHHS to recruit and retain a Chief Medical
Officer as specified in “Overview” of the request for proposal;

III.  Dartmouth will recruit and retain psychiatrists advanced psychiatric registered
nurse practitioners and other clinical personnel to staff New Hampshire Hospital
(the Hospital);

Contractor Initial
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Dartmouth will maintain and develop an applied research and evaluation capacity
the general purpose of which shall be to identify and address medical research
issues relative to the New Hampshire DHHS mission under RSA 135-C. The
activities shall be directed at enhancing applied research resources, capacities and
activities within the State mental health services system and implementing a
program of applied research relative to that system;

The Chief Medical Officer and all other clinical pers‘onnel pursuant to this
contract will be employees of Dartmouth College, with Dartmouth’s Affirmative
Action guidelines applied in the selection of these individuals.

The clinical privileging for the Chief Medical Officer and all staff psychiatrists
will be determined by the Medical Staff Organization of the NHH pursuant to its
by-laws;

In addition to other reports as agreed to by the parties, on an annual basis,
Dartmouth will make a report in writing to DHHS as to the Chief Medical
Officer’s and the clinicians’ services provided by Dartmouth and Dartmouth’s
performance under this contract during the preceding contract year, the research
activities provided during the preceding contract year, and planned research
activities for the current contract year. On a quarterly basis or as otherwise more
frequently required by United States Department of Health and Human Services
regulations, Dartmouth will make a report in writing to DHHS as to the Chief
Medical Officer’s and clinicians’ services provided by Dartmouth, in such form
and in sufficient detail to satisfy the reporting requirements of Medicare,
Medicaid, and other third-party providers;

Dartmouth, the Chief Medical Officer, and all other clinical staff will execute
their responsibilities pursuant to this contract consistent with RSA Chapter 135-C,
the rules adopted pursuant thereto, the By-Laws of NHH’s Medical Staff
Organization, The Joint Commission (TJC), Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS), and in accordance with generally accepted medical standards
and practices;

Dartmouth will work together with DHHS to accomplish the mission and goals of
this contract, and agrees to have disputes regarding the responsibilities under this
contract between Dartmouth and DHHS referred to the DHHS Commissioner or
designee and the Dean of Dartmouth Medical School! for resolution.
Notwithstanding this, nothing herein shall affect the parties’ legal or equitable
rights or remedies otherwise available to them;

Dartmouth understands that if the provisions of RSA 541-B: 21 or RSA 99-D: 8
shall not be extended to cover the term of this Contract, or if, at any time during
the term of this contract, any provision of RSA 541-B or RSA 99-D shall for any
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reason cease to be in effect, shall be repealed, or shall be amended in any manner
which, in the sole determination of Dartmouth shall be adverse to Dartmouth,
Dartmouth shall have the option, either to:

a. Treat the contract as immediately terminated, and all of Dartmouth’s
obligations there under extinguished; or

b. Subject to the approval of the DHHS, to obtain insurance coverage in types
and amounts satisfactory to Dartmouth, the cost of which shall be an
additional expense reimbursable in full to Dartmouth by the DHHS.

5.1.3 Chief Medical Officer

I. Overview

Dartmouth agrees to furnish for the term of the contract, the full-time services of a
designated faculty member to serve as the Chief Medical Officer for NHH. The Chief
Medical Officer will be a Board Certified Psychiatrist licensed to practice in the State
of New Hampshire. The duties of the Chief Medical Officer will include, but not be
limited to, the clinical responsibilities of overseeing the provision of psychiatric and
medical services in accordance with RSA 135-C: 6. The Chief Medical Officer will,
at all times, maintain both a license to practice medicine in the State of New
Hampshire and clinical privileges at NHH. The Chief Medical Officer’s activities will
be in accordance with applicable TJC and CMS standards and be subject to the by-
laws of the Hospital Medical Staff Organization. As noted above, Dr David Folks
will continue to serve in this capacity.

II. Appointment

The Chief Medical Officer will be a Dartmouth faculty member who is (1) selected
by Dartmouth with the prior approval of the DHHS Commissioner or designee; and
(2) appointed by the DHHS Commissioner or designee. Moreover, the NHH Chief
Executive Officer will be entitled to interview the final candidate for the position and
have the right to accept or reject any candidate offered for the position. The
appointment will be for the term of the contract and subject to the termination
provisions, as noted below.

III. Vacancy

At such time as NHH’s current Chief Medical Officer resigns, is terminated, or leaves
office for any other reason, Dartmouth agrees that it will furnish, in accordance with
Section II above, a psychiatrist to serve full time as NHH’s Chief Medical Officer.
The Chief Medical Officer will be Board Certified and will have demonstrated
medical administrative experience. The Chief Medical Officer will also be a faculty
member in the Department of Psychiatry at Dartmouth and will serve under the
direction of the Chair of the Department of Psychiatry and the Dean of Dartmouth
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Medical School. The Chief Medical Officer will, at all times, maintain both a license
to practice medicine in the State of New Hampshire and clinical privileges at NHH.

IV. Activities

A detailed description of activities of the Chief Medical Officer as specified in the
RFP, and as agreed to by Dartmouth, is provided below:

A. Administrative/Clinical Responsibilities: Dartmouth agrees that, subject to (1) the statutory
authority of the DHHS Commissioner or designee, and (2) the authority of the Hospital Chief
Executive Officer with respect to administrative/clinical matters, the Chief Medical Officer will
be responsible for the following activities (as noted in the RFP):

1. To coordinate with NHH’s Chief Executive Officer all clinical activities in order to
accomplish the day-to-day clinical operation of NHH in a manner consistent with RSA
Chapter 135-C and the rules adopted pursuant thereto, all NHH policies, and all standards
of TJC and CMS;

2. To participate in the formulation, implementation, and supervision of all clinical
programs for the diagnosis, assessment, treatment, care, and management of patients of
NHH and all clinical personnel engaged in said programs to participate in the
formulation, implementation, and supervision of all clinical educational, clinical research,
and clinical training programs within NHH;

3. To supervise all documentation requirements of medical staff of NHH;

4.. To perform bi-annual performance evaluations and discipline as necessary for all staff
psychiatrists and other clinical personnel employed by Dartmouth at NHH. In preparing
these clinical evaluations, the Chief Medical Officer will consult with and seek input
from the Hospital Chief Executive Officer as to the performance of any individual under
review;

5. To perform an annual administrative review of all clinical personnel employed by
Dartmouth at NHH to assure compliance with NHH policy, including but not limited to:
training, record keeping, matters of medical records, CPR and CMP training/retraining,
customer service responsibilities, HIPPA compliance and attendance at mandated in-
service training. The Chief Medical Officer will take whatever action necessary to assure
compliance with these requirements and take whatever disciplinary action necessary in
instances of non-compliance; '

6. To comply with all applicable performance standards set forth in this contract pertaining
to staff psychiatrists;

7. To provide consultation to the DHHS relative to the development of the State mental
health services system,;

8. To support NHH’s customer service culture by adhering to and assuring that psychiatrists
under his/her direction, adhere to the established Customer Service Guidelines for
Physicians;

9. To report to the NHH Chief Executive Officer issues known to him/her regarding all
admissions, patient care or any other situation that may pose a significant risk to patients
or the community or that may result in adverse publicity or in any way undermine public
confidence in the clinical care provided by NHH;
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10. To participate as a member of NHH’s Administrative Executive Committee;

11. To participate as a member of the Executive Committee of the Medical Staff
Organization of NHH,;

12. To participate with NHH’s Chief Executive Officer in the development of the clinical
budget of NHH; and

13. To participate as a member of the Dartmouth Department of Psychiatry Executive
Committee.

. Recruitment and Employment: The Chief Medical Officer will be responsible for the
following staff employment activities:

1. To recruit and employ with approval of the NHH Chief Executive Officer, working
collaboratively with the Chairman and the Vice Chair for Clinical Services at Dartmouth
Medical School, all clinical staff employed by Dartmouth at NHH, and as requested by
the NHH’s Chief Executive Officer, in the recruitment and employment of other clinical
personnel employed by NHH;

2. To establish, subject to the approval of the NHH Chief Executive Officer, an employment
schedule for all clinical personnel employed by Dartmouth at NHH;

3. To assist the NHH’s Chief Executive Officer with the clinical supervision and education
of all other clinical staff of NHH.

. Full-Time Services Defined: For purposes of this contract, the term “full-time services” for
the Chief Medical Officer shall mean that he or she will be required through appropriate
record-keeping to account for a minimum of 40 hours of work per week devoted to his or her
duties and responsibilities, subject to the normal Dartmouth employee benefits as to vacation,
personal, and sick leave. These minimum hours may be satisfied through hours devoted to
work entirely within NHH or with a combination of at least 36 hours per week devoted to
clinical activities at NHH and, at his or her discretion, 4 hours per week devoted to
educational or research activities which further the mission and goals of NHH; these
educational and research activities are to be performed with the prior knowledge and
agreement of the NHH Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Medical Officer will also
participate with staff psychiatrists in On-Call coverage above the 40-hour week to ensure a
24-hour a day, 7-day a week provision of Psychiatrist-On-Call services without additional
compensation to Dartmouth or the Chief Medical Officer.

. Performance Evaluations: Performance evaluations of the Chief Medical Officer will be
the responsibility of the Chairman of the Department of Psychiatry, Dartmouth Medical
School, and will include within such evaluation the opinion of the NHH Chief Executive
Officer as to the Chief Medical Officer’s performance of his or her duties pursuant to this
contract. If the NHH Chief Executive Officer disagrees with the Chairman’s resolution of
any issues raised in the Chief Executive Officer’s evaluation, the dispute will be referred to
the DHHS Commissioner or designee and the Dean of Dartmouth Medical School for
resolution.
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E. Removal from Contract:

After consultation with the Chairman of the Dartmouth’s Department of Psychiatry, the NHH
Chief Executive Officer will remove the Chief Medical Officer for loss of medical staff
privileges at the Hospital, revocation or suspension of his’her New Hampshire medical
license, conviction of a felony or for cause including, but not limited to, misconduct,
malfeasance or unsatisfactory work performance. If the NHH Chief Executive Officer
removes the Chief Medical Officer for cause, including those cited above, no additional
payments shall be paid other than any accumulated leave. Where the NHH Chief Executive
Officer removes the Chief Medical Officer for other reasons, DHHS shall pay Dartmouth,
beginning at the date of termination, the Chief Medical Officer’s then current compensation
for the period of 90 days, or the remaining time in his/her contract, whichever is less.

After consultation with the Chairman of Dartmouth’s Department of Psychiatry, the NHH
Chief Executive Officer may place the Chief Medical Officer on administrative leave with
pay when the Chief Executive Officer deems there to be good cause and it is in the best
interest of the NHH to do so. Good cause will include, but not be limited to, malfeasance,
insubordination, or like reasons. The Hospital Chief Executive Officer will determine the
term of such leave. '

If the Chief Medical Officer position becomes vacant for any reason, Dartmouth will notify
the Hospital within 10 days of its intention to fill the position. Dartmouth will fill the position
as quickly as it is possible to do so.

F. Facilities and Support Staff: Dartmouth understands, as noted in the RFP, that DHHS
shall provide the Chief Medical Officer with adequate facilities and administrative support
staff to fulfill the obligations under this Contract. Facilities shall include, but not be limited
to, office space and furnishings. Sufficient space to accomplish educational, training, and
research missions shall also be made available. Administrative support staff shall include, but
not be limited to, one full-time executive secretary.

5.1.4 Clinical Services
I. Overview
As requested in this RFP:

Dartmouth Department of Psychiatry will provide the psychiatrists and related clinical
personnel outlined above to perform the services required for clinical, educational, research
and training programs at the NHH. All psychiatrists will maintain both a license to practice
medicine in the State of New Hampshire and clinical privileges at the NHH. Dartmouth will
provide additional clinical personnel to perform the service required for clinical, educational,
research and training programs at NHH.

Dartmouth will provide additional clinical personnel as described herein at the request of the
NHH Chief Executive Officer subject to the availability of funding to further the goals of this
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contract and the NHH. All related clinical personnel shall maintain appropriate
licensure/certification relevant to the practice of their clinical disciplines. Subject to the best
efforts to fill these clinical positions, Dartmouth will provide psychiatrists and other clinical
personnel with sufficient professional skills and qualifications to provide the educational and
research services needed by the NHH.

With the additional adult general psychiatrist, the neuropsychology trainees, and the
proposed salary structure, Dartmouth asserts that this structure is eminently workable; and,
asserts that this proposal will lead to effective and efficient operation of the clinical
enterprise at NHH with regard to psychiatric staffing, teaching, research and administrative
and clinical services, as outlined in the RFP. Dartmouth, through its Department of
Psychiatry, is comfortable with its ability to meet or exceed the stated requirements and looks
forward to the opportunity to do so.

I1. Hospital Psychiatric and Clinical Services

A. Personnel: Dartmouth will recruit and employ psychiatric, research and related clinical
personnel needed to provide the services specified in this contract and agrees to the
following specifications outlined in the RFP:

1 The NHH Chief Executive Officer will be entitled to interview any final
candidates identified by Dartmouth for the position of staff psychiatrist and shall
have the right to accept or reject any candidate offered for that position.

2 On an annual basis the Chief Medical Officer, the Chairman of the Dartmouth
Department of Psychiatry and the NHH Chief Executive Officer will establish
staffing needs for the Hospital, to include psychiatric, research and related clinical
personnel. A schedule of personnel will be developed and written notice shall be
provided to Dartmouth prior to commencement of the applicable contract year.

3 Prior to commencing practice at NHH, psychiatrists will be licensed to practice
medicine in New Hampshire and will commence the privileging process of the
Medical Staff Organization as authorized by the Medical Staff Organization by-
laws.

4 With the exception of research or other consultants retained, all psychiatrists and
other personnel provided by Dartmouth under this contract will be employees of
Dartmouth College and subject to personnel rules, regulations and procedures of
Dartmouth College and the Dartmouth Department of Psychiatry. No research or
other consultant retained or psychiatrist or other personnel provided by Dartmouth
under this contract will be considered an employee of DHHS.

B. Services/Measurable Outcomes: As requested in the RFP, the responsibilities of the
psychiatrists will include, but not be limited to:

1 In cooperation with treatment teams, formulation and implementation of
individual treatment plans and clinical services for the diagnosis, assessment,
treatment, care and management of patients of the NHH;
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2 Determination, consistent with RSA 135-C, of the appropriateness of admissions,
transfers and discharges;

3 Participation with other staff physicians and the Chief Medical Officer to prov1de
“On-Call” coverage on a 24-hour a day, 7-day a week basis. “Psychiatrist On-
Call” coverage will be provided in hourly amounts above the 40-hour week with
additional compensation at a rate agreed to by all parties;

4 Participation in research and education activities consistent with the mission of
NHH and subject to the approval of the Hospital Chief Executive Officer;

5 Participation in the Medical Staff Organization and other administrative
committees of NHH.

6 Performance of medical/psychiatric consultation on patients from facilities other
than NHH consistent with current Hospital policy;

7 Completion of all necessary documentatlon as required by TJC and CMS

standards;

Responsibility for completing NHH’s Incident Reports according to NHH policy;

9 Completion of all medical record documentation in the time frame required by the
NHH’s Medical Records Committee and Medical Staff by-laws;

10 Appear and testify in all court and administrative hearings as requested by the
DHHS;

11 Develop and maintain positive relationships with NHH staff, patients, families,
advocates, community providers and other interest groups vital to the functioning
of the NHH and DHHS’s system of care. In accomplishing this requirement,
psychiatrists will adhere to the standards set forth in the NHH’s Customer Service
Guidelines for Physicians; and,

12 Performance of other duties as required which are consistent with the mission of
the NHH.

<o

C. Hours of Work: During their term of duty at the Hospital, all Dartmouth psychiatrists
will work full time at the Hospital and will limit their practice to treating Hospital
patients only. Notwithstanding the above, psychiatrists serving under this contract may
perform occasional outside practice duties, with the advance written approval of the
Chief Medical Officer and the NHH Chief Executive Officer, but only if said duties do
not, in the sole judgment of the Chief Executive Officer, interfere with the psychiatrists’
duties at the NHH.

D. “Full-Time” Defined: “Full-time” will mean that each staff psychiatrist will be required
to account, through appropriate record-keeping as determined by NHH, for a minimum of
40 hours of work per week devoted to his or her duties and responsibilities, subject to the
Dartmouth’s normal and customary benefits as to vacation, personal leave, and sick
leave. These minimum hours may be satisfied through hours devoted to work entirely
within NHH or with a combination of at least 36 hours per week devoted to clinical
activities at NHH and, at his or her discretion, 4 hours per week devoted to educational or
research activities which further the mission and goals of NHH; these educational and
research activities are to be performed with the prior knowledge and approval of both the

NHH Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Medical Officer.
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E. Other Clinical Personnel:
1 Residents/Post Graduate Fellows/Psychology trainees:

a Responsibilities of the residents and fellows will be outlined, monitored, and
reviewed by the Chief Medical Officer and the appropriate attending psychiatrist;

b Responsibilities of the psychology and neuropsychology trainees will be
outlined, monitored, and reviewed by the Chief Medical Officer and the
appropriate attending faculty psychologist;

¢ Responsibilities of Post Graduate Fellows will involve the advancement of the
clinical initiatives underway at NHH under the supervision of the Chief Medical
Officer.

2 Neuropsychologists: Responsibilities of the Neuropsychologists will include, but
not be limited 1o, the administration and interpretation of neuropsychological
testing and advancing research initiative in the area of sophisticated diagnostic
services for those patients who present with complex neuropsychological
impairments.

3 Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners: Responsibilities of the
Psychiatric Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner will include, but not be
limited to, performing advanced assessments, diagnosing, prescribing,
administering, developing treatment regimes and providing consultation as
appropriate.

F. Applied Clinical Research: Applied clinical research will be encouraged for the purpose
of advancing the goals of the public mental health services system. This may include
assessing the system’s capacity, developing and/or refining clinical strategies and training
clinical staff in emerging treatment technology. These research initiatives will seek and
obtain appropriate financial support (federal, State and foundation) to continue to build
on the existing research projects. Publication of the findings of this research will receive
the widest possible dissemination in the services delivery system in New Hampshire and
through conferences and special reports nationally and internationally.

At the present time, over 25 individual principal investigators lead the Department of
Psychiatry’s research effort, with funding from federal and private sources of nearly 25
million dollars per year. The diversity of existing applied research projects of Dartmouth
investigators related to individuals with severe mental illness is delineated in some detail
in the Executive Summary (Section 3.4) and in the Organizational Profile (Exhibit A-2,
Section 3.5). As indicated there, the topics covered include the following: shared
decision making; vocational rehabilitation/supported employment; optimal services for
homeless people; integrated treatment for SMI and co-occurring substance use disorder;
implementing evidence based practices; integration of psychiatric care into primary care
settings; managing medical care in adults with SMI; psychosocial treatments for PTSD in
adults with SMI; using evidence based practice for treatment of psychiatric disorders in
children and adolescents; screening and treatment for HIV and hepatitis in adults with

~
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SMI; cognitive rehabilitation; caring for traumatic brain injury; illness management and
recovery programs; smoking cessation for adults with SMI; service research
methodology; qualitative methods; medication development; and development of optimal
treatment for first episode schizophrenia.

While the design of new research projects will occur during the period of the contract,
Dartmouth anticipates, at a minimum, that the following areas of research, among others,
directly related to patients treated at NHH, will occur during the initial two years of the
contract:

1 Cognitive remediation for severe mental illness (overseen by Dr. Susan McGurk)

2 New approaches to weight control and cardiometabolic fitness (overseen by Drs.
Stephen Bartels and Sarah Pratt)

3 New medication development for SMI and for SMI with co-occurring substance
use disorder (overseen by Drs. Alan Green, Mary Brunette and Douglas Noordsy)

As a component of its applied research program, Dartmouth will deploy Lebanon-based
faculty experts for the purpose of teaching, assessing and improving the care of patients
treated at NHH, and developing new applied clinical research projects. These experts
will include, primarily, the Directors of the Mood Disorders Service (Dr. Paul
Holtzheimer) and the Psychosis Service (Dr. Douglas Noordsy), although other clinical
experts, such as the Directors of the Sleep Medicine Service (Dr. Michael Sateia) and the
Addictions Service (Dr. Donald West) will also be available. These specialists, available
to assist at NHH, will assess complex clinica} cases, work with trainees and staff to
ensure the incorporation of the latest advances in treatment, and establish new applied
clinical research programs at NHH — aimed at benefitting patient care delivery. They
(and other faculty at NHH) will be supported in their work by a Research Assistant to
coordinate development and implementation of new applied research studies.

Note: While not funded by this contract, Dartmouth’s other on-going applied research
projects, as noted above, will also continue. Funding for these projects will be obtained
from federal or foundation sources. The primary Dartmouth investigators involved in
applied research projects are listed, and curriculum vitae are provided, in Section 3.8 —
Personnel Resumes.

G. Removal from Contract:

1 After consultation with the Chairman of Dartmouth Medical School’s Department
of Psychiatry and the Chief Medical Officer, NHH’s Chief Executive Officer will
remove a staff psychiatrist, neuropsychologist, resident or other trainee for loss of
medical staff privileges at NHH, revocation or suspension of his/her New
Hampshire medical license, conviction of a felony or for cause including, but not
limited to, misconduct, malfeasance or unsatisfactory work performance. If
NHH’s Chief Executive Officer removes a staff psychiatrist, neuropsychologist,

{W
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resident or other trainee for cause, including those cited above, no additional
payments shall be paid other than any accumulated leave. Where NHH’s Chief
Executive Officer terminates for other reasons, NHH will pay Dartmouth,
beginning at the date of removal, the individual’s then current compensation for
the period of 90 days or the time remaining in the individual’s contract, whichever
is less.

2 After consultation with the Chairman of Dartmouth Medical School’s Department
of Psychiatry and the Chief Medical Officer, the NHH Chief Executive Officer
may place a staff psychiatrist or resident on administrative leave with pay when
NHH’s Chief Executive Officer deems there is good cause and it is in the interest
of NHH’s interest to do so. Good cause will include, but not be limited to,
malfeasance, insubordination, or like reasons. NHH’s Chief Executive Officer
will determine the term of such leave.

3 If a staff psychiatrist position becomes vacant for any reason, Dartmouth will
notify NHH within 10 days of its intention to fill the position, and will seek to fill
the position within 60 days of its notification to do so.

H. Facilities and Support Staff: Dartmouth understands that the DHHS shall provide staff
physicians with adequate facilities and administrative support staff to fulfill the
obligations under this Contract. Facilities will include, but not be limited to, office space
and furnishings. Sufficient space to accomplish educational, training, and research
missions will also be made available. Administrative support staff will include, but not be
limited to, secretarial assistance.

1. Elective Components: Dartmouth recommends two “elective” components to assist in
the delivery of optimal care to patients at the NHH. The budget documents indicate that
costs associated with these components are elective.

1 Program Assistant: New Hampshire Hospital currently admits approximately
2,500 patients per year, with the number seemingly increasing every year despite
the decreasing number of available beds (now numbering 175). Dartmouth
recommends that this contract include a Program Assistant, to work closely with
the Chief Medical Officer and the Chief Executive Officer, as well as the BBH
Medical Director, to study and evaluate the flow of patients into and out of the
hospital and to work toward the design of optimal care pathways for admitted
patients. He/she will be expected to assess the constantly increasing admission
rate, elucidate the forces that underpin this increasing rate, and make
recommendations to decrease this trend. This individual will also assist in
fulfilling the intent of the RFP “to jointly develop and improve an integrated
mental health care system”.

2  Electronic Medical Record: At present, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center
(DHMC) is attempting to build an integrated system of health care for the region
-- aimed at improving the health of the whole population. One essential element
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that can enhance “systemness” involves an updated electronic medical record at
regional clinical sites that can document care, provide decision support, collect
and report process and outcome data, and allow ease of communication about
patients with other clinical sites. Such an interconnected system, once developed,
will enhance effective individual care through seamless provider communications
(improving the general medical care of the population), put up-to-date research
information in the hands of doctors and patients to enhance shared decision-
making, and build intelligence into the system to allow providers to understand
more about what is working well and where care can be improved. DHMC is
currently implementing a highly sophisticated electronic medical record (EMR)
system (EPIC), which will be interoperable with similar or other EMRs in the
Dartmouth-Hitchcock region. Increasingly, EMRs will be essential for the
delivery of quality care and to create “feedback loops™ into the care as it is being
delivered, thus allowing clinical organizations to improve care. Lack of an EMR
at NHH has long been recognized as serious impediment to connecting the care
delivered at NHH to the larger system of healthcare, and also, to fully
understanding the care that it is being delivered and how it can be improved.
Dartmouth’s EMR experts are willing to work with officials at DHHS and NHH
help analyze the options that would allow an EMR to be placed at NHH. One
such option might include extending the DHMC EPIC project to the NHH. Note:
No costs are assigned to this component at the present time. Dartmouth
looks forward to discussing possible development of an EMR for NHH with
appropriate State officials.

[ 5.2 Office of Medicaid Business and Policy — NH Medicaid Director j

A and B. Scope of Work Personnel Requirements:

Dartmouth will providle DHHS with a full time (1.0 FTE) Medicaid Medical Director to
comprehensively address the scope of services described in Section 5.2.

Doris Lotz, MD, MPH, presently holds this position and is committed to continuing under a new
contract. She has over ten years of clinical practice and thirteen years as an administrative
physician, is dually boarded in Emergency Medicine and Preventive Medicine, and has worked
in both the private and public sectors focusing on quality improvement and the utilization
management of health care.

As the current Medicaid Medical Director, Dr. Lotz is already engaged in all aspects of the
Department’s policies and programs, playing a key leadership role in the implementation of
several American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, Children’s Health Insurance Program
Reauthorization Act (CHIPRA), and Affordable Care Act related initiatives, currently including
the development of the CHIPRA Quality Strategy and an Accountable Care Organization pilot
for children within the Dartmouth Hitchcock clinic system, among others. She provides
leadership to the State’s clinical benefits management and quality assurance program and is
actively engaged in the quality reporting and the development of a Medicaid report card.
Previously, Dr. Lotz successfully led the design, procurement, contracting and implementation of
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the State’s disease management program, the care coordination pilot program, and the
development and implementation of the preferred drug list.

Dr. Lotz has demonstrated an ability to work with a wide variety of stakeholders. In her nine
years as Medicaid Medical Director, she has been a frequent participant in state legislative and
budget initiatives, statewide workgroups and numerous DHHS internal committees and projects.
She has served on various legislative committees including an evaluation of the use of anti-
hyperkinesis medications in children, exploring the opportunities of a 340B program for the
state; currently sits on the Governor’s Citizens’ Health Initiative Medical Home workgroup and
the Executive Council of the New Hampshire Medical Society; and is engaged in
intradepartmental projects related to the appropriate use of child home services and the oversight
of adults on antipsychotics.

Dr. Lotz is also recognized as an expert on the Medicaid program and presents the Medicaid
perspective in her work on several national committees as well. She is currently serving as an
invited member of Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality’s Effective Health Care External
Stakeholder panel and is the co-chairman of the National Quality Forum’s Resource Use
Measurement Steering Committee. She is the immediate past president of the AHRQ supported
Medicaid Medical Director’s Learning Network.

Dartmouth recognizes the importance of staying abreast of a rapidly changing health care
delivery environment, and The Dartmouth Institute for Health Policy and Clinical Practice (i.e.,
The Dartmouth Institute or TDI) is at the forefront of health care reform. Dartmouth faculty
members are expected to read, understand and take part in the emerging trends in clinical
practice and research. As health care reform expands to cover more lives, Dartmouth looks
forward to continuing to understand and serve the unique needs of those citizens of NH whose
care is covered by Medicaid. To facilitate Dr. Lotz’s work, Dartmouth will provide her with a
faculty appointment in the Department of Psychiatry, as well as in the Department of
Community and Family Medicine, and she will have an appointment as well in The Dartmouth
Institute.

C. Essential Functions:

The Medicaid Medical Director will continue to provide the essential functions as noted in the
RFP and as listed below:

‘1. Provides medical oversight of the state’s publicly funded health insurance programs,
making key policy decisions, and shaping administrative planning strategies to enhance
the operating efficiency of Medicaid and CHIP and related healthcare initiatives across
the state;

2. Directs the day-to-day operations of the bureau responsible for clinical programs, benefit
management, and quality improvement activities. Also serves as chief clinical liaison to
other state program units, insurance providers, and professional organizations,

3. Serves as the clinical authority in reviewing and determining requests for covered and
uncovered medical services and pharmacy services. Participates in the development of
procedural reimbursement policy; :
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4. Promotes and assures effective and efficient utilization of facilities and services using
quality improvement methodologies. Oversees the development of a formal quality
assurance and quality improvement function within the NH Medicaid program;

S. Identifies new developments and emerging trends in clinical practices and research that
would have an impact on medical policy and/or costs, and recommend options and
courses of action;

6. Works with diverse populations; displays an understanding of and respect for the value of
diversity;

7. Within the context of implementation of the Affordable Care Act, provides leadership in

the planning, Medicaid program response, development of health care delivery systems,

clinical quality initiatives, and related policy issues;

Represents the Medicaid Director at meetings and other events as requested;

9. Analyzes proposed and new federal legislation related to benefits management and
recommends options and courses of action;

10. Maintains and enforces policies, procedures, administrative rules, and State plan
provisions that govern Medicaid medical benefits; and

11. Oversees the implementation of contracted services, maintaining working relationships
with vendors, managing contractor deliverables and services, and measuring contractor
performance.

D and E: Minimal and Desired Qualifications:

Dartmouth will provide DHHS with a Medicaid Medical Director who has at least the minimum
qualifications noted in the RFP. Dr. Lotz, who is committed to continue to provide the service
through Dartmouth, meets and exceeds all of the minimum qualifications and desired
qualifications listed in sections 5.2 D and E. Indeed, Dartmouth’s presentation of Dr. Lotz as the
Medicaid Medical Director provides the DHHS with highly qualified, uninterrupted support for
the entire scope of services and essential functions presented in this section of the RFP.
Moreover, as noted above, Dartmouth proposes to hire a qualified Grant Writer/Program Analyst
to work jointly on research projects with the Medicaid Medical Director and faculty from The
Dartmouth Institute.

®

F through J: Dartmouth is prepared to be fully compliant with the remainder of the working
environment and operation logistics discussed in 5.2.F through 5.2.J. with the following
amendments:

Regarding Termination of Employment, Section 5.2.G.1.c: A notice will be provided in advance
of termination and will be no less than 90 days prior to termination.

L5.3 Division of Juvenile Justice Services — Psychiatrist ' J

Overview and Personnel Reguirements:

Dartmouth will provide a psychiatrist (1.0 FTE) for the Division for Juvenile Justice (JJ)
Services. This psychiatrist will be Board Certified in adult and child psychiatry,who will have at

~
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least five years experience in public sector psychiatry, an interest and experience in criminal
justice, and also has the preferred personnel requirements listed in 5.3 C.

J. Eric Vance, MD currently serves in the role of psychiatrist for Juvenile Justice Services and he
will continue in this work, should Dartmouth be awarded the contract. Dr. Vance brings
outstanding qualifications to the position. He is Board Certified by the American Board of
Psychiatry and Neurology in child and adolescent psychiatry and in adult psychiatry, and he has ®
over 18 years of post-fellowship experience, practicing in both private and public sector settings,
in community mental health centers and in institutional programs. He has specialized in working
with youths in criminal justice settings, focusing on those with the most serious mental illness,
including those with aggressive disorders, delinquency, and post-traumatic stress disorders. His
clinical, administrative, teaching, and research interest has focused on building protective factors
and resilience among the most disabled of youths and their families. He has studied and
implemented a model of mental health care that is guided by this perspective. He is skilled at
conducting trainings and working collaboratively with schools, law enforcement agencies,
courts, child protection agencies, private mental health providers, and parent advocacy groups.
Dr. Vance has been serving with distinction in his current capacity and is commxtted to
continuing the work on a full time capacity through Dartmouth. »

Dr. Vance is committed to continuing academic pursuits that further the aims of the Juvenile
Justice System. He is dedicated to improving the outcomes of youths in the New Hampshire JJ
System. His longstanding areas of expertise include the neurobiological basis of resilience,
enhancement of resilience through specific interventions with high risk youths, the impact of
trauma-focused cognitive behavioral therapy (TF-CBT) on mental health issues in the JJ
population, and design of web-based assessment instruments to triage and develop intervention
strategies for youths entering the JJ system.

Scope of Work:

Dartmouth will continue to provide a child psychiatrist who will direct clinical evaluation and
psychiatric treatment of all referred youths in the Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSC), with
medication evaluation and follow-up care, from weekly to monthly, including greater than one
new psychiatric evaluation per week on an annual basis and who will remain available to nursing
and clinical staff by phone and email during off hours. Clinical oversight will include regular
clinical supervision and treatment plan oversight of allied mental health professionals at the
SYSC. The psychiatrist will continue to assist the clinical and program administrators at SYSC
to create programs and techniques to improve the quality of mental health care and rehabilitation
to this very challenging population of youths, including promoting and facilitating the
implementation and continuous improvement of evidence-based practices including interpersonal
problem-solving skills, trauma-focused cognitive behavioral therapy, and dialectical behavioral
therapy.

The Juvenile Justice (JJ) psychiatrist will continue in his capacity as a key trainer for all new
Juvenile Probation and Parole Officers and direct care staff in the JJ system statewide, to
familiarize them with key mental health issues in the JJ system, and techniques for assessment of
risks and needs in the context of a resiliency-building model of care. He will continue to conduct
trainings for various residential treatment services providers throughout the state, on topics of

building resiliency in JJ youths served in residential care.
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The JJ psychiatrist will foster improved inter-agency collaboration between DJJS services and
other mental health agencies and NHH to enhance mental health services for adjudicated youth.
This includes facilitating collaboration between human service agencies around the state, by
serving as a consultant to existing interagency collaborative groups serving JJ youths. This
includes facilitating collaboration between human service agencies around the state, in serving JJ
youths. He will also continue to serve as a statewide consultant to field staff on youths with
particularly complex mental health issues, to assure appropriate placement or development of
psychiatric treatment recommendations. He will continue to work with Dartmouth faculty and
technical staff towards establishment of a system for telepsychiatric consultation to remote areas
of the state. '

He will continue to interact and communicate on a regular basis with colleagues at New
Hampshire Hospital to collaborate around mentally ill youths with juvenile justice involvement,
and to minimize use of acute psychiatric hospital beds as much as possible. He will continue to
serve as the primary clinical consultant to the Stabilization Unit at SYSC, designed to maintain
and stabilize the most seriously challenged youths, in order to prevent long term hospitalization
at NHH. In addition, he will continue to serve as liaison to statewide community-based
organizations, such as school superintendents, residential treatment providers, the National
Alliance for the Mentally lll, local police departments, non-profit providers, interagency
collaboratives, and youth development agencies, to train their memberships in the understanding
of the needs and approaches to youths in the Juvenile Justice System.

Dr. Vance brings an affiliation with the Dartmouth Trauma Interventions Research Center. This
skill and Dartmouth connection will allow him to continue to serve as the primary leader to
implement trauma-informed services throughout the state juvenile justice system. This includes
personally training and supervising several clinicians (both in the community and at SYSC) in
the practice of Trauma-focused cognitive behavioral therapy (TF-CBT), as well as assisting and
facilitating the adoption of trauma-informed practices within the state’s residential treatment
facilities, and family courts. Dr. Vance will also-continue his leadership role in designing and
implementing a web-based risk/needs assessment, to assist in streamlining workloads, and to
automate tracking of individual youth intervention needs, as well as functional outcomes of the
statewide JJ service system.

Dr Vance, along with the other contracted psychiatrists, will come under the
administrative/clinical supervision of the Chief Medical Officer, Dr. David Folkes.

Work lines of responsibility and logistics:

Dartmouth is prepared to be fully compliant with the remainder of the working environment and
operation logistics discussed in 5.3 D through 5.2.1. with the following amendment: Regarding
Termination of Employment, Section 5.2.G.3: A notice will be provided in advance of
termination and shall be no less than 90 days prior to termination.

Measurable outcomes:

The DJJS Staff Psychiatrist will measure and report the outcomes as listed in the RFP that are
related to tracking his work. He will also work with others to develop a system for measuring
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and monitoring patient outcome measures so that these can be reported in the future. The DJIS
Staff psychiatrist will

e Document the number of comprehensive psychiatric evaluations, and units of psychiatric
services provided annually in direct care to youths in the SYSC and Juvenile Justice
System; ,

« Document the number of treatment team meetings and clinical consultations attended
annually with multi-disciplinary team members at SYSC;

e Document the specific types and numbers of evidence-based treatment interventions
implemented annually at SYSC;

¢ Document the number of teaching and supervision contacts annually with interns,
residents, and fellows at SYSC;

e Document the number of youths consulted on annually by State of NH Juvenile Probation
and Parole Officers and interagency collaborative teams; and

e Work with others in 1) to develop the infrastructure and methods to document, on an
aggregate level, through web-based outcomes measures, the efficacy of services targeting
PTSD, depression, substance abuse, and behavioral disorders among New Hampshire
Juvenile Justice youths.

[ 5.4  Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS) — Medical Director J

The BEAS Medical Director reports to the Director of the Bureau and provides consultative,
educational, training, and programmatic assessment services. He meets with the Bureau Director
every other week (bimonthly) in person or by phone to review ongoing programmatic, case
specific, clinical, and policy issues identified by the Director. The BEAS Medical Director
provides consultation and education services to Bureau personnel as requested including adult
protective service workers .and other personnel, In addition, he provides: a) consultation on
development of new programmatic initiatives, evaluation of quality of care within long-term care
and other contracted services, and on development of federal grant proposals and evaluation
initiatives; and b) critical incident case reviews as requested by the Director and advises the
Director on quality of care and clinical issues. The BEAS Medical Director also works with other
- state Medical Directors within the Department of Health and Human Services on issues that
cross different bureaus as requested and provides educational or informational briefings as
requested to subcommittees and state legislative officials.

The qualifications for the position of Medical Director for the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (BEAS) include Board Certification in Geriatric Medicine or Geriatric Psychiatry and
expertise in clinical and policy issues related to aging, long-term care, health, and social services
for older adults. Dr. Stephen Bartels, current BEAS Medical Director, or another qualified
Geriatric Physician (TBA), selected jointly by the Chairman of the Dartmouth Department of
Psychiatry and the Director of BEAS, will provide BEAS Medical Director Services. Dr. Bartels
is Professor of Psychiatry, Professor of Community & Family Medicine at Dartmouth Medical
School, and Professor of Health Policy at the Dartmouth Institute for Health Policy and Clinical
Practice. He is also the Director of Dartmouth’s Centers for Health for Aging, which includes
the Dartmouth Center for Aging Research, the Northern New England Geriatric Education
Center, and the Dartmouth Hitchcock Aging Resource Center. He has published over 130 peer
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reviewed articles and book chapters and has served in national leadership roles in the field of
geriatrics. He is a past president of the American Association for Geriatric Psychiatry and
founding Chair of Geriatric Mental Health Foundation. Dr. Bartels served as the expert
consultant and author for the Older Adult Subcommittee Report for the President's New Freedom
Commission on Mental Health. He has also testified before Congress and has participated in
congressional briefings on aging and health policy and on funding for research on mental
disorders in older persons. Dr. Bartels served as the Scientific Co-Director for SAMHSA’s Older
American’s Substance Abuse and Mental Health Technical Assistance Center and is currently
the Scientific Lead for SAMHSA’s National Technical Assistance Center for the Older Adult
Targeted Capacity Grant Program for Evidence Based Practice Implementation.

Dr. Bartels has an extensive background in long-term care policy, long-term care, and education
and training of long-term care providers. In the role of BEAS Medical Director, Dr. Bartels has
provided consultation to the Director on policy and planning issues; provided education and
training to BEAS providers including Adult Protective Service Workers; assisted in reviewing
and contributing to BEAS grant applications; represented the Bureau in testimony and briefings
requested the NH State Legislature; provided critical incident case reviews; and reviewed and
contributed to policies and procedures of programmatic initiatives by the Bureau.

As Dr. Bartels’ work in the Dartmouth Centers on Aging has greatly expanded, Dartmouth
expects to select a high-quality replacement for the position of BEAS Medical Director as soon
as it is feasible. This replacement will be proposed by the Chairman of Dartmouth Psychiatry to
the Director of BEAS, and will not occur without the Director’s approval. Dr. Bartels will
continue in his role as BEAS Medical Director until a suitable replacement is identified.

As requested in the RFP (5.5C), the Dartmouth BEAS Medical Director will:

e Provide medical oversight for all aspects of the Medicaid Program managed by BEAS,

including the waiver program for seniors and adults with disabilities, assisting in key

- policy decisions, identifying partnering opportunities with other program areas, and
shaping administrative planning strategies to enhance the program’s operating efficiency
and cost effectiveness;

e Serve as the clinical authority in reviewing requests for coverage of services not routinely
offered, and providing clinical guidance to BEAS on all such responses as well as
concerting on developing new service coverage to respond to needs or practices
identified; ‘

e Promote and assure effective and efficient utilization of facilities and services using
quality improvement methodologies. He or she will oversee the development of a formal
quality assurance and quality improvement function within BEAS;

o Identify new developments and emerging trends in clinical practice and research that will
have an impact on clinical policy and/or costs and recommend options and courses of
action;

» Identify program development opportunities within the implementation of the Patient
Protection;

e Lead planning and development of program and policy changes within BEAS program
areas throughout the implementation of ACA;

» Participate in the Technical Assistance Committee (TAC) that reviews clinical issues and
initiatives within New Hampshire Nursing Facilities;
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» Participate in the quality assurance initiative and Sentinel Event Reviews;

e Assist in the implementation of ACA by providing leadership in the planning and
development of health care delivery systems, clinical quality initiatives and related policy
issues;

e Provide educational training to BEAS personnel and external stakeholders; and

e Provide clinical expertise and medical consultation in BEAS grant writing and program
evaluation.

ES Bureau of Developmental Services (BDS) — Medical Director/Psychiatric Consultant

L

Dartmouth will continue to provide DHHS with a trained, skilled, and dedicated Medical
Director/Psychiatric Consultant for the Bureau of Developmental Services. This person will be
trained in Child and Adult Psychiatry. This psychiatrist will have expertise and a special interest
in working with patients who have developmental disabilities and autism spectrum disorders.

The role is currently being served by Jennifer McLaren MD who is committed to continue to
provide these services as a Dartmouth faculty member. Dr. McLaren meets the desired
qualifications listed in the RFP (5.6D) and will continue at the 0.4 FTE that is required in the
contract.

Dr. McLaren came to Dartmouth as a trainee with an interest in the care of children and adults
with developmental disabilities. Her adult and child psychiatry training allowed her to build
skills in public sector care, learning from Dartmouth faculty in these settings. She was an
outstanding trainee and Dartmouth and the State are fortunate that she has joined the Dartmouth
faculty. Dr. McLaren demonstrates one of the important benefits of the State’s commitment to
partnering with Dartmouth and training psychiatric resident: some of the best residents get
trained, develop skills, become interested in public sector psychiatry, and then stay on for their
careers to serve the citizens of the State. '

Essential Functions:

The Dartmouth psychiatrist in this role will provide a broad range of clinical services to children
and adolescents who are enrolled in the state funded division of Special Medical Services, and
medication management. In addition to children and adolescent services, the psychiatrist will
work with the Bureau of Developmental Services providing psychiatric evaluations,
consultations and medication management to adults with developmental disabilities who are
enrolled in one of the ten Area Agencies across the state. The patients who are referred have
complex medical and psychiatric needs; they are some of the most complicated and challenging
patients in the state. Treatment of their psychiatric and behavioral issues improves their quality
of life and allows them to thrive in the community setting. The consultations will aim at
avoidance of hospitalization or more restrictive levels of care in preserving community
placement for the adult clients. In addition to providing direct patient care, the psychiatrist will
serve as an educational resource for healthcare providers throughout the state, offering
instructive sessions on providing care to children, adolescents and adults with developmental
disabilities.
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The psychiatrist will serve as the Chairperson of the Medication Review Committee for the
Bureau of Developmental Services. This committee is responsible for reviewing the quality of
medical care delivered to patients with developmental disabilities, specifically in regard to
medication administration by area agencies and sub-contractor agencies. The psychiatrist will
chair the monthly meeting of this committee, which plays a vital role in developing and
implementing best practices and strategies to correct medication errors and avoid future
medication errors. Dr. McLaren has worked with the state in a high-cost service review, focused
on improving psychiatric and containing service costs for people with developmental disabilities.

In addition, Dr. McLaren has partnered with the Systemic, Therapeutic, Assessment, Respite and
Treatment (START) Program whose goals are to provide collaborative, cost-effective support to
adults with developmental disabilities and mental health problems. START focuses on a least
restrictive model of care providing clinical assessments, as well as support and training for
patients, families and providers. She will continue to assist the state-wide clinical evaluation
team in providing assessment, clinical evaluations, education, and recommendations regarding
patient care.

. Initiatives planned for the future are:

» Exploit new technologies, such as telepsychiatry, using teleconferencing for delivery of
further educational endeavors and local point of contact consultations (saving
patient/provider travel); and

e Utilize telepsychiatry to partner with the Autism Spectrum Disorders Human Services
Workgroup. :

Measurable outcomes:

e Responding to all of the referrals for evaluations and consultations made through the area
agencies, SMS and Child Development Clinics within the limits of the contracted FTE

e Chairing all of the Medication Committee meetings that are held,

¢ Responding to all other requests made by BDS within the limits of the contracted FTE

ADDENDUM:

Potential gbstacles to success of the contract and proposals to overcome those obstacles:

In reviewing this RFP, Dartmouth has identified two issues that have the strong potential to
block Dartmouth’s ability to meet its obligations, should it be award the contract: Salary levels
and number of general psychiatry positions at NHH. 1) Salaries have not kept pace with the
local or regional market making recruitment next to impossible and retention difficult; 2) NHH
staffing requires one more general psychiatrist beyond those in the RFP. The pace of admissions
outstrips the staff’s ability to cover for each other when they have vacation or sick leave and
another psychiatrist is needed to meet the clinical demand.

e Salaries: Dartmouth salaries have not kept pace with the market, threatening Dartmouth’s
ability to recruit and retain physicians. New Hampshire has a shortage of qualified
psychiatrists and salaries in the region have been increasing rapidly. Four years ago,
Dartmouth and State leadership at NHH recognized this market dynamic and built into
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the current contract budget a series of 5% annual salary increases in an attempt to
gradually move salaries into a competitive range. Unfortunately, the economic difficulties
of 2008 led Dartmouth to freeze salaries for 2009 - 2010. Moreover, in July, 2010, when
the Dartmouth salary freeze was lifted, salaries within the “Dartmouth contract” were
frozen by the State. Thus, salaries of Dartmouth faculty and staff on the State contract
have not changed since 2009, and the projected 5% annual salary increases did not occur.
During this period, however, salaries provided to psychiatrists in the region have
continued to increase, even faster than expected, despite the general economic
difficulties. This year, our psychiatry residents about to finish their training are aware of
the salary structure at the NH Department of Corrections (with markedly higher salaries
than at NHH), and they are being offered starting salaries $20,000 to $40,000 higher than
we can provide within the current “Dartmouth contract” at local hospitals and CMHCs.
This has produced a serious situation: one well-regarded Dartmouth faculty member left
NHH one year ago for a similar position (at Concord Hospital), but at a dramatically
higher salary; other psychiatrists are likely to leave NHH due to salary issues; a highly
desired psychiatrist who was offered a NHH position decided to work elsewhere in part
due to salary; and other potential recruits have withdrawn their applications when told of
the current salary range. In short, the current range is simply not competitive. Dartmouth
will not be able to retain its current NHH and DHHS facuity, and it will not be able to
recruit new faculty without addressing salaries. Thus, salaries as noted within the
proposed budget have been adjusted to reflect realistic market conditions.

¢ NHH psychiatric staffing: The number of admissions to the three acute units at NHH
continues to go up each year and can be expected to be about 2000/year in the coming
years (out of 2500 total annual admissions to NHH). Two general psychiatrists staff each
unit and work exceedingly hard to provide quality care to this high volume of patients.
When volume was lower in the past, psychiatrists sharing a unit could cover for each
other for vacations, family leave, or sick leave. This is no longer possible. NHH requires
one psychiatrist more than is called for in the current RFP in order to provide care that is
safe and reliable over time. Extreme physician stress from understaffing leads physicians
to come to work when they should stay home sick, underuse needed leave time, and seek
other employment, which would exacerbate the situation. The additional psychiatrist in
Dartmouth’s proposal, when hired, will meet the needs of the institution.

Elective Enhancements to the Contract

When considering its response to this RFP, Dartmouth has considered whether it could further
assist DHHS beyond what is directly called for in the RFP itself, in this era of health care reform.
Thus, as an elective addendum to its proposal, Dartmouth provides 5 potential elective
enhancements:

1) NHH Program Assistant: Dartmouth recommends adding a Program Assistant to the
staff working at NHH to assist the CEO and the Chief Medical Officer, in collaboration,
potentially, with the BBH Medical Director, in further understanding the flow of patients
into NHH and the development of optimal care pathways for admitted patients. Given
the crush of patients to NHH (~2500 over the past year), and the decrease in bed capacity
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over this time (now at 175 beds), having this person at NHH would greatly facilitate and
improve its ability to deliver optimal care.

2) BBH Grant Writer/Program Analyst: Dartmouth recommends adding a Grant
Writer/Program Analyst to the staff of BBH. This individual will work directly with the
BBH Director and Medical Director on: a) writing grants that will allow BBH itself to get
funding from private and federal sources to enhance its programs; and b) to do direct
analysis of data (alone and in collaboration with Dartmouth faculty) to further understand
the optimal delivery of care within the BBH network.

3) OMBP Grant Writer/Program Analyst: Dartmouth recommends adding a Grant
Writer/Program Analyst to the staff of OMBP. This individual will work directly with
the OMBP Director and Medicaid Medical Director on: a) writing grants applications
that will allow OMBP to obtain funding from private and federal sources to enhance its
programs; and 2) to perform program evaluation and data analyses under the direction of
OMBP staff (alone and in collaboration with Dartmouth faculty) to further the
optimization of care for individuals within the Medicaid program.

4) Dartmouth Faculty Consultant: Dartmouth recommends adding a 0.1 FTE faculty
member of The Dartmouth Institute of Health Policy and Clinical Practice to assist BBH
and OMBP in their work, especially related to new developments regarding health care
reform. Ellen A. Meara, Ph.D., Associate Professor at The Dartmouth Institute, is
recommended for this position, thus bringing the health care reform expertise of
Dartmouth into the work of DHHS.

5) Electronic Medical Record development at NHH: At present, Dartmouth-Hitchcock
Medical Center (DHMC), including its base in Lebanon and its system of care throughout

NH, is developing a new, very sophisticated EMR system (EPIC). Increasingly, EMRs
will be essential for the delivery of quality care and to create the “feedback loops™ into
the care as it is being delivery, thus allowing clinical organizations to measure and
improve care delivery. Lack of an electronic medical record (EMR) at NHH has long
been recognized as a serious impediment to delivery of optimal care and to linking that
care to the wider system of health- and mental-health care. Dartmouth, working with the
State, is willing to analyze available options, one of which is to extend the DHMC EPIC
project to NHH.

Enhancing Dartmouth’s Partnership with the State:

In this response to the RFP # 12-OCOM-PMAS-01, Dartmouth seeks to enhance its partnership
with the State of New Hampshire for the delivery of the psychiatric and other medical services
that it has done since 1987. As such, Dartmouth clearly recognizes the current financial
difficulties faced by the State and by the country. At the same time, Dartmouth is aware of the
need to raise salaries within the contract, and of elective enhancements that could improve the
ability of the State to provide for the care of those citizens of NH with severe mental illness, as
well as those insured under the NH Medicaid program. To facilitate its partnership in these
trying times, Dartmouth agrees to reduce its standard “off-campus Facilities and Administration”
rate (i.e., overhead) for the S-year period of this contract (which is currently set at 26%) to 10%,
as requested by the RFP.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Payment for Physician Clinical and Administrative Services:

The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed of $37,694,067.24 for the services
provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, and in accordance with
Exhibit B-1 and Exhibit B-3, for the period of July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016. Payment for
said services shall be made as follows:

The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall
make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor
services provided pursuant to this Agreement. '

The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager

Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Heaith and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Each monthly invoice must distinctly identify and differentiate the expense components as
charged to each of the seven (7) DHHS Bureaus for which services are provided; as follows:

New Hampshire Hospital

Office of Medicaid Business and Policy
Bureau of Behavioral Heaith

Bureau of Eiderly and Aduit Services
Bureau of Developmental Services
Division of Juvenile Justice Services
Glencliff Home

Exhibits B-1 and B-2 identify the authorized costs and expenses pursuant to this Agreement.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT C
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals and,
in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

4. Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shail include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor shall
furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require. :

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as individuals
declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in order to
influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State may terminate this
Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments, gratuities or offers of
employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or
Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any other
document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no payments
will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for any services provided
to any individuai prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred
by the Contractor for any services provided prior'to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except
as otherwise: provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a rate which
reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate which exceeds the amounts reasonable and
necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to
ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or
after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has
used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor lnltials:%__‘
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such costs, or has received payment in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor
to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in excess of
costs;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to detemmine the
eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the
Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be
ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants and
agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and
which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materiais,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or
required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of services
during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility (including all
forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the Contractor
shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit Organizations” and
the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by
the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of
audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in fimitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit
exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which exception has
been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in
connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be
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disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the Department
regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials requiring such
information in connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the administration of the
services and the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party of any information
conceming a recipient for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of the Department or the
Contractor's responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of
the recipient, his attomey or guardian. .

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the Paragraph
shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following times
if requested by the Department.

12.1 Interim Financlal Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such
Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the
Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of this
Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a summary
statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information required by the
Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and
all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses
claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the
amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

14, Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during or
resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Trustees of Dartmouth College, with funds provided in
part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an
order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any governmental license or permit shalt be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ali times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection
agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

N
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS — DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable and
reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and federal
laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is entitied
"Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial activities of
contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shali mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form ot forms requited by
the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the Contractor
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue
for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that period of
time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are referred
to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be
amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative Services
containing @ compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire Administrative Procedures
Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal regulations promuigated
thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds avaitable for these services.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-I

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is amended as
follows:

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
ereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, in whole or in part,
are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any legislative or executive action
that decreases, eliminates, or otherwise alters the appropriation or availability of funding for the
specific purposes of this contract, as provided for in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate or reduce services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Contractor notice of such termination or reduction. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other account to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are
reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the
State, 90 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to
terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement,
including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services
under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data
requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall
provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are tranmsitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted
delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations -
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10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

Subparagraph 13 of the General Provisions of this Agreement is hereby amended to read:

Contractor shall comply with any and all requirements of this Agreement; in the event that the
Contractor fails to comply with any such requirements, including, but not limited, to disclosure of
any PHI in violation of this Agreement, the Covered Entity may pursue all available remedies, at law
and in equity, including without limitation any damages or losses it suffers from Contractor's breach
of this Agreement. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under this Agreement shall
survive termination of this Agreement.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor nitials?
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NH Department of Heaith and Human Services .
STANDARD EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Ii of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of
fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

n The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;

and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position titie,
to every grant officer on whose. grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant,

\)] Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

)] Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
11 Rope Ferry Road #6210, Hanover, NH 03755-1404

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Trustees of Dartmouth College From: 7/1/2011 To: 6/30/2016
(Contractor Name) (Period Covered by this Certification)

Jill Mortali, Executive Director
(Name & Title of Authorized Contractor Representative)

S/18/11

(Date)
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generali
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title {V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title [V

Contract Period: July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowiedge and belief, that:

o)

@)

3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for ‘influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federat contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shail certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
lmposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject

enalty of not less than $1O 000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

‘1 Jill Mortali, Executive Director
Jrature) {Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Trustees of Dartmouth College 5— / / J‘ / ( /

{Contractor Name) (Date)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials:
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarnily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. if necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disquaiify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. f it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauit.

4. The prospective primary participant shail provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
participant fearns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
efroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” "participant,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” “principal,” "proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by

DHHS.
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is nat required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and

its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal
(contract).

-
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

4‘ é A Jill Mortali, Executive Director

< gnat‘u're)' (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
goad of Dartmouth College j // Z j/ /4 /
ontractor Name) (Date) 4
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
‘representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

/A

g Jill Mortali, Executive Director
or Représ€ntaye Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Trustees of Dartmouth College

&//5/11
(Contractor Name) /7 ’

(Date)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foliowing

certification:

1. By-signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
wit] applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

%w Jill Mortali, Executive Director

(@ epresenfatﬂle' Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

rustees of Dartmouth College ‘ f// ; L(

(Contractor Name) (Date) # ‘

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initia
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STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

1

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement : Contractor initials:

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
Definitions.
“Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.
“Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

“Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501,

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

“HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXII], Subtitle D, Part | & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indwxdually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

j. - “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

September 2009
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“Protected Health Information™ shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American Nationa] Standards Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate i